
 

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

 
5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA 

January 25, 2017 
12:00pm 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

I. Call to Order 
 

a. Moment of Silence/Pledge of Allegiance (Please Stand) 
 

b. Reading of the “Promise of Community Action” (Please Stand) 
 

Community Action changes people’s lives, embodies the spirit of 
hope, improves communities, and makes America a better place to 
live.  We care about the entire community, and we are dedicated to 
helping people help themselves and each other. 

 
c. Introduction of Newly Appointed Board Members 

 Janea Benton, appointed by Assembly Member Rudy Salas 
 Marian Panos, appointed by Mayor of the City of Bakersfield Karen Goh 
 Garth Corrigan, appointed by State Senator Jean Fuller 
 Mike Maggard, appointed by Kern County Board of Supervisors 

 
d. Roll Call 

 
Garth Corrigan Curtis Floyd   Fred Plane  Warren Peterson 
James Camp  Craig Henderson  Mike Maggard  Yolanda Ochoa  
Ana Vigil  Charlie Rodriguez Jason Warren  Janea Benton 
Marian Panos 
 

e. Election of Board Officers 
 

Current Board Officers 
 Garth Corrigan, Chair 
 Curtis Floyd, Vice Chair 

 Fred Plane, Secretary 
 Warren Peterson, Treasurer 

   
II. Approval of Agenda 

 
III. Approval of meeting minutes 

 
a. Minutes of November 30, 2016 Board of Directors meeting – Action Item (p. 1-7)  

 
IV. Introduction of Guests/Public Forum: (The public may address the Board of Directors on 

items not on the agenda.  Speakers are limited to 3 minutes.  If more than one person 
wishes to address the same topic, the total group time for the topic will be 10 minutes.  
Please state your name before making your presentation.) 

 



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
January 25, 2017 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
V. Special Presentations 
 

a. Presentation of New Employee Introduction Video – Louis Medina, Advocacy and  
      Outreach Manager 
 

VI. New Business 
 

a. Brown Armstrong Presentation of the Independent Audit Reports for the year ended 
February 29, 2016 and the Special Purpose Financial Statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2016 – Christine Anami, Director of Finance – Info Item (p. 9-10 ) 
 

b. Employee Policy Manual – Michele Nowell, Director of Human Resources – Info 
Item (p. 11-12 ) 

 
c. Organizational Standards Requirements – Brady Bernhart, Community Development 

Specialist – Info Item (p. 13-27) 
 Draft Succession Plan for Executive Director  
 Conflict of Interest Statement sample  

 
d. Contract for Services Agreement for Garden Pathways – Yolanda Gonzales, Director 
      of Head Start / State Child Development – Action Item (p. 28-40 ) 

 Contract for Services Agreement 
 

e. San Joaquin County Food Service Agreement – Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head  
      Start / State Child Development – Action Item (p. 41-60)  

 
f. Waiver of Non-Federal Share for San Joaquin County – Yolanda Gonzales, Director 
      of Head Start / State Child Development – Action Item (p. 61) 

 
g. Community Care Licensing Late Fees – Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start  
      State Child Development – Action Item (p. 62) 

 
h. Proposed Changes to the 2016-2017 Policy Council Bylaws – Janelle Gonzales,  
      Program Governance Coordinator – Action Item (p. 63-69) 

 
VII. Committee Reports 

 
a. Executive Committee Report – Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director – Action Item 

i. Minutes of December 14, 2016 meeting (p. 70-74) 
ii. Removal of Board Member Jose Gonzalez; Category II, Low Income Sector 

Representative serving South Kern (p. 75) 
iii. Amendment to the Employee Sick Leave Cash Out Policy (p. 76-77) 
iv. Application Status Report (p. 78-82) 

a. Funding Request to Rabobank for the Volunteer Income Tax Assistance 
(VITA) Program 



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
January 25, 2017 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

b. Funding Request to Tri Counties Bank for the Volunteer Income Tax 
Assistance (VITA) Program 

v. Head Start and Early Head Start Budget to Actual Reports for the Period Ending 
November 30, 2016 (p. 83-91) 

vi. Finance Director Report 
a. Discretionary/ Fund Raising Funds Analysis, November 2016 (p. 92) 
b. Abbreviated Financial Report (Section 3 of Binder) 

 
b. Audit and Pension Committee Report – Christine Anami, Director of Finance – 

Action Item 
i. Minutes of January 12, 2017 (p. 93-94) 
ii. Audit Transmittal Report (TR) 16-005 (FEY 2-28-16) from the Department of 

Community Services and Development (p. 95-101) 
 

c. Program Review & Evaluation Committee Report – Ralph Martinez, Director of 
Community Development – Info Item 

i. Minutes of January 11, 2017 (p. 102-104) 
ii. Program Reports 

1. December 2016 Program and Division Reports (p. 105-120) 
2. Application Status Report and Funding Requests (p. 121-125) 

a. Walmart Community Grants for CAPK VITA 
b. Junior League of Bakersfield for EKFRC 

3. Head Start / State Child Development December Enrollment Update 
and Meals Report (p. 126) 

4. November-December 2016 Outreach and Advocacy Report (p. 127-
129) 

  
d. Budget & Finance Committee Report – Christine Anami, Director of Finance –      

Action Item  
i. Minutes of January 18, 2017 (p. 130-133) 
ii. Head Start and Early Head Start Budget to Actual Reports for the Period 

Ending December 31, 2016 (p. 134-144) 
iii. 2015-16 Early Head Start Partnership Federal Financial Report (Final) (p. 

145-146) 
iv. 2017 Community Services Block Grant (CSBG Contract #17F-2015) Budget 

(p. 147-151) 
v. Discretionary Fund Update (p. 152) 
vi. Financial Statements, December 2016 (Section 3 of binder) 

 
VIII. Advisory Board Reports 

 
a. Head Start Policy Council Report – Jason Warren, Policy Council Representative - 

Action Item 
i. Minutes of November 17, 2016 (p. 153-157) 
 



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
January 25, 2017 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

b. Friendship House Advisory Report – Ralph Martinez, Director of Community 
Development – Action Item  

i. Verbal Report 
 

IX. Executive Director Report – Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director – Action Item                    
 

a. 2016 CAPK Annual Report (p. 158) 
b. Update on the Board Attendance Report (p. 159) 

 
X. Board Member Comments 

 
XI. Closed Session 

 
a. Conference with Real Property Negotiators 

Property address: 3101 Mall View Rd. 
Agency negotiator: Jeremy Tobias, Ralph Martinez, Emilio Wagner 
Negotiating parties: Chris Johnston, Millennium Holdings, LLC 
Under negotiation: Concerning price and terms of payment 
 

XII. Close Session Report 
 

XIII. Next Scheduled Meeting 
 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday, February 22, 2017 

12:00 p.m. 
5005 Business Park North 
Bakersfield, CA  93309 
 

XIV. Adjournment 
 
This is to certify that this Agenda notice was posted in the lobby of the CAPK Administrative Office at 5005 Business Park North, 
Bakersfield, CA and online at www.capk.org by 12:00pm, January 20, 2017. Sylvia Ortega, Compliance Coordinator 



 

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

November 30, 2016 
12:00pm 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
 

Curtis Floyd called the meeting to order at 12:17pm at the Community Action Partnership of 
Kern Administrative Building, 5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA. 
 

a. Moment of Silence/Pledge of Allegiance (Please Stand) 
b. Reading of the “Promise of Community Action” (Please Stand) 
c. Roll Call 

 
Board Members Present: Curtis Floyd, Fred Plane, James Camp, Mike Maggard, 
Tony Martinez, Yolanda Ochoa, Kathy Philley, Ana Vigil, and Charlie Rodriguez 
 
Board Members Absent: Garth Corrigan, Warren Peterson, Don Bynum, Jose 
Gonzalez, Craig Henderson, Mike Maggard, and Jason Warren 
 
Others Present: Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director; Carmen Segovia, Director of 
Health and Nutrition; Emilio Wagner, Director of Operations; Michele Nowell, Director 
of Human Resources; Ralph Martinez, Director of Community Development; Yolanda 
Gonzales, Director of Head Start/State Child Development; Romala Ramkissoon, 
Director of Community Services; Christine Anami, Director of Finance; other CAPK 
staff. 
   

II. Approval of Agenda 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Board of Directors meeting agenda for 
November 30, 2016.  Carried by unanimous vote.  (Rodriguez/Camp) 
 

III. Approval of meeting minutes 
 
a. Minutes of October 26, 2016 Board of Directors meeting – Action Item  

 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of October 26, 2016 Special 
Board of Directors meeting.  Carried by unanimous vote. (Ochoa/Rodriguez) 

 
IV. Introduction of Guests/Public Forum: (The public may address the Board of Directors on 

items not on the agenda.  Speakers are limited to 3 minutes.  If more than one person 
wishes to address the same topic, the total group time for the topic will be 10 minutes.  
Please state your name before making your presentation.) 

 
No one addressed the Board. 

 
 

V. Special Presentations 
 

1



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
November 30, 2016 
Page 2 of 7 
 
 

a. Presentation to Diana Morrison, Central Kitchen Manager, upon her retirement from 
Community Action Partnership of Kern – Carmen Segovia, Director of Health and 
Nutrition 
 
Carmen Segovia stated that Diana Morrison has been the Central Kitchen Manager 
for 19 years, and in 5 weeks she will retire. She was presented with a plaque in 
recognition for her years of service and dedication to CAPK. Diana shared that she 
enjoyed her years at CAPK and she will miss everyone.    
 

b. Check Presentation from Teter Architects & Engineers to the CAPK Food Bank – 
Louis Medina, Outreach and Advocacy Manager 
 
Louis Medina stated that Teter Architects & Engineers are donating $4,000.00 to our 
food bank.  Robert Thornton, Senior Partner indicated that he lives and works in our 
community, and he understands the great need for support. He is glad they can 
contribute to our worthy cause.  
 

c. Presentation to the Winners of the Teter-CAPK 2016 Holiday Artwork Competition – 
Louis Medina, Outreach and Advocacy Manager 
 
Louis stated that the art competition included kids from the Friendship House and the 
Shafter Youth Center. A winning design was chosen from each center, and the two 
winning children received a certificate and a $100 gift card for Toys R Us. 
 

VI. New Business 
 

a. Resolution to approve the submission of the 2017 California Department of 
Education Contracts (CSPP, CMIG, CCTR, CMAP)  – Carmen Segovia, Director of 
Health and Nutrition; Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start / State Child 
Development – Action Item 
 
Jerry Meade stated that he is asking for approval of the Department of Education 
contracts and there are no changes from previous years.  A Board resolution is 
required when submitting the California Department of Education annual funding 
application. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Resolution to approve the 
submission of the 2017 California Department of Education Contracts (CSPP, CMIG, 
CCTR, and CMAP). (Plane/Philley) 
     

b. Approval of Desired Results Developmental Profile (DRDP) 2015 Preschool 
Fundamental View – Leslie Mitchell, Administrator of Education Support Services – 
Action Item 

 

2



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
November 30, 2016 
Page 3 of 7 
 
 

Leslie Mitchell stated that DRDP is an observation tool that is used in the classroom 
three (3) times a year. Approval was requested to use the fundamental view for 
implementation in spring 2017.   
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the implementation of the Desired 
Results Developmental Profile (DRDP) 2015 Preschool Fundamental View. (Ochoa/ 
Vigil)  

 
c. Resolution to approve the submission of the 2017 Community Service Block Grant 

(CSBG) Contract (17F-2015) from the Department of Community Services and 
Development – Action Item 

 
Ralph stated that we received the grant application documents last week and we 
have 30 calendar days to submit. This is a flexible contract that helps support 
programs such as, Food Bank, VITA, Friendship House Community Center and 
Shafter Youth Center. The estimated 2017 CSBG award is $1,482,354. A 
comprehensive budget will be submitted to the full Board of Directors once it is 
completed.  
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Resolution to approve the 
submission of the 2017 Community Service Block Grant (CSBG) Contract (17F-
2015) from the Department of Community Services and Development. Carried by 
unanimous vote. (Martinez/Philley) 

 
d. Overview of Funding Grants Awarded from 2014-2016 – Ralph Martinez, Director of 

Community Development – Info Item 
 
Ralph stated there were over 60 contracts awarded under $100,000. It is hard for us 
not to apply for smaller contracts, when bundled, they really help programs such as 
the youth centers.  
 
Curtis stated that he would like this information once a year.  He noted that the 
annual total dollar amounts from 2014 – 2016 have dropped; specifically the 2014-
2015 dropped by $200,000.  Ralph explained that it depends on the grants and 
nature of the awards. Fundraising for the Food Bank Solar Project, which involved 
several large grants, ended in 2014. 
 

VII. Committee Reports 
 

a. Audit and Pension Committee Report – Christine Anami, Director of Finance – 
Action Item 

i. Minutes of November 3, 2016  
ii. Update on Pension Report by Mutual of America  
iii. CSBG Close-Out Report from the Department of Community Services and 

Development for Contract# 15-F2015  

3



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
November 30, 2016 
Page 4 of 7 
 
 

iv. Annual Administrative Review from First 5 Kern for East Kern Family 
Resource Center  
 

v. 2016 Desk Review Report C-16019 from the Department of Community 
Services and Development for Contract# 16F-5015 and 15F-2415                

vi. 2014-15 Fiscal Year Single Audit Report Review from the California 
Department of Public Health  

vii. Annual Quality Review Site Visit from the County of Kern Mental Health 
Department for the HIV Program  

viii. Conclusion of FY 2015-16 Enhanced Monitoring Review from the County of 
Kern Mental Health Department for Agreement No. 461-2015 

ix. 2015-16 Program Self-Evaluation from the California Department of 
Education  

x. Summary of Findings for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 from the Department of 
Education  

xi. Independent Accountant’s Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures for 
Special Review  
 
Chris stated this is a quarterly meeting.  There was a presentation by 
Shannon Moriarty from Mutual of America on the agency’s employee 
retirement and pension plan. There are 857 participants with $18,580,772 in 
plan assets. There were a number of close-out reports from CSBG, East Kern 
Family Resource Center and some Department of Education Contracts.  
There were a few minor findings but there were no areas out of compliance.  
There was an Independent Accountant’s Report from Brown Armstrong 
pertaining to an email that was received from the previous Executive Director, 
Fred Drew. The auditors’ final report shows that there was no financial 
weakness. The issue has been closed and the cost was $8,000. 

 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Audit and Pension 
Committee Report. Carried by unanimous vote. (Plane/Martinez) 
 
 

b. Program Review & Evaluation Committee Report – Ralph Martinez, Director of 
Community Development – Action Item 

i. Minutes of November 9, 2016 
ii. Migrant Childcare Alternative Payment (MCAP) Parent and Provider 

Handbook Update  
iii. Program Reports 

1. October 2016 Program and Division Reports  
2. Application Status Report and Funding Requests  

a. U.S. Department of Agriculture/National Institute of Food and 
Agriculture for the Food Bank 

3. Head Start / State Child Development September Enrollment Update 
and Meals Report  

4. October 2016 Outreach and Advocacy Report  

4



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
November 30, 2016 
Page 5 of 7 
 
 

  
Ralph stated that Migrant Childcare Alternative Payment (MCAP) gave a 
presentation on the parent and provider handbook. There was a funding 
application for the U.S. Department of Agriculture that was initially presented, 
however, they realized that their application was not strong enough for 
competition. They decided not to submit it, but we might collaborate with CSUB 
to make a stronger application next year.  Head Start and Early Head Start 
reported full enrollment.  Outreach and Advocacy reported many events that 
were going on in October and upcoming events in November. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Program, Review & Evaluation 
Committee Report. Carried by unanimous vote. (Ochoa/Philley) 

 
c. Budget & Finance Committee Report – Christine Anami, Director of Finance –      

Action Item  
i. Minutes of November 16, 2016  
ii. Discretionary/Fund Raising Fund  
iii. Early Head Start/Head Start Federal Financial Reports  
iv. Low Income Weatherization Program (LIWP)Draft Request for Proposal 

(RFP)  
v. Application Status Report and Funding Requests  

1. Feeding America and the Walt Disney Company for the Food Bank 
2. Feeding America and Morgan Stanley for the Food Bank  

vi. Head Start and Early Head Start Budget to Actual Reports  
vii. Agency Financial Statements, October 2016 

 
Chris stated that in August, an unexpected check was received from California 
Employment Development Department (EDD) for a refund of overpaid payroll taxes for 
the first quarter of calendar 2016.  Staff did a thorough review and contacted EDD and 
ADP, our external payroll provider, and both organizations were unable to identify the 
reason why we were sent a refund check. The state did not request that the check be 
returned. The decision was made to deposit the money to the discretionary fund and in 
the event the state reconsiders their decision to keep the check, we will pay it out of the 
discretionary fund. CAPK was presented a new opportunity to participate in a new state 
Low Income Weatherization Program as a subcontractor to the Fresno Economic 
Opportunity Commission. Approximately 13 million dollars were assigned to Region 3. 
The committee approved for CAPK to be a sub-contractor of Fresno Economic 
Opportunity Commission. 
 
Curtis asked if this is an action item now or will there be more documentation later to 
approve. Jeremy stated that there will be more documentation to approve. This is only to 
submit the RFP. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Budget & Finance Committee report. 
Carried by unanimous vote. (Ochoa/Rodriguez) 
 

5



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
November 30, 2016 
Page 6 of 7 
 
 

 
 

VIII. Advisory Board Reports 
 

a. Head Start Policy Council Report – Jason Warren, Policy Council Representative - 
Action Item  

i. Minutes of October 13, 2016  
 

Jerry stated that they met on November 17, 2016, and new members were voted in.  
The new council elected 7 members to represent the bylaws subcommittee. They are 
scheduled to meet on the last Thursday of the month at 5:30pm. 
 
Curtis wanted to know how they are doing, specifically the board representative.  
Jerry stated that when Ashley unexpectedly left, Jason Warren, the Vice Chair 
stepped in. However, he works full time and thus unable to attend lunch time 
meetings. They are going to amend their bylaws in January 2017 so that they can 
have a designee attend board meetings. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Head Start Policy Council report. 
Carried by unanimous vote. (Ochoa/Plane) 

 
 

b. Friendship House Advisory Report – Ralph Martinez, Director of Community 
Development – Action Item  

i. Verbal Report 
 

Ralph stated that Friendship House hosted a mixer, and had about 120 people 
attend.  Curtis was a Platinum-level sponsor for this event. They also had a 
Zumba fundraiser to help fund a field trip to the Fresno Zoo.   
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Friendship House Advisory 
report. Carried by unanimous vote. (Martinez/Rodriguez) 

 
IX. Executive Director Report – Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director – Action Item                    

 
a. 2017 Board of Directors and Standing Committee Meeting Calendar  

 
Jeremy stated the meetings are scheduled for the year. Board Meetings are 
scheduled the final Wednesday of the month; Budget & Finance the Wednesday 
prior and PRE two Wednesdays prior. There are some months where the dates 
change; August for the national conference and November due to Thanksgiving.  

 
b. Board of Directors Meeting Attendance Report  

 
This is a proposal to run an attendance roster for the board.  This would start in 
January and will be included in the board binders every month.   

6



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
November 30, 2016 
Page 7 of 7 
 
 

 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Executive Director report. 
Carried by unanimous vote. (Plane/Ochoa)  
 

X. Board Member Comments 
 
Kathy stated she met with Jeremy. She is resigning from the board due to personal reasons 
and stated she has enjoyed serving on the board for the past two years.  She thanked 
Jeremy and staff for all their hard work. This will be effective January 2017. Jeremy stated 
that Kathy has filled the Head Start and Early Head Start background mandate, and she has 
done a great job.   
 
Tony stated this will be his last meeting and he will no longer be the mayor representative as 
Kyle Carter was not elected. He thanked Jeremy and stated that he has seen the agency 
grow since his employment with the agency. Curtis thanked him for his service.   
 
Yolanda stated she went to the ribbon cutting at the Rosamond center and it was a very nice 
center and encouraged everyone to go.  

 
XI. Closed Session 

 
No items scheduled. 
 

XII. Close Session Report 
 

No report was given. 
 

XIII. Next Scheduled Meeting 
 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday, January 25, 2017 (Tentative, pending approval of 2017 Board & Standing Committee Meeting Calendar) 

12:00 p.m. 
5005 Business Park North 
Bakersfield, CA  93309 
 

XIV. Adjournment 
 

The meeting adjourned at 1:13 p.m. 
 

7



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Swathi Venkatesh, Community Development Specialist 

Date:  January 25, 2017 

Subject: Agenda Item VI(a): Independent Audit Reports for year ending February 29, 

2016 – Info Item 

 
 

The Board of Directors have received the Independent Audit Reports in previous 
correspondence.  If needed, copies will be made available upon request.   
 

8



9



10



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

To:  Board of Directors  
 
From:  Michele Nowell, Director of Human Resources  
 
Date:  January 25, 2017  
  
Subject: Agenda Item VI(b): New Employee Policy Manual – Info Item 
 
 
The last updated Employee Manual approved by the Board of Directors was effective 
December 1, 2008.  Due to the length of time since the last update, this manual is a complete 
rewrite and a red-line version is not feasible.   
 
We are presenting a draft of the Employee Policy Manual for your review and comments.  The 
Policy Manual has been reviewed and approved by our attorney, David Blaine, Worklogic 
Legal Solutions.   
 
The manual definitely has a new look and feel and includes a Table of Contents in the front of 
the manual and an alphabetical Appendix in the back of the manual.  The Employee Policy 
Manual is structured with the following in mind: 
 

 Includes new Vision & Mission Statement and Core Values 
 Separating Policy from Procedures 
 Union Contract language is left completely out of Employee Manual  

 
Attached is a brief outline of some of the specific areas that have changed and / or been 
removed.  As mentioned above, the Employee Policy Manual has been a complete rewrite and 
to include every change in the outline is not practical.   
 
The draft of the new Employee Policy Manual was shared electronically with the Board on 
December 20, 2016. 
 
Attachment: Outline of Significant Changes to the Employee Policy Manual 

11



OUTLINE OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE EMPLOYEE MANUAL 
 

New or updated 

Vision statement-newly added  
Mission statement-newly added 
Core Values-newly added 
Employee status and definitions (4.0)—different types of employment status and types 
of appointments are defined 
Social Media/Networking/Technology (5.6)-use of social media added 
Attendance (7.0)—better defined and expectations for rest breaks and lunch breaks 
Payroll (8.0)—updated to mention time stamp time record, ALINE Visa card option 
COLA (8.6)—newly added COLA policy 
Standard of Conduct (9.1)—acceptable conduct list added 
Smoking (11.5)—includes vaporing, e-cigarettes and smokeless tobacco 
Harassment in the workplace (10.0 & 10.2)—harassment policy to include bullying 
Drug free workplace (12.1)—drug free policy regarding marijuana 
Security (14.0)—newly added information on access badges, fire safety and theft 
Holidays (15.5)—removal of floating holiday 
Vacation (15.6)—new maximum accruals, vacation cash out added 
Sick Time (15.7)—updated eligible family members, sick cash out added 
Jury duty (15.10)—jury duty verification, reimbursement 
Leave of Absences (16.3)—newly added organ and bone marrow donor leave 
 
Removed 

Recruitment policy and hiring procedures 
Termination appeal process 
Managerial/supervisorial Job rotation program 
Orientation 
Disciplinary procedures 
Performance evaluations procedures 
Worker’s compensation 
Union grievance procedures 

12



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

To: Board of Directors 
 
 
From:  Brady Bernhart, Community Development Specialist 

CC:  Ralph Martinez, Director of Community Development 

Date:  January 25, 2017 

Subject: Agenda Item VI(c): Organizational Standards Update – Info Item 

 

In early 2016, the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Administration for 
Children and Families issued OCS IM-138 with a requirement that CSBG eligible entities 
comply with minimum organizational standards. CAPK currently meets 55 of the 58 
organizational standards. The following items are in progress: 

 Standard 4.5 Succession Plan Policy for CAPK 
Provides policy for replacement of the Executive Director. 

 
 Standard 4.6 CAPK Risk Assessment 

Organization-wide comprehensive risk assessment 
 

 Standard 5.3 CAPK Bylaws  
Every 5 years with attorney review 
 

 Standard 5.6 Conflict of Interest Statement* 
Requires Board Members to sign a conflict of interest policy every two years. 
 

 Standard 7.1 CAPK Written Personnel Policies 
Every 5 years with attorney review 

 
Attachments: Draft Succession Plan for Executive Director 
  Conflict of Interest Statement Sample 
 
 
 
 
 
*Staff will provide the Conflict of Interest Statement and obtain signatures from each Board 
member after the meeting. 

13



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Executive Director Succession Plan Policy 

 

 
Introduction 
 
A change in executive leadership is inevitable for all organizations. It is a time of both risk and 
opportunity. It is a period in an organization’s history when the board chair must increase his/her 
level of engagement. It is also a time when some may seek assurance of the organization’s viability and 
long-term sustainability. 
 

A succession policy for the Executive Director (ED) position is a routine risk management and 
sustainability planning tool. The policy ensures organizational sustainability by providing a proactive 
and orderly plan for executive leadership transitions. 
 

To that end, the Board of Community Action Partnership of Kern (CAPK Board) is adopting this 
succession policy for purposes of: 
 

 Focusing board attention on leadership team development through annual communications 
between the ED and board about the depth of staffing and succession plans for management 
team positions; 

 Establishing principles, role clarity, and procedures to support positive leadership transitions 
that foster good transitions with departing and arriving leaders; and 

 Build organizational capacity when a planned or unplanned executive leadership change 
occurs. 

 

The board chair shall be responsible for implementing this policy and its related procedures, and for 
annually reviewing and updating the policy as needed.  In the event of a planned or unplanned 
leadership transition, the board shall immediately appoint a transition committee which shall plan and 
manage the transition, including the search for a new ED. 
 

Guiding Principles 

 CAPK is open to and will consider both internal and external candidates when filling the ED 
position. A national search will be conducted, as deemed appropriate by the transition 
committee. 

 In organizations such as CAPK, the ED’s position is often shaped by the incumbent’s talents 
and areas of specialized interest. That ED’s departure might necessitate other organizational 
changes including the creation of new positions and/or realignment of current positions. 

 The preeminent goal of a transition to a new ED is maintaining continuity of CAPK’s mission-
related work. A transition also presents an opportunity for the organization to continue to 
grow and develop. 

 
Lines of Authority 

 
1. The selection of the ED is the responsibility of the board. 
2. The current ED has the responsibility to continuously identify, encourage, and help to develop 

14



senior managers within the organization who are qualified to meet future leadership needs, 
whether that be on a temporary or permanent basis. 
 

3. The current ED has the responsibility to plan for the orderly transition of all senior managers. 
 

Emergency Backup Plan With Guidelines (attachment 1) 

 
1. Related to the position of ED: To be prepared at all times for a leadership transition, the 

organization shall maintain an up-to-date Emergency Backup Plan with guidelines for the 
planned or unplanned short-term and long-term absence of the ED. This plan is approved by 
the board and should be reviewed annually. The plan can also serve as the transition plan when 
there is a vacancy in the ED position.  
 

2. Related to management team positions: To be prepared at all times for a senior management 
transition, the ED shall maintain an up-to-date Emergency Backup Plan with guidelines for 

the planned or unplanned short-term and long-term absence of members of the management 

team. Those plans shall be provided to the board chair and made available to the board. 
(attachment 2, cross-training plan for Division Directors) 

 
Board Action in the Event of Vacancy in the ED Position 

 
1. Organizational Assessment: The board or transition committee shall take time to assess the 

leadership needs of the organization before the search for a new ED is conducted. The 
assessment shall include a review and update (if needed) of the organization’s strategic plan. 
The assessment will be designed to help assure the selection of a qualified and capable leader 
who fits well with the organization’s mission, vision, values, culture, goals, and objectives, and 
who has the necessary skills to lead the organization. 

 
2. Option of appointing an acting or interim ED:  To assure the organization’s operations are 

not interrupted while the board assesses the leadership needs and recruits a new ED, the board 
may appoint an acting ED from among senior executive staff or hire an interim ED from 
outside the organization. 
 

3. Duties of the acting/interim ED:  Among such duties will be to ensure that the organization 
continues to operate without disruption, and that all organizational commitments previously 
made are appropriately executed, including but not limited to: speaking engagements, grant and 
contract obligations, reports, licenses, certifications, membership renewals, and other 
obligations to funders and other stakeholders. 
 

4. Simultaneous transitions for the ED and senior management positions: After appointing an 
acting or interim ED from within, the board may make other temporary senior management 
appointments from among other senior management staff, external hires, or a combination of 
those options that best assures continuity in leadership and program success through the 
transition period and afterwards. 

 
 
 

15



 
Preparation Time Frame for Replacement of the ED 

 
1. The optimal period for the ED to announce his/her departure from that role – or proposed 

commencement of a new role in the organization – is at least six to twelve months before the 
date of departure. 
 

2. The organization’s board understands that the time required for successfully completing a 
planned leadership transition is approximately eight to twelve months. 

 

Role of the Outgoing ED in Planned Transitions 

 
The departing ED, unless otherwise directed by the transition committee, will be involved in some 
transition activities such as: fundraising, communicating with funders and other stakeholders, and 
briefing the incoming ED. The departing ED's role during the transition and after the new ED starts 
shall be developed in consultation with the board chair and/or transition committee and 
communicated to the board. 
 

Initial Implementation of the Transition Plan 

 
1. Within fifteen (15) days of the announcement of a planned departure, the board chair shall 

appoint a transition committee. This committee shall be comprised of at least three members 
of the board. Other external stakeholders and/or staff may be recruited to advise or assist the 
committee at the discretion of the board chair and transition committee. 
 

2. The transition committee will develop a transition plan that addresses: the appropriate 
preparation prior to launching the search, the conduct of the search and selection process, and 
the post hire follow-through to ensure the successful onboarding of the new ED. 
 

3. The transition committee shall be responsible for implementing the transition plan and further 
developing the plan as needed. At its first meeting, the transition committee shall determine 
its role, including responsibilities related to conducting the search process. (The transition 
committee may recommend that the board chair appoint a separate search committee, while 
the transition committee manages the overall transition process for the organization.) The 
committee shall also discuss and decide on how the senior management staff will be 
substantively involved in the transition planning process and consulted in the selection process. 

 

4. The transition committee shall also determine the need for consulting assistance (i.e., transition 
management consultant and/or executive search firm) based on the circumstances. 
 

5.  As needed, the board chair shall authorize an organizational assessment and schedule a board 
retreat to review and refresh the organization’s strategic plan. 

 

CAPK Commitment Regarding Diverse Candidates and Staff Leader Development 
 

1. In order to provide career advancement for staff, the organization shall encourage the 
professional development of current employees.  

16



 
2. In order to support the board’s due diligence and ensure that the best possible candidate is 

hired, the organization shall implement a search and selection process that is open to internal 
and external candidates.  
 

3. In order to develop a finalist pool that is reflective of the community, the organization shall 
work proactively to develop a diverse pool of candidates for the ED position. 

 

 

Adopted by the Board of Directors on the    day of   , 2017. 
 
 
 

________________________________________________ _____________________________________ 

[Name]       [Title]  
 
 

17



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Guideline for the Appointment of an Acting Executive Director in the Event 

of an Unplanned Absence of the Incumbent 
 
 
Rationale 
 
The Executive Director (ED) position in a nonprofit organization is a central element in the 
organization’s success. Therefore, ensuring that the functions of the ED are well-understood and 
shared among the executive team and senior staff is important to ensure organizational stability and 
leadership continuity in the event of unplanned and unexpected change. This kind of risk management 
is equally helpful in facilitating a smooth leadership transition even when it is predictable and planned. 
 

The purpose of this plan is to ensure the continuous coverage of duties critical to the ongoing 
successful operations of Community action Partnership of Kern (CAPK). The board of directors is 
adopting policies and procedures for the temporary appointment of an acting ED in the event of an 
unplanned and extended absence of the ED. The board chair, or board vice-chair in the absence of 
the board chair, may determine the appropriate time to initiate the implementation of this plan. 
 

While the board of directors acknowledges that such an absence is highly improbable and certainly 
undesirable, they believe that due diligence in exercising executive-level management functions 
requires that it have an emergency backup succession plan in place. It is expected that this plan will 
ensure continuity in the administration of the organization's day-to-day programs and operations, 
management of external relationships and supervision of staff and finances. 
 

Priority functions of the Executive Director position 
 
Of the duties listed in the position description, the key functions of the ED have a corresponding 
temporary staffing strategy for an acting ED in the attached Emergency Backup Succession Plan Detail 
(See Attachment 2). 
 

The positions assigned in the Temporary Staffing Strategy are based on CAPK’s organizational 
structure as of December 2016. In the event this plan is implemented and those assigned are no longer 
available or positions are vacant, the board chair may select other senior staff to support each of the 
key ED functions. It is the responsibility of the ED to ensure that positions have appropriate cross-
training to successfully implement the temporary staffing strategy. 
 

Business as Usual 
 
This emergency backup succession plan and the staffing structure at CAPK are intended to minimize 
disruption in quality service and maintain business as usual to the extent possible. In the absence of 
the ED, unless otherwise determined by the board of directors, business as usual includes maintenance 
of the following: 
 

 Leadership and vision 

 Fiscal oversight 

18



 Oversight and guidance on programs and reporting 

 Maintain communication with key relationships 

 Liaison with the board of directors 
 

Emergency Backup Succession Plan Implementation 

 
The board of directors authorizes the board chair to implement the terms of this emergency backup 
succession plan in the event of a planned or unplanned temporary, short-term absence of the ED. The 
board vice chair is authorized to implement this plan in the event that the board chair is unavailable 
or cannot be reached. Phone calls and conference calls are an acceptable substitute for any meetings 
designated in this plan. 
 

As soon as feasible, following notification of an unplanned temporary or short-term absence, the 
board chair may convene an executive committee meeting to affirm the procedures prescribed in this 
plan, or to modify them if needed. 
 

While this timeline may vary based on circumstances, the suggested steps for implementation are: 

 

 The management team informs the board chair immediately of unplanned absence. 

 The board chair appoints an acting ED. 

 The board chair informs the board of the acting ED appointment. 

 The board chair (and potentially other officers) consults with the acting ED on the circumstances 
of the absence, organizational situation, and related factors. 

 After the board chair and acting ED consult, stakeholders will be notified following the 
communications plan outlined below. 

 

Definitions 
 

 A temporary absence is one in which it is expected that the ED will return to his/her position once 
the events precipitating the absence are resolved. 

 An unplanned absence is one that arises unexpectedly, in contrast to a planned leave, such as a 
vacation or a sabbatical. 

 A short-term absence is a designated as three months or less. 

 A long-term absence is designated as more than three months. 

 A permanent absence is one in which it is firmly determined that the incumbent ED will not be 
returning to the position. 

 

Emergency Backup plan in event of a short-term, unplanned absence 
 

Appointment of an Acting ED 
 

1. The board of directors authorizes the board chair to implement the terms of this emergency 
backup succession plan in the event of the unplanned absence of the ED. 

2. In the event of an unplanned absence of the ED, a member of the management team shall 
immediately inform the board chair of the absence.  

19



3. As soon as is feasible, the board chair may convene a meeting of the management team to affirm 
the procedures prescribed in this plan or to make modifications the board chair and team deem 
appropriate. 

 

First backup for the ED position 
 

The board chair may designate a CAPK Division Director, to the position of acting ED. His/her 
position description will specify that s/he may serve as acting ED in the absence of the ED unless 
otherwise decided by the board chair. S/he will have an emergency backup succession plan with 
designated appointees if s/he becomes acting ED or if s/he is otherwise unable to serve his/her own 
functions as Director. 
 

Second backup for the ED position 
 

The board chair may also consider splitting duties among designated appointees based on the primary 
functions to be carried out. (See  Attachment 2, Emergency Backup Detail, for complete listing.) 
 

A Division Director, may serve as second backup for the position of acting ED based on the discretion 
of the board chair. S/he may serve should the initially selected Division Director, be unable or 
unwilling to serve as acting ED or as otherwise decided by the board chair. S/he will have an 
emergency backup plan with designated appointees. 
 

Cross-training plan for appointees 
 

The ED, in collaboration with the board chair, will develop a plan for training the potential appointees 
in the priority functions of the ED which are listed in section 2 above. The cross-training plan is 
attached to this document. (See  Attachment 2, for detailed Cross-training Plan.) 
 

The ED will have the responsibility of handling the logistics of the plan’s implementation. 

 
Authority and restrictions of the appointee 
 

The person appointed as acting ED will have the authority outlined below, except as may be further 
defined by the board chair. 
 

 Staffing – is authorized to hire and terminate management staff after consultation with the board. 

 Financial – [will or will not] have check signing authority. Is authorized to expand resources, in 
consultation with the board treasurer and chair. 

 Public Policy – is to take public policy positions on behalf of the organization with board chair 
approval. 

 Media – is authorized to speak on behalf of the organization or designate a spokesperson. 

 Contracts – is authorized to enter into and execute contracts after consultation with the board 
chair and/or board treasurer. 

 Programs – is authorized to develop new programs and assume new programmatic responsibilities 
on behalf of the organization in consultation with the management team and board as necessary. 

 Collaboration/Partnerships – is authorized to enter into partnerships or develop collaborations 
with external parties in consultation with the management team and board as necessary. 

20



Compensation 
 

The board chair, in consultation with the executive committee or Board, shall consider a salary 
adjustment for the acting ED.  Any salary adjustment will be applied retroactive to the date Acting 
ED duties began.   
 

Oversight and support for the Acting ED 
 

As with the ED, the board chair and board of directors will have the responsibility for monitoring the 
work of the acting ED. The acting ED will provide regular updates, and will meet with the board chair 
as often as the acting ED and board chair may determine necessary. The board chair will also be alert 
to the special support needs of the acting ED serving in this temporary leadership role, and act to 
address them. 
 

Communications plan 
 

Within eight (24) hours after an acting ED is appointed, the board chair and the acting ED will meet 
to implement an external communications plan to announce the organization’s temporary leadership 
structure, including the kind of information that will be shared, and with whom (e.g. major donors, 
state associations, partnering agencies, etc.).  
 

Within 24 hours after an acting ED is appointed, the board chair and acting ED will implement the 
communications plan to announce the organization’s temporary leadership structure to the 
management team and the board of directors. 
 

Notifications will take place in sequence on the following timetable: 
 

 Within 24 hours, the board chair will notify the board of directors, the [strategic alliance partners 
and really close-in stakeholders], and the management team by phone, conference call, or meeting. 

 Within 24 hours, the acting ED will notify the staff by email or meeting. 

 Within five business days, the acting ED will notify the donors and key stakeholders by phone or 
email. 

 

Updated Key Contact information will be maintained in the organization’s database for easy access 
on an ongoing basis by a staff member designated by the ED.  (For a full overview of the 
communications plan see Attachment 2.) 
 

Emergency Backup Plan in event of a long-term temporary, unplanned 
absence 
 

The procedures and conditions to be followed will be the same as for a short-term absence with one 
addition: The board chair will give immediate consideration, in consultation with the executive 
management team, to temporarily back-filling the position left vacant by the acting ED. This is in 
recognition of the fact that, for a term of more than three months, it may not be reasonable to expect 
the acting ED to carry the duties of both positions. The position description of a temporary 
appointment would focus on covering the priority areas in which the acting ED needs assistance.  (See 
attachment 2, Cross-training plan) 

21



 

Emergency Backup Plan in event of a PERMANENT unplanned absence 
 

The procedures and conditions will be the same as for a long-term temporary absence with one 
addition: The board chair may appoint a transition and search committee in accordance with the terms 
of CAPK’s Succession Policy and follow the procedures set forth in the Policy. 
 

Approvals, updates and maintenance of record 
 
Emergency Backup Plan Approval 
 

This emergency backup plan will be approved by the full board of directors and reviewed annually 
at a formal board meeting to make any needed changes in the designated backup appointees. The 
board chair may review and amend the plan at other times if a standing appointee or backup is no 
longer available to serve in an acting ED capacity. The board chair may reevaluate the plan when new 
designees are appointed. 
 

Signatories 
 

The board chair, the ED, and the designated backup appointees will sign this plan. 
 

Maintenance of Record 
 

The board chair, the ED, and the designated backup appointees will maintain copies of this plan. 
 

Approved by: 

 
CAPK’s Board of Directors on   . 
 

Acknowledged by: 

 
I acknowledge that I have reviewed this plan. 
 
 
__________________________________   ______________________________ 
Board Chair       Date 
 
 
__________________________________   ______________________________ 
Executive Director      Date 
 
 
__________________________________   ______________________________ 
First Backup       Date 
 
        ______________________________ 
Second Backup     Date 

22



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Executive Director Succession Plan 

 
Emergency Backup Plan Detail 

 

 
 

Name:  Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director 

 
First Backup:  Primary Division Director {Title}  
 
Second Backup(s):  Secondary Division Director {Title} 
 

 

Communications Plan 
 

 

Who’s being contacted? 
 

Who’s contacting 
them? 

 

How will they be 
contacted? 

 

By when will 
they be 

contacted? 

Primary Division Director, [Title] Executive Secretary Phone & Email Within 24 Hours 

Secondary Division Director, [Title] Executive Secretary Phone & Email Within 24 Hours 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

23



 

 
 

Short-Term Staffing of Key Functions 
 
Key functions Short term staffing strategies 

(Under 3 months) [Name], [Title] 
Interim Executive Director [Name] 

Interim Primary Division Director [Name] 

Interim Primary Division Manager [Name] 

  

  

  

  

 
For Longer Term Staffing: For longer term staffing, the staffing strategy will remain the same. 
 

Cross-training Plan 
 

Cross-training Area Staff to be cross-trained this area Plan/timeline for 
training 

Type/Duration 
Trainee 

Name, Title 

Trainer 
Name, Title 

Executive Management Duties Primary Division 
Director 

Executive Director 4 Hours Each Year 

Division Director Duties Primary Division 
Manager 

Primary Division 
Director 

4 Hours Each Year 

    

    

    

    

24



 

 

Critical Relationships 
 

Critical relationship that 
must be maintained 

Who’s accountable for 
maintaining? 

Contact information 
(Contact information location) 

State and Federal 
Communications 

Executive Director CSD Director, USHHS OCS & 
OHS  

NCAF Communications Executive Director David Bradley or Executive 
Director 

CALCAPA Board Voting, 
Committee & Communications 

Executive Director if a CALCAPA Board 
Member 

Executive Director of CALCAPA 
and CALCAPA Board Chair 

   

   

   

   

   

 
Annual Key Events/Milestones Calendar 
 

Month Key Events/Milestones 
(Only those that directly involve CEO) 

Key Associated 
Activities/Responsibilities (CEO’s 

accountability or involvement) 
 January VITA Awareness Day 

CSBG Reporting  
 

 

 February 2-1-1 Awareness Day 
Washington D.C. Trip- CAP Event 
Quarterly Newsletter 

 

 March Stuff the Bus Food Drive- GET BUS 
Begin Agency Fiscal Year 

 

 April CALCAPA State Conference 
 

 

 May CAPK Humanitarian Awards Banquet 
Quarterly Newsletter 

 

 June Shafter Youth Summer Program with 
Community Leaders 

 

25



 

 
Month Key Events/Milestones 

(Only those that directly involve CEO) 
Key Associated 

Activities/Responsibilities (CEO’s 
accountability or involvement) 

 July Executive Committee 
Kern County Fiscal Year Begins 

 

 August Back to School Activities with Head Start 
National CAP Convention 
Breast Feeding Awareness Month 

 

 September Kern County Fair Feed the Need Food 
Drive 

 

 October Energy Awareness Month  

 November Holiday Food Drive – KGET TV  

 December Executive Committee Meeting 
Head Start Holiday Themed Activities 
CAPK Annual Report 

 

 

26



 

 

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 
 
 

No member of the Board of Directors, or any of its Committees, shall derive any personal profit 
or gain, directly or indirectly, by reason of his or her participation with Community Action 
Partnership of Kern.  Each individual shall disclose to the organization any personal interest 
which he or she may have in any matter pending before the organization and shall refrain from 
participation in any decision on such matter. 
 
Any member of the Board, any Committee, or Staff who is an officer, board member, a 
committee member, or staff member of a client organization or vendor of Community Action 
Partnership of Kern shall identify his or her affiliation with such agency or agencies; further, in 
connection with any committee or board action specifically directed to that agency, s/he shall 
not participate in the decision affecting that agency and the decision must be made and/or 
ratified by the full board. 
 
Any member of the Board, any Committee, or Staff shall refrain from obtaining any list of clients 
for personal or private solicitation purposes at any time during the term of their affiliation. 
 
At this time, I am a board member, committee member, or an employee of the following 
organizations: 
 
 
 
 
Now this is to certify that I, except as described below, am not now nor at any time during the 
past year have been: 
1. A participant, directly or indirectly, in any arrangement, agreement, investment, or other 

activity with any vendor, supplier, or other party doing business with Community Action 
Partnership of Kern which has resulted or could result in personal benefit to me. 

2. A recipient, directly or indirectly, of any salary payments or loans or gifts of any kind or any 
free service or discounts or other fees from or on behalf of any person or organization 
engaged in any transaction with Community Action Partnership of Kern. 

 
Any exceptions to 1 or 2 above are stated below with a full description of the transactions and of 
the interest, whether direct or indirect, which I have (or have had during the past year) in the 
persons or organizations having transactions with Community Action Partnership of Kern. 
 
 
 
By signing below, I attest that the foregoing is true and correct to the best of my knowledge: 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ ________ __________________________ 
Board Member    Date  Print Name 

27



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

To:  Board of Directors 
   
     
From:  Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start / State Child Development     

Date:  January 25, 2017  

Subject:     Agenda Item VI(d): Contract for Services Agreement for Garden Pathways – Action Item 

 
 
CAPK previously submitted a request to the Board of Directors to reduce the funded enrollment slots at 
Bakersfield College Child Development Center at their request from 40 to 32. The Board was advised 
that CAPK had an additional prospective partner who would accept the 8 slots from Bakersfield 
College. We would like to request approval to enter into an agreement with Garden Pathways 
Downtown Education Center for these slots.  
 
Garden Pathways Downtown Education Center 
Garden Pathways Downtown Education Center provides center-based services for young children.  
CAPK will provide enhancement services and funding for 8 infants.  Total payments to this entity for 
child development services rendered through August 31, 2019, shall not exceed $153,600.   
 
 
Attachments: Contract for Services Agreement with Garden Pathways Downtown Education Center  
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that the Executive Committee approves the Early Head Start Child Development 
Partnership Agreement with Garden Pathways Downtown Education Center.  
 

28



Community Action Partnership of Kern      Page 1 of 12 
Garden Pathways, Inc.                           
 

Community Action Partnership of Kern 
5005 Business Park North    Bakersfield, CA  93309 

P: (661) 336‐5236     F: (661) 336‐5228 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

This Contract for Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this January 1, 2017 by and between: Garden 
Pathways, Inc., 1130 17th Street, Bakersfield, CA 93301 (“Contractor”) and Community Action Partnership of Kern (“CAPK”), 5005 
Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA 93309.  

 
RECITALS 

Whereas, CAPK desires Contractor to provide professional services as detailed in Attachment A ‐ Scope of Work attached hereto and 
made a part hereof, and 

Whereas, Contractor represents itself as able and, for a consideration, willing to perform the services outlined in Attachment A 
hereto, 

In consideration of mutual promises and agreements of the parties as herein set forth, Contractor and CAPK agree as follows: 
 

1. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES.  Contractor agrees to perform the services provided for in Attachment A of this Agreement. 

2. LOCATION FOR SERVICES.  Garden Pathways, 1130 17th Street, Bakersfield, California 93301. 

3. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES.  The detail of costs and payment schedule associated with this Agreement are detailed in Attachment 
B, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

4. TERM/TERMINATION.  This period of performance for this Agreement shall be from January 1, 2017 through August 31, 2019.  
This Agreement may be terminated by either party with or without cause for any reason upon thirty (30) days written notice. 

5. OPTION TO EXTEND.  This Agreement may be extended by amendment duly executed by both parties and upon approval from 
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, if applicable. 

6. EVALUATION.  Contractor may be evaluated throughout the Agreement.  If Contractor fails to comply with the Scope of Work 
described in Attachment A, CAPK may terminate this Agreement with a written notice. 

7. RECORD KEEPING. Payrolls and basic records pertaining to the Scope of Work described in Attachment A shall be kept on a 
generally recognized accounting basis and shall be available to CAPK at mutually convenient times. Contractor shall keep 
accounting and programmatic records for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement or until after 
final audit has been completed, whichever is later. 

8. INSURANCE.  Contractor shall maintain general liability insurance and is responsible for maintaining any public liability, property 
damage,  workers’  compensation  coverage  and  fire  insurance,  as  specified  in  Attachment  C  –  CAPK  Additional  Terms  and 
Conditions. 

9. HOLD HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION.   

a. Contractor agrees to defend, hold harmless and indemnify CAPK (and its officers, employees, trustees, agents, successors 
and assigns) against all claims, suits, expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees), losses, penalties, fines, costs and 
liability whether  in contract, tort or strict  liability (including but not  limited to personal  injury, death at any time and 
property damage) arising out of or made necessary by Contractor’s performance of this Agreement or breach of its terms. 
The total liability of Contractor under this Paragraph shall not exceed $2 million. 

b. CAPK agrees to defend, hold harmless and indemnify Contractor (and its officers, employees, trustees, agents, successors 
and assigns) against all claims, suits, expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees), losses, penalties, fines, costs and 
liability whether  in contract, tort or strict  liability (including but not  limited to personal  injury, death at any time and 
property damage) arising out of or made necessary by CAPK’s sole negligence or willful misconduct. 

10. NOTICES.  Any notice or notices required or permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement may be personally served on the 
other party by the party giving such notice, or may be served via certified mail, return receipt requested, to the address set forth 
below. 

   

ACCOUNT CODE:   

 

29



Community Action Partnership of Kern      Page 2 of 12 
Garden Pathways, Inc.                           
 

Contractor: Garden Pathways, Inc.      CAPK:   Community Action Partnership of Kern 
                      1130 17th Street          5005 Business Park North                   
                      Bakersfield, CA  93301              Bakersfield, CA 93309 
                Attn:  Shannon Vernon        Attn: Head Start/State Child Development Programs Director 
                 

11. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES.   While engaged  in carrying out and complying with  terms and conditions of  this Agreement,  the 
Contractor is an independent contractor and not an officer, employee, or agent of CAPK.   

12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT/AMENDMENTS. This Agreement, together with the documents incorporated by reference in this Agreement 
and  any  amendments hereto,  constitutes  the  entire  agreement between  the parties with  respect  to  its  subject matter  and 
constitutes and supersedes all prior agreements, representations and understandings of the parties, written or oral. Any changes 
to this Agreement, to be enforceable, must be made via a duly executed amendment signed by authorized representatives of 
each party. 

13. APPLICABLE LAW. The laws of the State of California and Federal law shall govern this Agreement. 

CONTRACTOR:  GARDEN PATHWAYS, INC.  

Signed by:                 Date:         

Printed Name:                 Title:          

CAPK:    COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
 

Signed by:       Date:          
    Jeremy T. Tobias, Executive Director 

 

Signed by:       Date:          
    Garth Corrigan, Chair, Board of Directors 

 
 

 

CAPK Staff Initials 

       

30



Community Action Partnership of Kern      Page 3 of 12 
Garden Pathways, Inc.                           
 

ATTACHMENT A — SCOPE OF WORK 
 

Contractor will: 
 

Enrollment – 45 CFR 1305: 
 

Ensure  that  full  enrollment  is met  throughout  the  CAPK  operational 
year, July 1 – June 30. 
 
Achieve full enrollment on day one of program services by  following the 
steps below: 
 

 Provide a minimum of 1380 hours of care per program year. 

 Attendance will be closely monitored to ensure that any child 
who does not show up on  the  first day or within 10 days  is 
dropped and replaced with a new student. 

 Make  reasonable  efforts  so  that  Early  Head  Start  (EHS) 
vacancies are filled within 30  calendar days. 

 Enroll  children  after CAPK Head  Start has  verified  eligibility 
and  signed  a  statement  certifying  eligibility  as  per  45  CFR 
1305. Certification can occur as follows: 
 

 Request a Head  Start  employee  to  verify  eligibility  (a 
minimum of 5 files is required). 

 Scan or fax the documents to the ERSEA Manager at  fax 
number (661)336‐5248. 

 Enroll 10% of slots with children with  Individual Family 
Service Plan (IFSP). Fill slots  no later than January 1 each 
school year. 

 Accept files from Head Start waiting list of children  with 
an  IFSP  from  CAPK  and  enroll  to  fulfill  the  10% 
enrollment. 

 Provide a monthly enrollment report (include waitlisted 
and dropped children) along with the  monthly invoice 
that includes attendance. 

 If  average  daily  attendance  falls  below  85  percent, 
Contractor  will  analyze  the  causes  and  develop  and 
submit  to  CAPK  to  review  and  approve  a  plan  that 
outlines corrective measures no later than the 15th  day 
of the following month. 

 Documentation of work with families to improve  daily 
attendance  and how parents will be  supported  with 
issues that impact the child’s attendance. 

 

CAPK will: 
 

Enrollment – 45 CFR 1305: 

 
 Provide on‐going monitoring of enrollment and verify that  all 

vacancies are filled within 30 days. 

 Provide  Training  and  Technical  Assistance  to  Contractor’s 
staff to ensure that timelines are met, records are maintained 
and that follow‐up services are provided. 

 Review  and  sign  off  on  eligibility  documents  prior  to  the 
enrollment of all children and return  to Contractor within 2 
business days to ensure full enrollment. 

 Enrollment will be verified by  the ERSEA  Manager and  the 
Head  Start/State  Child  Development  Programs  Director  or 
assignee. 

 Provide  Training  and  Technical  Assistance  to  Contractor  to 
assist  in developing  inclusive classrooms and enroll children 
with disabilities in order to meet the 10% mandate. 

 Refer  Federal  Head  Start  eligible  children  to  Contractor  to 
assist  in meeting  funded enrollment and 10%  children with 
disabilities. 

 Provide training and technical assistance to Contractor’s  staff 
in developing and revising Contractor’s procedures  to ensure 
compliance with Head Start regulations and  mandates. 

 Provide  technical  assistance  and  strategies  to  improve 
attendance problems and ensure  that children are receiving 
the  required services under this Agreement. 

 Monitor  implementation  of  service  plan  and  provide 
assistance  and  training determined  to  be needed  from  the 
analysis of Program  Information Report  (PIR),  Infant/Toddler 
Environment  Rating  Scale  (ITERS),  Self‐Assessment, 
Monitoring and  other CAPK program monitoring data. 

 Include Contractor staff in CAPK trainings as appropriate. 

 

 

 

31



Community Action Partnership of Kern      Page 4 of 12 
Garden Pathways, Inc.                           
 

ATTACHMENT A — SCOPE OF WORK 
 

Contractor will: 
 

Education – 45 CFR – 1304.21: 
 

 Hire  teaching  and  support  staff  that meet  Head  Start  and 
licensing regulations as outlined in the Head Start Act of  2007, 
and any updates issued thereto. 

 Make available at least one annual training day to all EHS staff 
conducted  by  CAPK  to  ensure  understanding  of  and 
compliance with Early Head  Start guidelines. 

 Align curriculum  to meet  school  readiness goals established 
by the Head Start program. 

 Provide  two  home  visits,  and  two  parent  conferences  for 
every child during program year. 

 Ensure  on‐going  Child  Assessments/Desired  Results 
Developmental Profile (DRDP) data is  submitted according to 
CAPK  timelines‐three  times  per  year.  Complete  Behavior 
Screening and submit to Family Advocate  within 45 days of 
child’s first day of school. 

 Provide  reports  that  document  that  staff  has  reviewed  the 
results of  developmental  and  behavior  screening within  30 
days after it was completed and discuss results with  parents. 

 Refer  children  identified  with  concerns  from  screening  to 
CAPK’s  Content  Area  Specialist  (CAS)  Wellness  for  further 
assessment. 

 Ensure  children  have  a  smooth  transition  experience 
following  the  guidelines  of  the  Early  Head  Start  Transition 
plan. 

 Implement a high quality research based curriculum and other 
supporting  strategies as defined by Head Start Performance 
Standards,  Head Start Act. 

 Review  and  implement  Head  Start  current  policies  and 
procedures  related  to  education,  including  the  new  Head 
Start  Child  Outcomes  Framework  in  curriculum 
implementation and the Program for Infant and Toddler  Care 
(PITC). 

 Ensure  all  lesson  plans,  children’s  education  goals  and 
ongoing  assessments  are  aligned  with  Head  Start  School 
Readiness and Early Learning Framework. 

 Provide  monthly  reports  on  status  of  home  visits,  parent 
conferences,  intentional  teaching,  individualization, 
observations/ongoing child assessments, 45 day  mandates, 
and lesson planning. 

 Provide  yearly  Pedestrian  Safety  training  to  parents  and 
children. 

 Monitor  curriculum  implementation,  individualization  and 
school  readiness  and  forward monitoring  reports  to  CAPK 
Head Start Director. 

 

CAPK will: 
 
Education – 45 CFR – 1304.21: 
 

 Provides  start‐up  instructional  materials  and  furnishings 
identified by CAPK. 

 Provide  Training  and  Technical  Assistance  in  the  following 
areas: 

 Federal Head Start regulations, Performance  Standards, 
and mandates, Head Start School  Readiness mandates, 
Head  Start  Child  Development  and  Early  Learning 
Framework;  i.e.,  Home  Visits,  Family  Partnership 
Agreements, etc. 

 Training in curriculum planning and implementation. 

 Mental Health – Appropriate Behavioral Intervention. 

 Content  expectations  for  home  visits  and  parent 
conferences. 

 Schedule  for  completing  and  submitting  results  on  the 
following: 

 Education  compliance  reports  for  home  visits, 
conferences, etc. 

 PIR status reports 

 Parent Engagement 

The training calendar will be issued at the beginning of the school year 
and updated monthly; in addition, the Head Start program will  dedicate 
a Supervisor, a Family Advocate and a coach to  train and mentor staff 
on site. 

 Hire a Family Advocate to support full enrollment,  recruiting, 
selection, eligibility and attendance  requirements, ChildPlus 
data entry. 

 Hire  Program  Partner  Manger  to  support  and  ensure  full 
compliance of all comprehensive services and regulations  as 
defined in the Head Start Performance Standards. 

 

 

32



Community Action Partnership of Kern      Page 5 of 12 
Garden Pathways, Inc.                           
 

ATTACHMENT A — SCOPE OF WORK 
 

Contractor will: 
 

Health‐ 45 CFR – 1304.20; 1304.22; 1304 
 

 Ensure that there is documentation indicating that all physical 
exams (well‐baby check‐ups) are  completed at time of child 
enrollment per the Early and  Periodic Screening Diagnosis and 
Treatment (EPSDT)  requirements by age group. 

 Review  the  results of all health  exams,  follow up on noted 
comments  and  submit  to  the  Family  Advocate  to  enter  in 
ChildPlus.  Refer  for  any  needed  treatment  or  missing 
requirements, documents and  follow up on contact log. 

 Assist parents to obtain or arrange further diagnostic  testing, 
examination, and  treatment by an appropriate  licensed or 
certified  professional  for  each  child  with  an  observable, 
known  or  suspected  health,  nutritional,  behavior  or 
developmental problem. Develop and  implement a follow‐up 
plan  for  any  condition  identified  so  that  any  needed 
treatment can begin. 

 Take current height and weight for each child, three (3) times 
a year;  and submit  information  to  the Family Advocate  for 
entry in ChildPlus. 

 Generate and review health reports (summary and  detailed) 
from  weekly  monitoring  reports  and  follow  up  on  areas 
needing improvement or focus within 5 days. 

 By July 1, of each school year, review and modify as  necessary 
policies  and  procedures  of  Health,  Mental  Health  and 
Nutrition  Services  that  meet  Head  Start  Performance 
Standards and Regulations. Submit to CAPK to review. 

 Review  the  monthly  “Partner  Monitoring  Report”  and 
complete the plan of action section for each area of the  report 
where a concern was identified no later than one  week after 
receiving reports from CAPK. 

 Submit  a  report  to CAPK within 24 hours  for  any  known or 
suspected  instances  of  child  abuse  or  neglect  and/or  any 
unusual incident. 

 Responsible  for  administering  any  authorized  medications 
and document on medication log all medication  administered 
to children as required by state guidelines. 

 

 

CAPK will: 
 

Health‐ 45 CFR – 1304.20; 1304.22; 1304 
 

 Provide  training  and  technical  assistance  on  health  related 
requirements such as: 

 Health Plans 

 Nutrition Assessments 

 Medication Administration 

 Food Allergies 

 ChildPlus data entry 

 Ensure all physical exams and health information are  entered in 
ChildPlus within 30 days of the child’s first day of  attendance. 

 Refer for annual well child exams at the appropriate  intervals and 
dental exams at least 30 days prior to due  date or expiration date 
and document referral on contact  note or in ChildPlus. 

 Ensure that all  immunizations are complete and up‐to‐date  at 
time of enrollment and entered in ChildPlus within 30  days of the 
child’s first day of attendance. Refer and follow‐  up regularly until 
all immunizations outlines by age are  completed according to CA 
Immunization Requirements.  Document all referrals and follow‐
up on contact notes. 

 Conduct and enter Nutrition Assessments in ChildPlus  within 45 
days of the child’s first day of attendance.  Follow  up on nutrition 
concerns including referral for low Hgb/Hct,  high lead levels and 
develop nutrition plans if needed as  soon as possible but no later 
than 90 days from the first  day of attendance. 

 CAPK will review growth chart to determine height and weight are 
within normal range. For children who do not fall within normal 
range, Family Advocate will submit a referral to CAPK nutrition. 

 Ensure that dental exams have been completed, including  follow 
up  treatment  and  are  entered  in  ChildPlus,  documented  on 
contact notes within 90 days of the child’s first day of  attendance. 

 Review  the  Contractor’s  policies  and  procedures  for  Health, 
Mental Health  and Nutrition  Services  to  ensure  they meet  the 
Head Start Performance Standards and Regulations. 

 Document  all  medical  follow‐up  treatment  and  services  on 
contact  notes.  This  is  to  include  all  medical  treatments  that 
improve the child’s overall health. 

 Ensure an authorization for medication  is completed by  child’s 
physician  and  signed  by  parent  prior  to  accepting  and 
administering medication. 

 Ensure  health  plans  are  developed  for  children  with  chronic 
health conditions to include medications as needed. 

 Enter  and  track  treatment needed  and  treatment  received  in 
ChildPlus. 

 Conduct vision and hearing screenings, enter in ChildPlus  within 
45 days of child’s first day of attendance and  rescreen within 4‐6 
weeks as needed. 

 Obtain  results  of  clinical  vision  screening  and  clinical  hearing 
screening  from  current  well  baby  check  by  age  at  time  of 
enrollment within 45 days of child’s first day  of attendance and 
enter in ChildPlus. Document all  referrals, if any, and follow up on 
contact notes. 

 

33



Community Action Partnership of Kern      Page 6 of 12 
Garden Pathways, Inc.                           
 

ATTACHMENT A — SCOPE OF WORK 
 

Contractor will: 
 
Family Services – 45 CFR – 1304.40: 
 

 By July 1 of each school year, review policies and  procedures 
for  Family  Services  that  meet  Head  Start  Performance 
Standards and Regulations. Submit to CAPK for review. 

 Review  monthly  Family  Services  Reports  (summary  and 
detailed) provided by Family Advocate.  Follow‐up on areas 
needing improvement or focus within one (1) week of running 
the report. 

 

CAPK will: 
 
Family Services – 45 CFR – 1304.40: 
 

 Provide  training  and  technical  assistance  on  Family  Service 
requirements such as: 

 Family Assessments and Family Partnership  Agreement 
(FPA) process. 

 ChildPlus data entry 

 Service delivery tracking 

 Family Assessments to be completed within 5 working days  of 
the child’s first day of attendance. Document on the  contact 
notes and ChildPlus on the same day the family  assessment is 
completed. 

 Provide  referrals  for  services  and  resources  that  are 
responsive to family’s needs, interests and goals on the  same 
day the need is identified. Document on the contact  notes and 
ChildPlus on the same day the referral is made. 

 Conduct  timely  follow‐up  on  family  needs,  referrals  and 
services  received as  soon as possible but not  to exceed 60 
calendar  days  depending  on  the  urgency  of  the  need. 
Document  all  follow‐up  pertaining  to  referrals  and  services 
received on the contact notes and ChildPlus on the same day 
follow‐up is conducted. 

 Initiate  the goal setting process with all  families and on  the 
contact log and ChildPlus within 5 days of the child’s first  day 
of attendance. 

 Develop  Family  Partnership  Agreements  (FPA)  based  on 
family’s  readiness  and  willingness  to  participate  in  the 
process.  Complete  the  FPA  form  if  goal  is  established. 
Document on  the contact notes and ChildPlus on  the  same 
day the FPA is developed. 

 Conduct FPA follow‐up every 60 calendar days to review  the 
status of  the  goal(s) established or  reevaluate  the  family’s 
readiness to participate in the goal setting process  if goal has 
not  been  established.    Document  the  contact  notes  and 
ChildPlus on the same day FPA follow‐up is  conducted. 

 Review  the  Contractor’s  policies  and  procedures  for  Family 
Services  to  ensure  they meet  the  Head  Start  Performance 
Standards and Regulations. 

 

 
 
 

34



Community Action Partnership of Kern      Page 7 of 12 
Garden Pathways, Inc.                           
 

ATTACHMENT A — SCOPE OF WORK 
 

Contractor will: 
 

Program Design and Management – 45 CFR – 1304.50: 
 

 Child Care License – Contractor shall maintain for the term  of 
this  Agreement  a  current  Child  Care  License  issued  by  the 
California Department of Social Services; shall provide CAPK 
with a copy of the license, and shall notify CAPK in writing  of 
any changes in the status of the license, including Type A  and 
Type B violations within 24 hours of the violation. 

 Ensure  and  provide  documentation  by  September  30th  of 
each school year  that all staff working with children receive 
annual Child Abuse Training. 

 By  July  1  of  each  year,  review  operational  procedures  to 
ensure  that  children  receive  services within  the  mandated 
time frames of the Head  Start Performance Standards and the 
Head Start Act 2007. 

 Document annual performance evaluations for employees. 

 Participate  in  Partner’s  meetings  and  trainings  related  to 
Head Start/Early Head Start. 

 Document staff individual and group training needs. 

 Provide  a  monthly  report  to  CAPK  Head  Start/State  Child 
Development Programs Director on  issues related to Program 
Information Report (PIR) with a  final report provided no later 
than June 1 of each school  year. 

 Monitor areas in the PIR that are below 100%. Develop a  plan 
of action to meet non‐compliant areas on a monthly  basis. 

 Provide a representative to participate in the following: 

 Annual Self‐Assessment 

 Monitoring Assessments 

 Complete follow‐up within 30 days of each monitoring  event 
to  document  closure  to  individual  findings.  Provide  a 
corrective action plan  for any areas of non‐compliance  that 
were found during the annual self‐assessment within 30  days. 

 Conduct  ongoing  monitoring  of  program  operations  by 
submitting monthly analysis of health, education and  family 
services data along with a plan of action for all areas of non‐
compliance and participate in Partner Coordination Meetings. 

 Report any  licensing  finding, non‐compliance with Child and 
Adult Care Food Program (CACFP), or any other loss of  funding 
that  materially  weakens  the  financial  stability  of  the 
Contractor or its ability to deliver the services required under 
this Agreement within 24 hours of the finding. 

 Make reasonable efforts to have one parent representative to 
serve on  the CAPK  Head Start Policy Council  (PC) monthly 
meetings.  Representative must be elected in accordance with 
PC By‐Laws at a local parent meeting. Parent must have a child 
currently enrolled in the Head Start Program. 

 Ensure that employees hired to perform services under the 
Agreement meet Early Head Start Standards. 

CAPK will: 
 

Program Design and Management – 45 CFR – 1304.50: 
 

 Provide  necessary  trainings  to  appropriate  staff  to  set  up 
systems and procedures as needed. 

 Provide  feedback  on  reports  and  assist  with  any  needed 
corrective action. 

 Develop  the  structure  and  training  for  the  Annual  Self‐ 
Assessment. 

 Develop  the  system  for  ongoing  monitoring  and  conduct 
monitoring of Contractor operations. 

 Participate in training of staff to provide support and  technical 
assistance and ensure  implementation of  procedures meet 
federal regulations. 

 Provide  data  regarding  service  achievements,  gaps  and 
possible solutions to meet federal regulations. 

 Update  office  equipment  and  software  necessary  to  track 
program  performance  and  document  the  yearly  Program 
Information Report (PIR). 

 Organize monthly service reviews with content area experts 
to  analyze  progress,  identify  gaps  and  help  develop  timely 
solutions. 

 Provide  monthly  Policy  Council  Minutes  via  email  for 
distribution to  parents of Head Start classrooms. 

 Use ChildPlus software for the purpose of data  collection and 
reporting entering information by Friday every week and run 
reports on Monday. 

 

35



Community Action Partnership of Kern      Page 8 of 12 
Garden Pathways, Inc.                           
 

ATTACHMENT A — SCOPE OF WORK 
 

Contractor will: 
 

Training: 
 

 Provide staff  training on State and Federal regulations  and 
mandates,  mutually  coordinated  with  CAPK  and  other 
partners. 

 Provide staff training related to other areas of the  program as 
requested by CAPK. 

 Make available at least one day per year for  the line staff to 
receive training on Head Start  mandates. 

 In‐Kind:  Provide  documentation  for  Non‐Federal  Share  to 
CAPK each month, including July and August  (amount is  25% 
of Federal funds expended). 

 Contractor will  be  responsible  for  requesting  in writing  for 
staff  to  attend  Head  Start  specific  approved  conferences, 
classes, trainings and workshops. 

 

CAPK will: 
 

Training: 
 

 Staff to provide groups as well as on‐site training as  needed. 

 Registration for outside training and conferences: CAPK will 
be  responsible for registration and incidental expenses for 
KCCD staff to attend Head Start specific approved 
conferences, classes, trainings, workshops and will invoice 
with receipts attached.  Request to attend must be approved 
by CAPK in writing. 

 

 

36



Community Action Partnership of Kern      Page 9 of 12 
Garden Pathways, Inc.                           
 

ATTACHMENT B – PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 

1. Payment Limits – Payment by CAPK for services performed by Contractor shall be six hundred dollars ($600.00) per enrolled 
Early Head Start (“EHS”) Partnership child per month, for a maximum of eight (8) enrolled EHS Partnership children. The total 
maximum monthly reimbursement is four thousand eight hundred dollars ($4,800). 

2. Total payments to Contractor under this this portion of the Agreement shall not exceed $153,600, equal to 32 months at 
$4,800 per month. 

•  Budget Period 1     01/01/2017 – 08/31/2017     8 months X $4,800  $38,400 

•  Budget Period 2     09/01/2017 – 08/31/2018   12 months X $4,800  $57,600 

•  Budget Period 3        09/01/2018 – 08/31/2019   12 months X $4,800  $57,600 

In addition, training and technical funds to cover trainings, conferences, classes and workshops for Contractor staff will be 
covered by CAPK when they are pre‐approved and deemed necessary to meet Head Start requirements. 

Contractor shall submit invoices for services rendered to CAPK within thirty (30) days of the end of the calendar month.  
Contractor shall furnish invoices in a form acceptable to CAPK.  All amounts paid by CAPK to the Contractor shall be subject 
to audit by CAPK.  Upon receipt of an acceptable invoice, payment shall be made in a reasonable time upon approval by 
CAPK that payment shall be made to the address specified in section 10 of the Agreement. 

3. Payment Basis – Subject to the payment limit in paragraph one (1) of the Agreement above, use of funds received by the 
Contractor  for  services  provided  to  CAPK  are  restricted  to  the  performance  of  the  Contractor’s  obligations  under  this 
Agreement. 

4. Loss of Subsidy – Eligible children identified as EHS participants may not be dis‐enrolled as a result of a loss of subsidy. In the 
case of where an EHS slot  is not subsidized, CAPK will pay a non‐subsidized rate of no more  than the Contractor’s other 
subsidy daily  rate  for  any unsubsidized EHS‐Child Care Partnership  child. CAPK will  continue  to make payments  for  the 
unsubsidized child until the child ages out of the program, the parent declines services or secures child care elsewhere. CAPK 
will work with the Contractor to ensure continuity of services due to a loss of subsidy either in the Center Based option or 
offering EHS Home Based services through CAPK’s EHS Home Based program. The non‐subsidized rate can either be short 
term until subsidy resumes or  long term to support continued EHS services to the child and family.  In the case of  loss of 
subsidy, Contractor will submit request for payment in writing. Payments made for loss of subsidy pursuant to this paragraph 
will be in addition to any payments made to Contractor pursuant to paragraph one (1) above. 

5. Allowable Costs – Contractor’s allowable costs are only those which are approved in advance by CAPK and in accordance with 
Office of Budget and Management (OMB) Uniform Guidance 2 CFR Part 200, including any amendments. 

6. Fiscal Provisions – 

a. CAPK will notify Contractor  in writing of any modification, payments, delays, or cancellations of the federal grant 
that will affect the program within five (5) business days of CAPK’s receipt of such notice. 

b. Contractor  is entitled to receive reimbursement for  its actual costs of providing the facilities, goods, and services 
(collectively “Services”) only as specified in this Agreement.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees it is not entitled 
to any payments over and above those specified in this Agreement unless approved in writing by CAPK.  In no event 
will Contractor receive reimbursement exceeding the amount stated  in this Agreement, except  if  it has received 
prior written authorization from CAPK. 

c. Compensation may be reduced or withheld in the event that Contractor fails to comply with the provisions of this 
Agreement, or does not perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

d. The Contractor shall contribute Non‐Federal Share, which is a match of federal funds required by the Head Start Act, 
equal to 25% of Federal funds expended.  Such contributions may be in cash, donated supplies and services, reduced 
rates for supplies and expenses, fair rental value, and/or volunteer services received.    Non‐Federal Share may also 
include other non‐Federal funds and related expenses that benefit the EHS‐Child Care Partnership (as defined by the 
Administration  for  Children  and  Families),  as  determined  solely  by  CAPK.   All Non‐Federal  Share  contributions 
pursuant to this Agreement must be approved as such by CAPK in accordance with Office of Budget and Management 
(OMB) Uniform Guidance 2 CFR Part 200.Contributions must be realized and recorded in the same budget period as 
the Federal funds are received. 

 Budget Period 1  01/01/2017 – 08/31/2017     8 months X $4,800 @ 25%  $  9,600 
 Budget Period 2  09/01/2017 – 08/31/2018   12 months X $4,800 @ 25%  $14,400 
 Budget Period3  09/01/2018 – 08/31/2019   12 months X $4,800 @ 25%  $14,400 

37



Community Action Partnership of Kern      Page 10 of 12 
Garden Pathways, Inc.                           
 

ATTACHMENT C 
 

Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Additional Terms and Conditions 

 

1. TAXES.  The Contractor is solely responsible to pay all taxes and comply with all Federal, State, and local laws, 
ordinances, rules, regulations and lawful orders bearing on the performance of work.  

2. ASSIGNMENT OF SUBCONTRACTING.  The Contractor may not assign or transfer the Agreement, or any interest 
therein or claim thereunder, or subcontract any portion of the work thereunder, without the prior written 
approval of CAPK.  If CAPK consents to such assignment or transfer, the terms and conditions of the Agreement 
shall be binding upon any assignee or transferee.  Any transfer shall be considered an addendum to the 
Agreement and must be included as such.  

3. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE OF CAPK.  CAPK may terminate the Agreement at any time by giving written 
notice to the Contractor of such termination and specifying the effective date thereof.  In that event, all finished 
or unfinished documents and other materials as described herein, at the option of CAPK, shall become its 
property.  If the Agreement is terminated by CAPK as provided herein, the Contractor shall be entitled to receive 
just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work completed on such documents and other materials. 
The Contractor hereby expressly waives any and all claims for damages or compensation arising under the 
Agreement except as set forth in this section in the event of such termination.  

4. CHANGES.  CAPK may from time to time, require changes in the scope of the services of the Contractor to be 
performed hereunder.  Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount of the Contractor’s 
compensation which are mutually agreed upon by and between CAPK and the Contractor, shall be effective 
when incorporated in written amendments to the Agreement.  Amendments shall be valid only after approval 
by Contractor and CAPK’s Executive Director.  

5. CLAIMS.  All claims for money due or to become due to the Contractor from CAPK under the Agreement may not 
be assigned to a bank, trust company, or other financial institution without CAPK approval.  Notice or requests 
of any such assignment or transfer shall be furnished promptly in writing to CAPK.  

6. NOTICE.  Any notice or notices required or permitted to be given pursuant to the Agreement may be personally 
served on the other party by the party giving such notice, or may be served by certified mail, return receipt 
requested.  

7. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION.  The Contractor agrees to abide by all State and Federal Affirmative Action policies and 
laws.  

8. DISPUTE RESOLUTION.  Any dispute arising regarding the interpretation or implementation of the Agreement, 
including any claims for breach of the Agreement, shall be resolved by submitting the claim for arbitration to the 
American Arbitration Association in accordance with its rules and procedures applicable to commercial disputes.  
The location of any arbitration hearing shall be Bakersfield, California, and any enforcement of the arbitrator’s 
decision shall be brought in the Superior Court of the County of Kern, Bakersfield, California.  

9. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY.  All hiring and other employment practices by the Contractor shall be 
non‐discriminatory, based on merit and qualifications without regard to race, color, religion, national origin, 
ancestry, disability, medical condition, marital status, age or sex.  

10. SBE/MBE/WBE POLICY STATEMENT.  It is the policy of Community Action Partnership of Kern, consistent with 
Federal, State and local laws, to promote and encourage the development, participation, and continued 
expansion of Small Business Enterprises, Minority Business Enterprises and Women’s Business Enterprises.  

11. CONFIDENTIALITY.  The Contractor shall use his or her best efforts to keep confidential any information 
obtained during the performance of the Agreement. 

12. RESPONSIBILITY.  If Contractor is part of a corporation, the individual or individuals who sign the Agreement on 
behalf of the corporation are jointly responsible for performance of the Agreement.  

 

38



Community Action Partnership of Kern      Page 11 of 12 
Garden Pathways, Inc.                           
 

 

13. PROTEST BY CONTRACTOR:  If the Contractor wishes to file a protest against CAPK for any action, the Contractor 
must do so in writing with CAPK within 72 hours after the action to be protested has occurred.  All protests will 
be taken under advisement.  Any protests received after that will not be recognized.  

14. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  In accordance with California Public Contract Code 10410, no officer or employee of 
CAPK shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee receives 
compensation or has a financial interest in the Agreement, which may be in whole, or in part, sponsored or 
funded by a Local, State, or Federal agency.  Also, no relative of an employee of CAPK may enter into or bid on 
an Agreement while said employee is still employed by CAPK.  No relative of an employee of CAPK may bid on an 
Agreement until 12 months after the date said employee of CAPK has left employment of CAPK, either 
voluntarily or involuntarily.  It is contrary to CAPK policy for any CAPK employee to personally solicit, demand or 
receive any gratuity of any kind from a Contractor in connection with any decision affecting a CAPK purchase or 
Agreement for Goods or Services.  Thus, if such a case were to occur, the Contractor may file a protest with 
CAPK as specified in the section titled “Protest by Contractor.” 

15. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION: Contractor, under penalty of perjury, certified that, except as 
noted below, he/she or any person associated therewith in the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, 
manager:  

a. Is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of ineligibility by 
any federal agency;  

b. Has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded or determined ineligible by any federal agency 
within the past three (3) years;  

c. Does not have a proposed debarment pending; and   

d. Has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against it by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct within the past three (3) years.   

If there are any exceptions to the Certifications above, insert the exceptions in the following space:  

 

Exceptions will not necessarily result in denial of award, but will be considered in determining Contractor 
responsibility.  For any exception noted above, indicate below to whom it applies, initiating agency, and dates of 
action.   

Note: Providing false information may result in criminal prosecution or administrative sanctions.   

16. WORKER'S COMPENSATION: Labor Code Section 3700 provides:  

“Every employer except the State and all political subdivisions or institutions thereof, shall secure the payment 
of compensation in one or more of the following ways:  

"(a) By being insured against liability to pay compensation in one or to more than one of the insurers 
duly authorized to write compensation insurance in this State.  

"(b) By securing from the Director of Industrial Relations a certificate of consent to self‐insure, which 
may be given upon furnishing proof satisfactory to the Director of Industrial Relations of ability to self‐
insure and to pay any compensation that may become due to his employees."  

Contractor is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer to 
be insured against liability for Worker’s Compensation or to undertake self‐insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of that Code, and Contractor will comply with those provisions before commencing the 
performance of the work of the Agreement.  

(In accordance with Article 5 [commencing at Section 1860], Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 of the Labor 
Code, this certificate must be signed and filed with the awarding body prior to performing any work 
under the Agreement.)  

17. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor shall procure, furnish and maintain for the duration of the Agreement 
the following types and limits of insurance herein:  

  

39



Community Action Partnership of Kern      Page 12 of 12 
Garden Pathways, Inc.                           
 

a. Automobile Liability Insurance, providing coverage on an occurrence basis for bodily injury, including 
death, of one or more persons, property damage and personal injury, with limits of not less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence; and the policy shall:  

b. Provide coverage for owned, non‐owned and hired autos.  
c. Contain an additional insured endorsement in favor of Community Action Partnership of Kern, its board, 

officers, agents, employees and volunteers.  
d. Broad Form Commercial General Liability Insurance, ISO form CG00 01 11 85 or 88 providing coverage 

on an occurrence basis for bodily injury, including death, of one or more persons, property damage and 
personal injury, with limits of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence; and the 
policy shall:  

e. Provide Contractual Liability coverage for the terms of the Agreement.  
f. Contain an additional insured endorsement in favor in favor of Community Action Partnership of Kern, 

its board, officers, agents, employees and volunteers.  
g. Workers' compensation insurance with statutory limits and employer's liability insurance with limits of 

not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence; and the policy shall contain a waiver of 
subrogation endorsement in favor of Community Action Partnership of Kern, its board, officers, agents, 
employees and volunteers.  

All policies required of the Contractor shall be primary insurance as to Community Action Partnership of 
Kern, its board, officers, agents employees and volunteers and any insurance or self‐insurance maintained 
by Community Action Partnership of Kern, its board, officers, agents employees and designated volunteers 
shall be in excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.  Additional insured 
endorsement shall use ISO form CG20 10 11 85 (in no event with an edition date later than 1990).  

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best’s rating of no less than A:VII.  Any deductibles, self‐
insured retentions or insurance in lesser amounts, or lack of certain types of insurance otherwise required 
by the Agreement, or insurance rated below Best’s A:VII, must be declared prior to execution of the 
Agreement and approved by CAPK in writing.  

All policies shall contain an endorsement providing Community Action Partnership of Kern with thirty (30) 
days written notice of cancellation or material change in policy language or terms. All policies shall provide 
that there shall be continuing liability thereon, notwithstanding any recovery on any policy.  

The insurance required hereunder shall be maintained until all work required to be performed by the 
Agreement is satisfactorily completed.  

Contractor shall furnish CAPK with a certificate of insurance and required endorsements evidencing the 
insurance required.  CAPK may withdraw its offer of an Agreement or cancel the Agreement if certificates of 
insurance and endorsements required have not been provided prior to the execution of the Agreement.   

  

 
 

Signature                    Date  
  
 
  Print Name 
 
 
  Company Name 

 

 

40



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF 
KERN 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To: Board of Directors 
 
 
 
From:  Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start and Child Development Services  
 
Date:  January 25, 2017 

Subject: Agenda Item VI(e): San Joaquin County Food Service Agreement – Action Item 
 
 
A request to renew our contract for child and adult meals for our San Joaquin County 
Early Head Start program began in December 2016. The proposal incorporates the 3rd 
program year (February 1, 2017 – January 31, 2018) food service expense. The annual 
total for the contract will exceed the approval threshold of $200,000 and require CAPK 
Board approval. 
 
The terms of the contract will meet all Federal, State, and agency policies. The 
procurement process has met all requirements of agency policy and will be awarded to 
Creative Child Care, Incorporated and subsequently executed with Board Approval. The 
anticipated annual dollar amount based on the terms of the contract will be approximately 
$287,280.00. Variables include any adjustments in program options, annual inflation of 
food costs, and continued funding.  
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve the San Joaquin County Early 
Head Start Food Service Vendor Contract with Creative Child Care, Incorporated for 
2017-2018 and expense of the projected dollar amount of $287,280 for the San Joaquin 
County Food Vendor contract supporting the next year of food service.  
 
Attachments: Food Service Contract  

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF 
KERN 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To: Board of Directors 
 
 
From:  Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start and Child Development Services  

Date:  January 25, 2017 

Subject: Agenda Item VI(f): Waiver of Non-Federal Share for San Joaquin County – Action 
Item 

 
 
CAPK is in its second year of implementing the San Joaquin County Early Head Start 
program. As we near the end of our second funding year, we have yet to become fully 
operational with delays in the opening of sites and an over saturation of Home Based 
program options. As the majority of or non-federal share stems from parent volunteers, 
reaching our goal has been a challenge by not being fully enrolled. Our staff in San 
Joaquin County have increased efforts to expand non-federal share using varied  
strategies. These efforts will continue as we open the remaining facilities and become 
fully enrolled. With this said, staff will request a non-federal share waiver from the Office 
of Head Start’s Regional IX office for $1,049,000.    
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve the San Joaquin County Early 
Head Start request to submit a waiver for the non-federal share for the 2016-2017 funding 
year.  
 

61



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

To:  Board of Directors 
 
 
From:  Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start / State Pre-School  

Date:  January 25, 2017 

Subject: Agenda Item VI(g): Community Care Licensing Late Fees – Action Item 
 

 
About eighteen months ago in mid-2015, we brought to the Board of Directors a concern regarding 
Community Care Licensing late fees. 
 
Late fees in the amount of $7,065 were initially assessed on a missed annual fee payment at the 
end of 2010.  Each year as CAPK paid its annual licensing fees, a portion of the payment went to 
satisfy the late fee rather than to the annual fees.  Additional late fees were then assessed on the 
portion of the annual fees that were “unpaid”.  The late fees continued to accrue.  This situation 
was discovered by staff with the receipt of the November 2015 invoice, which requested $40,944 in 
late fees. 
 
In an effort to resolve the recurring late fees, CAPK contacted Rebecca Varela, Licensing Program 
Manager, Fresno Regional Child Care and maintained ongoing communication.  Ms. Varela 
advised CAPK to pay the annual fees only until the matter could be investigated by Community 
Care Licensing. At the time, the Board approved payment of the initial fee, and instructed staff to 
attempt to negotiate the accrued late fees down to a more reasonable level. 
 
In December 2016, we received a letter from Community Care Licensing notifying us that all of the 
accrued late fees would be waived with the exception of $7,065 (the amount of the initial late fee). 
This amount was to be paid before January 7, 2017, to avoid any additional fees, and the issue 
would be brought to closure. The Executive Director, upon approval from the Board Chair 
authorized the payment of the fee, with a requirement that it be brought back to the full Board. 
 
I would like to reassure the Board that we have strengthened and improved our systems to ensure 
that all invoices received are immediately routed to Finance for payment.  All anniversary licensing 
dates will be included in our monthly monitoring review system, and reminders and alerts of 
upcoming due dates have been programmed into Microsoft Outlook.  We have taken additional 
measures to ensure that staff absences or departures do not interrupt the system or delay 
payment. 
 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends the Board of Directors approve the retroactive payment of late fees from the 
discretionary account in the amount of $7,065. 
 

62



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Janelle Gonzalez, Program Governance Coordinator 

Date:  January 25, 2017 

Subject: Agenda Item VI(h):  Proposed changes to the 2016 – 2017 Policy Council Bylaws  

Staff is recommending changes to the current Bylaws to support the revised Head Start Performance 
Standards 
 
ARTICLE III 
MEMBERSHIP 
Current: 
Section 2 Types of Membership 

1. Community Representatives 
Community Representatives may be drawn from the local community: businesses; public or 
private community, civic, and professional organizations; and others who are familiar with 
resources and services for low-income children and families, including, for example, the parents 
of formerly enrolled children (45 CFR 1304.50 (b) (3)). 

a. One (1) Community Representative appointed by community agency.  Responsibilities will 
include a monthly verbal report on agency events and support to the Head Start program. 

b. One (1) Community Representative-Past Parent Representative. The Past Parent 
elected to the PC must not have a child/children enrolled in the HS/EHS Program and 
participating in elementary school Parent Teacher Associations (if applicable). 
Responsibilities will include working with the Governance Coordinator attending monthly 
parent meetings and discussing benefits of Head Start program and in kind.   

Proposed: 
Section 2 Types of Membership 

1. Community Representatives 
Community Representatives may be drawn from the local community: businesses; public or 
private community, civic, and professional organizations; and others who are familiar with 
resources and services for low-income children and families, including, for example, the parents 
of formerly enrolled children. (2)(B)(ii)(II) 

a. Two (2) Community Representatives appointed by a community agency.  Responsibilities 
will include a monthly verbal report on agency events and support to the Head Start 
program. 

b. One (1) Community Representative-Past Parent Representative. The Past Parent elected 
to the PC must not have a child/children enrolled in the HS/EHS Program. Past parent 
representative must be in an elementary school Parent Teacher Association or Parent 
Teacher Organization. Responsibilities will include a monthly verbal report sharing 
information that supports School Readiness for Head Start parents. 

c. Community Representatives may serve on the Policy Council for a total of five years.  
Representatives must stand for election annually.  (collective total as a parent PC Member 
and/or Community Representative PC Member) 

 

63



Proposed Changes to the 2016-2017 Policy Council Bylaws 
Page 2 of 7 

Current: 
2. Board of Director’s Representative: 

One (1) member of the Board of Directors of the Community Action Partnership of Kern will  
Serve on the Policy Council each year. 

Proposed: 
2. Board of Director’s Representative: 

One (1) member of the Board of Directors of the Community Action Partnership of Kern will be 
appointed to serve on the Policy Council each year. The appointed Board Member may serve as 
the Board of Director’s Representative for up to five years (collective total as a parent PC Member, 
Community Representative PC Member and/or Board of Director’s Community Representative). 
 

Current: 
Section 7: Term of Membership 
Policy Council representatives are limited to a combined total of three one-year terms.  Parent 
representatives must stand for election annually.  Community representatives also must be selected 
annually.  Any member holding membership for four months or more on the Policy Council will be 
considered to have served one full year. 

Proposed: 
Section 7: Term of Membership 
Head Start Policy Council representatives are limited to a combined total of three one-year terms.  Parent 
representatives must stand for election annually.  Once a Parent has served a total of three years and 
their child is no longer enrolled in the program they may seek re-election as a past parent community 
representative for an additional two years.  Any member holding membership for four months or more on 
the Policy Council will be considered to have served one full year. 

ARTICLE IV 
OFFICERS 
Current: 
SECTION 1.  Officers of the Policy Council 

a. The Policy Council shall elect a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Secretary, Treasurer, and 
 Parliamentarian. 
b. These officers shall perform the duties prescribed by these Bylaws and Robert’s Rules of 
 Order, Newly Revised.  
c. Currently enrolled parents may hold any office.  
d. Officers will be elected by a majority vote at the first Policy Council meeting of the new school 

year and shall serve from election until the seating of new officers the following year. 
e. In the event that a standing officer is elected to another executive position, that person will 
 be automatically terminated from his/her former position.   
f. No member shall hold more than one office at a time.  
g. If the Vice-Chairperson, Secretary, Treasurer or Parliamentarian resigns or is removed from  

his/her office, an election will be held at the next Policy Council meeting after the  official 
resignation announcement or removal process is voted upon. The Policy Council Chairperson 
must appoint a Policy Council member to fill a vacant office on an interim basis until the next 
Policy Council meeting where a quorum is present and an election for that office can be 
conducted.  

h. If the Chairperson resigns or is removed from his/her office, the Vice Chairperson will 
 assume the office of Chairperson for the remainder of the term of office.  
 
 

64



Proposed Changes to the 2016-2017 Policy Council Bylaws 
Page 3 of 7 

Proposed: 
SECTION 1.  Officers of the Policy Council 

a. The Policy Council shall elect a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Secretary, Treasurer, and 
Parliamentarian. 

b. These officers shall perform the duties prescribed by these Bylaws. 
c. Currently enrolled parents may hold any office.  
d. Officers will be elected by a majority vote at the first Policy Council meeting of the new school 

year and shall serve from election until the seating of new officers the following year. 
e. In the event that a standing officer is elected to another executive position, that person will 
 be automatically terminated from his/her former position.   
f. No member shall hold more than one office at a time.  
g. If the Vice-Chairperson, Secretary, Treasurer or Parliamentarian resigns or is removed from  

his/her office, an election will be held at the next Policy Council meeting after the  official 
resignation announcement or removal process is voted upon. The Policy Council Chairperson 
must appoint a Policy Council member to fill a vacant office on an interim basis until the next 
Policy Council meeting where a quorum is present and an election for that office can be 
conducted.  

h. If the Chairperson resigns or is removed from his/her office, the Vice Chairperson will 
 assume the office of Chairperson for the remainder of the term of office.  

 
Current: 
SECTION 2.  Functions 

1. Chairperson 
The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Policy Council according to Robert’s 

 Rules of Order, and the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
a. Conduct all meetings of the Policy Council. 
b. No later than ten (10) days prior to the meeting, assists in the development of the agenda with 

the Head Start/State Child Development Director and Program Governance Coordinator. 
c. Refrain from entering into debates during the Policy Council meeting. 
d. Call the meeting to order on time, follow the agenda and be able to clarify the business at 

hand at all times. 
e. Will explain each motion as needed. 
f. May vote to break ties. 
g. Appoint members to standing committees and special committees as necessary. 
h. Appoint members to temporarily assume duties of absent officers. 
i. In the event of resignation or termination of any Policy Council officer, the Chairperson may 

appoint a Policy Council representative to fill the vacancy on an interim basis until the next 
regular Policy Council meeting (see Article IV, Section I). 

j. The Chairperson will be primary officer to serve as a member of the Board. In the event the 
Chairperson cannot fulfill these duties termination may take place based on CAPK BOD By-
Laws as stated in Section 8. Removal. If the removal is approved by the BOD the PC member 
will be removed as the PC Chairperson and may seek re-election at following PC meeting.  

 
Proposed: 
SECTION 2.  Functions 

1. Chairperson 
The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Policy Council.  
a. Conduct all meetings of the Policy Council. 
b. No later than ten (10) days prior to the meeting, assists in the development of the agenda with 

the Head Start/State Child Development Director and Program Governance Coordinator. 
c. Refrain from entering into debates during the Policy Council meeting. 

65



Proposed Changes to the 2016-2017 Policy Council Bylaws 
Page 4 of 7 

d. Call the meeting to order on time, follow the agenda and be able to clarify the business at 
hand at all times. 

e. Will explain each motion as needed. 
f. May vote to break ties. 
g. Appoint members to standing committees and special committees as necessary. 
h. Appoint members to temporarily assume duties of absent officers. 
i. In the event of resignation or termination of any Policy Council officer, the Chairperson may 

appoint a Policy Council representative to fill the vacancy on an interim basis until the next 
regular Policy Council meeting (see Article IV, Section I). 

 
 
Current: 
SECTION 2.  Functions 

3. Secretary 
a. The Secretary will chair the Personnel Committee 
b. Call roll and maintain a record of members’ attendance. 
c. Keep a record of all Policy Council minutes. 
d. Perform other duties as may be assigned to him/her by the Chairperson. 
e. In collaboration with the Staff Policy Council Recorder, assist with final documentation of 

minutes and motions, as needed. 
f. Ensures that Policy Council members sign in when attending meetings. 

 
Proposed: 
SECTION 2.  Functions 

3. Secretary 
a. The Secretary will chair the School Readiness Committee 
b. Call roll and maintain a record of members’ attendance. 
c. Keep a record of all Policy Council minutes. 
d. Perform other duties as may be assigned to him/her by the Chairperson. 
e. In collaboration with the Staff Policy Council Recorder, assist with final documentation of 

minutes and motions, as needed. 
f. Ensures that Policy Council members sign in when attending meetings. 

 
Current: 
SECTION 3.  Training of Officers 
Training will be provided by appropriate agency staff or consultants within one month of an officer’s 
election.  Training will include, but not be limited to, the functions, duties, and responsibilities of the 
officers, how to make a motion, the Ralph M. Brown Act, and Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised, 
etc.  Follow-up training will be provided as needed by agency staff/consultants. 
 
Proposed: 
SECTION 3.  Training of Officers 
Training will be provided by appropriate agency staff or consultants within one month of an officer’s 
election.  Training will include the functions, duties, responsibilities of the officers and may include how 
to make a motion, the Ralph M. Brown Act, and Robert’s Rules of Order as Newly Revised, etc.  Follow-
up training will be provided as needed by agency staff/consultants. 
 
ARTICLE VIII 
STANDING COMMITTEES 
Current: 
SECTION 1.  Standing Committees 

a.  Each Policy Council member must participate on one committee. Each Policy Council member 
66



Proposed Changes to the 2016-2017 Policy Council Bylaws 
Page 5 of 7 

will sit on a maximum of two (2) committees, and a minimum of one (1) committee, during the 
course of the Policy Council year. Committees shall develop written recommendations and will be 
reflected in committee meeting minutes and placed on the next PC Agenda. Minutes shall be 
available upon request with the exception of meetings involving discussions of the agency 
employees or potential employees, which are deemed confidential.  

 Budget and Finance-Seven (7) members 
 Planning –Seven (7) members 
 Bylaws –Seven (7) members 
 Personnel –Five (5) members  

b. The Executive Committee shall be comprised of five (5) members. The Chairperson, Vice 
Chairperson, Secretary, Parliamentarian, and Treasurer of the Policy Council.   
The Executive Committee will determine its meeting schedule. 

c. In the event a standing committee is unable to carry out its assigned functions in a timely manner 
(i.e., inability to maintain membership, inability to obtain meeting quorum, etc.), the Policy Council 
will be responsible for all functions described in Article II, Section 2 

Proposed: 
SECTION 1.  Standing Committees 

a. Each Policy Council member must participate on one committee. Each Policy Council member 
will sit on a maximum of two (2) committees, and a minimum of one (1) committee, during the 
course of the Policy Council year. Committees shall develop written recommendations and will be 
reflected in committee meeting minutes and placed on the next PC Agenda. Minutes shall be 
available upon request with the exception of meetings involving discussions of the agency 
employees or potential employees, which are deemed confidential.  

 Head Start Representative for  CAPK’s Board of Director’s- one (1) member  
 Budget and Finance-Seven (7) members 
 Planning –Seven (7) members 
 Bylaws –Seven (7) members 
 School Readiness –five (5) members  

b. The Executive Committee shall be comprised of five (5) members. The Chairperson, Vice 
Chairperson, Secretary, Parliamentarian, and Treasurer of the Policy Council.   
The Executive Committee will determine its meeting schedule. 

c. In the event a standing committee is unable to carry out its assigned functions in a timely manner 
(i.e., inability to maintain membership, inability to obtain meeting quorum, etc.), the Policy Council 
will be responsible for all functions described in Article II, Section 2. 
 

 
ARTICLE VIII 
STANDING COMMITTEES 
Proposed Addition:  
SECTION 4.  Function of the Board of Directors Representative 
 Policy Council members will be given the opportunity to nominate and vote for a 

representative of the Policy Council to be seated on the Board of Directors. 

a. The elected Policy Council member will need to be available to attend all monthly Board of 
Director’s meetings to represent the Head Start program. 

b. The elected member will meet with the Program Governance Coordinator 5 days prior to the 
Board meeting to review and prepare for verbal report provided to the Board. 

c. In the case the current member is unable to fulfill duties as a Board Representative, the 
representative position will be re-open for election of a new member at the following Policy 
Council meeting. 

67



Proposed Changes to the 2016-2017 Policy Council Bylaws 
Page 6 of 7 

Current: 
SECTION 5.  Function of the Personnel Committee 
The Policy Council Secretary will chair the Personnel Committee. The Personnel Committee will 
perform the following functions: 

a. The Personnel Committee will match the number of members that serve on the Board of 
Directors Personnel Committee.  If additional members are needed a Policy Council 
Representative may be asked to participate on this committee.  The Personnel Committee will 
send an equal amount of the Board representation if circumstances call for a Joint Personnel 
Committee Meeting. 

b. The Personnel Committee will work with the Head Start/State Child Development Director and 
other agency staff in developing/reviewing the following for recommendation to the Policy 
Council for approval/disapproval: 

1. 1304.50 (h) internal dispute resolution.  Each Policy Council or Policy Committee jointly 
must establish written procedures for resolving internal disputes, including impasse 
procedures, between the governing body and policy group.  The Personnel Committee will 
review, at least annually, the written procedures for resolving internal disputes, including 
impasse procedures, between the Community Action Partnership of Kern Board of 
Directors and the Policy Council as it appears in the Community Action Partnership of 
Kern Employee Policy Manual, and revise, review, update as deemed necessary. 

2. 1304.50(d)(1)(ix) Program personnel policies and subsequent changes to those policies, 
in accordance with 45 CFR 1301.31, including standards of conduct for program staff, 
consultants, and volunteers.  The Personnel Committee will review, revise, update at least 
annually, the Community Action Partnership of Kern Employee Policy Manual as it 
relates to Head Start/Early Head Start personnel, and make recommendations as are 
deemed necessary or advisable. 

3. 1304.50(d)(1)(x)  Decisions to hire or terminate the Early Head Start or Head Start director 
of the grantee agency.  The Head Start/Early Head Start Policy Council will participate in 
paper screening and interview process ( if PC Member is available) for Head Start/Early 
Head Start positions and make recommendations to the Policy Council concerning the 
hiring of such applicants. In accordance with the Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Employee Policy Manual, and other applicable local, state, and federal regulations. 

4. 1304.50(d)(1)(xi)  Decisions to hire or terminate any person who works primarily for the 
Early Head Start or Head Start program of the grantee agency.  The Director will make 
recommendations to the Personnel Committee of pending termination of Head Start/Early 
Head Start employees and the Personnel Committee will make recommendations in such 
cases to the Policy Council, in accordance with the Community Action Partnership of 
Kern Employee Policy Manual, and other applicable local, state, and federal regulations. 

 
Proposed:  
SECTION 5.  Function of the School Readiness Committee 
The Policy Council Secretary will chair the School Readiness Committee. The School Readiness 
Committee will perform the following functions: 

a. The School Readiness Committee will work with the Staff Sponsor to review current School 
Readiness goals based on most recent Desired Results data collected during annual 
assessment timeframes. 

i. Each Committee member will review current curriculum studies within the 
classroom.   

ii. Each committee member will be given opportunity to provide feedback based on 
current curriculum practice and compare to current School Readiness goals. 

iii. Each committee member will be given the opportunity to review and make 
recommendations to current School Readiness goals as needed or on an annual 
basis. 

68



Proposed Changes to the 2016-2017 Policy Council Bylaws 
Page 7 of 7 

iv. Staff Sponsor will provide current Head start job openings for the Coach Mentor 
position and discuss criteria required for the job opening.  To include, current pay 
rate based on experience and education held by potential applicant and/or 
interested candidate. 

 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends the Board of Directors approve the proposed changes to the Policy Council Bylaws to 
support the revised HS Performance Standards. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

69



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
December 14, 2016 

12:00 p.m. 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

Garth Corrigan called the meeting to order at 12:03p.m. at the Community Action Partnership of 
Kern Administrative Building, 5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA. 

2. Roll Call 
 

Roll Call was taken with a quorum present: 
 
Board Members Present: Garth Corrigan, Curtis Floyd, Fred Plane and Warren Peterson 
 
Board Members Absent: James Camp and Jose Gonzalez 
 
Others Present: Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director; Carmen Segovia, Director of Health and 
Nutrition; Emilio Wagner, Director of Operations; Michele Nowell, Director of Human Resources; 
Ralph Martinez, Director of Community Development; Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head 
Start/State Child Development; Christine Anami, Director of Finance; other CAPK staff. 
 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 

 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Executive Committee meeting agenda for 
December 14, 2016. Carried by unanimous vote. (Plane/Peterson) 
 

4. Public Forum: (The public may address the committee on items not on the agenda.  
Speakers are limited to 3 minutes.  If more than one person wishes to address the same 
topic, the total group time for the topic will be 10 minutes.  Please state your name before 
making your presentation.) 
 
No one addressed the Committee. 
 

5. Special Presentations 
 
No special presentation were made. 
 

6. New Business 
 
a. Removal of Board Member Jose Gonzalez; Category II, Low-Income Sector 

Representative serving South Kern – Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director – Action Item  
 
Jeremy Tobias stated that Jose Gonzalez abandoned his position as Board Member, the 
last meeting he attended was on March 30, 2016. By-laws specify grounds for removal 
of board members due to unexcused absences. Curtis Floyd inquired if there were 
emergency contacts on the Board application. Jeremy stated that Amanda Norman 

70



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 
December 14, 2016 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 

contacted the phone numbers on file and she was unable to locate someone. Curtis 
would like an emergency contact number on file for all future Board Members. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the removal of Board member Jose 
Gonzalez. Carried by unanimous vote. (Floyd/Peterson)  
 

b. Updated Employee Policy Manual – Michele Nowell, Director of Human Resources – 
Info Item  
 
Michele Nowell stated that the employee policy manual has been completely revised. 
The union contract language has been left out of the manual, however, there is a note 
on the manual that indicates the union contract takes precedence. Michele asked for 
comments and feedback. 
 
Warren Peterson asked if there was an existing policy manual. He indicated that 
normally there is redlined version when changes are being made. Michele indicated that 
yes, we have an existing manual in place. During orientation, employees are given an 
employee policy manual. During this time, staff go over attendance and other imported 
aspects of employment. Jeremy stated that a redlined document would be difficult since 
this was a complete restructure and rewriting of the current employee policy manual. 
There is a list of significant policy changes included. Jeremy stated that he is not 
requesting Board approval at this time, but would like them to review the document and 
offer any comments or suggestions. 
 
Fred Plane would like to know if the union was notified. Michele said that the union was 
notified 30-days in advance. A letter of notification was mailed to SEIU on November 3, 
2016, and a copy of the manual was sent via certified mail on December 14, 2016. 
Michele would like to know how to proceed with sharing the draft document with the full 
board at this time, or waiting until the agenda goes out. Curtis requested that the entire 
board be sent the document now. Fred requested to note that the entire document was 
reformatted and to share a list of the changes. 
 

c. Amendment to the Employee Sick Leave Cash Out Policy – Michele Nowell, Director of 
Human Resources – Action Item  
 
Michele stated that the agency has previously offered employee sick leave cash out for 
many years. It is intended to offer an incentive to discourage the abuse of sick leave. To 
be eligible, staff must be employed for at least 3 years. This proposed policy revision will 
make the sick leave cash out incentive available to more staff members. Currently, 
mostly exempt staff take advantage of this incentive, while participation from hourly 
employees has been minimal. Staff is proposing a tiered system that allows for a lower 
cash out at different intervals of sick leave use. Curtis wanted to clarify that the revised 
policy would be an incentive for staff not to call in sick. Michele agreed, and stated it is 
an incentive plan to reduce sick leave abuse. Fred asked if the union supported this. 
Michele stated that the document was sent to the union. We expect to receive their 
comments during the next scheduled meet and confer meeting on December 19, 2016. 
Curtis asked if there were more changes to the employee manual in regards to sick 

71



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 
December 14, 2016 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 

leave cash out. Michele clarified that we are changing the system in regards to tiers that 
are based on the amount of sick hours used per year. Fred would like to wait until the 
meet and confer is complete to approve the policy manual. Michele stated that the policy 
was discussed in detail with Delia Serrano of the union, but not the agency stewards. 
Curtis and Fred are in agreement to approve the Amendment to the Employee Sick 
Leave Cash Out Policy contingent upon no union objection. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Amendment to the Employee Sick 
Leave Cash Out Policy contingent upon no union objection. (Floyd/Plane)  
 

d. Draft Succession Plan for Executive Director – Ralph Martinez, Director of Community 
Development – Info Item  
 
Ralph Martinez stated that the Draft Succession Plan document will be finalized for 
presentation and will be taken to the full Board in January, but noted that comments are 
appreciated. Curtis asked if there was currently a written or unwritten policy. Jeremy 
stated that the agency currently does not have a written plan in place, it is an unwritten 
plan. Jeremy shared that this same conversation had come up when he had 
conversations with Garth Corrigan regarding the hiring of a second in charge in the 
agency.  Ralph added that the succession plan would allow for cross training. 
 
Fred shared that in 1999 when the Executive Director at the time abruptly left, it took the 
agency approximately 6 months to hire a replacement. The Executive Committee helped 
appoint Board Members who would temporarily oversee the agency. Ralph shared that 
we are trying to get to good practice.  
 
 

e. Application Status Report and Funding Requests – Ralph Martinez, Director of 
Community Development – Action Item  

 Funding Request to Rabobank for the Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) 
Program  

 Funding Request to Tri Counties Bank for the Volunteer Income Tax Assistance 
(VITA) Program  

 
Two funding requests were presented for approval: $4,500 from Rabobank and $2,500 
from Tri Counties Bank to support the VITA program’s general operating costs. They will 
assist in continuing EITC outreach efforts in Delano, Shafter, Wasco, and McFarland. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Application Status Reports and Funding 
Requests. Carried by unanimous vote. (Plane/Peterson) 
 

f. Head Start and Early Head Start Budget to Actual Reports – Donna Holland, Fiscal 
Administrator – Info Item 

 Kern Head Start and Early Head Start Budget to Actual for the Period Ending                
November 30, 2016  

 San Joaquin Early Head Start Budget to Actual for the Period Ending November 
30, 2016  

72



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 
December 14, 2016 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 

 Partnerships Early Head Start Child Care Budget to Actual for the Period Ending      
November 30, 2016  

 
Jerry Meade, Program Design and Management Administrator, spoke on behalf of 
Donna Holland. Jerry stated that Kern Head Start and Early Head Start is on track with 
its Non-Federal Share obligation.  
 
However, the San Joaquin Early Head Start (EHS) Program has been challenged in 
meeting its Non-Federal Share budget. Curtis noted that In-Kind is great for Kern, but 
has continued to be a struggle for San Joaquin; he wanted to know the reasons for San 
Joaquin’s low numbers. Jerry shared that the EHS program is tailored for working 
families, and this makes it difficult for families to contribute during center operating 
hours. The Family Services and Governance Staff Member in San Joaquin has been 
encouraging families to participate, and we are working on finding other monies to help 
assist with their In-Kind mandate. Currently we have no state funding in San Joaquin to 
offer part of our in-kind match as we do in Kern. Staff is exploring other funding sources 
which would help as well. 
 
Curtis is concerned that we have a problem now with only a few centers open, and 
opening more centers is not going to help the problem but make it worse. Jerry shared 
that we’ve had growth. We have another two years left in our grant cycle that we are 
able to provide quality early childhood education in San Joaquin. Warren is concerned 
that staff are spending a lot of time in San Joaquin, and he believes that it is not working. 
Warren stated that he has previously expressed concerns of the San Joaquin Grant, and 
the high turnover in San Joaquin. Warren requested a monthly update to the full board 
on the San Joaquin contract. Fred stated that the Board will feel more comfortable if they 
receive updates on their accomplishments.  Jerry shared that the admin team continues 
to look at the budget and make changes as needed. Curtis would like someone to talk to 
the San Joaquin staff to find the reason for the turnover.  
 
 

g.    Finance Director Report – Christine Anami, Director of Finance – Action Item 
 

 Discretionary/ Fund Raising Funds Analysis, November 2016  
 Abbreviated Financial Report  

 
Chris provided an update on the discretionary fund, and additional $9,435 came into the 
discretionary fund. The agency paid $1,964 for property taxes for two parcels of land that 
are currently not being used. We are unable to get a welfare exemption since they are 
not being used. 
 
Chris shared that the line of credit was only utilized once in over a 10-month period. This 
is historically typical. In November 30, 2016, we had to report a negative $228,131 due 
to a deficit in the energy and WIC department. The WIC check was not received until 
December 5, 2016 for the September 2016 expenditures. Overall, the agency has a 
healthy financial condition. Chris stated that we are currently under budget in indirect 
funds, and programs will continue to monitor expenditures.  

73



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 
December 14, 2016 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 

 
 

7. Committee Member Comments 
 

Curtis commented that other agencies have contacted his firm for donations. He 
believes it is a good idea to contact our sponsors and seek donations in anticipation of 
the potential changes to corporate taxes.  
 

8. Closed Session  
 

No Items Scheduled. 
 

9. Next Scheduled Meeting 
 

Executive Committee Meeting 
Wednesday, July 19, 2017 
12:00 p.m. 
5005 Business Park North 
Bakersfield, California 93309 

 
10. Adjournment 
 

The meeting adjourned at 1:15p.m. 

74



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

To:  Board of Directors – Executive Committee 
 
From:  Jeremy T. Tobias, Executive Director 

Date:  December 14, 2016 

Subject: Agenda Item 6a: Removal of Board Member Jose Gonzalez; Category II, Low-Income 
Sector Representative serving South Kern – Action Item 

 
 
The CAPK Board of Directors representative for South Kern, Low-Income sector, Mr. Jose Gonzalez, has 
not been heard from since March 30, 2016. That was the last Board of Directors meeting attended by Mr. 
Gonzalez. He has missed 7 straight Board meetings and all subsequent committee meetings as well. All 
of these absences have been unexcused, as we have had no contact with Mr. Gonzalez since March. Staff 
has attempted contacting Mr. Gonzalez via telephone, email, and U.S. postal service without any success. 
 
The Community Action Partnership of Kern By-laws, Section 8, govern the removal of members of the 
Board of Directors. Section 8 is attached for your reference. Sections 8.1.B and 8.1.C limit the number of 
unexcused absences of regular scheduled Board meetings to 3 consecutive meetings; or 5 total meetings 
in any 12 month period. 
 
Section 8.2 describes the procedure for removal. A majority vote of the Board is required, and the Board 
member being removed, shall be notified and given the right to be heard by the Board. A letter was sent 
to Mr. Gonzalez notifying him of this meeting and his right to be heard. 
 
Mr. Gonzalez was originally appointed in October 2015 to finish out the term of former Board Member 
Zulema Ela, who had resigned. He serves in Category II, Low-Income Sector Representative serving 
South Kern. His term expires in February, 2017.  Should the Board take action, staff will immediately 
begin the process to fill this seat. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors vote to remove Board member Jose 
Gonzalez, finding him in violation of CAPK By-laws, sections 8.1.B and 8.1.C.  
 
 
Attachments: Resolution 

Excerpts of CAPK Bylaws, Section 8 

   

75



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

To:  Board of Directors - Executive Committee 

 

From:  Michele Nowell, Director of Human Resources  

Date:  December 14, 2016  

Subject: Agenda Item 6c: Amendment to the Employee Sick Leave Cash Out Policy – 

Action Item 

 
 
In 1998, the agency created a Sick Leave Cash Out Policy with the intent to provide an incentive to 
employees for not abusing sick leave.  Sick leave has no cash value if it is not used and is not 
required to be paid out if an employee leaves the agency.  
 
The current policy is: 

1) Employee must be employed for one full calendar year to be eligible for this benefit 
2) Employee can maintain all remaining sick leave at the end of each year (up to  

the maximum of 480 hours)  
3) If the employee utilizes 16 hours or less of sick leave benefits in a calendar  

year, the employee can request up to 40 hours of unused but accrued sick leave 
benefits 
to be paid out 

4) Any days paid out will decrease the employees accrued sick balance accordingly 
5) Employee must retain a minimum 40 hour accrued sick leave balance after the cash out 
6) The Sick Leave Cash out occurs only once a year and is usually paid out in February 

 
In reviewing the outcomes of the current policy, management feels that the policy has not lived up 
to its full original intent and has a slant towards exempt employees.  An evaluation of the use of the 
Sick Leave Cash Out over the last four years for the agencies 825 employees is reflected below. 
 

Year 
Exempt 

Staff  

 % of Eligible 
Employees 

Participating $ paid out 

Non-
Exempt 

Staff 

 % of Eligible 
Employees 

Participating $ paid out Total Pay Out 

2015 19 38% $23,952 26 3% $17,622 $41,574 

2014 18 n/a $23,818 37 n/a $25,246 $49,064 

2013 16 n/a $20,732 19 n/a $10,881 $31,613 

2012 14 n/a $18,255 24 n/a $15,974 $34,229 
** The dollar value is accurate but the percentage of staff participating is an estimate.   
 
We believe the existing program is too restrictive for the hourly employees and prevents most 
employees from being able to participate.  With the hard cut-off at 16 hours, there is nothing to 
encourage employees to stay focused on good attendance at that point.  By creating a broader 

76



“tiered” policy, we feel this would provide a true incentive for employees to think twice before 
simply calling in.  The new policy follows the same rules as above except for number 3, where we 
are requesting a tiered structure be created. 
 

Sick Hours Used in 
a Year 

Maximum Hours 
Eligible for Cash Out  

Up to 32 8 
Up to 28 16 
Up to 24 24 
Up to 20 32 
Up to 16 40 

 
In looking at the current attendance hours for January through November of 2016 and applying the 
new tiered rules listed above, it provides a window of how this tiered system may operate.  As you 
would expect, there is an increase in number of employees that would be eligible.  The below 
numbers assume that all employees eligible would take a full cash out, which is not necessarily 
true.  The other fact is employees did not have this tiered option available, so the eligible employee 
numbers would most likely increase, which would be the intent of the tiered system.  
 
Estimates of eligible employee Sick Leave cash out with new tiered policy implementation: 
    

Year 
Exempt 

Staff 

% of Eligible 
Employees 

Participating 

Estimated 
$ paid 

out 
Non-Exempt 

Staff 

% of Eligible 
Employees 

Participating $ paid out Total Pay Out 

2016 33 34% $42,566  49 5% $27,366  $69,932 
** based on 11 months history 
 
Based on the above analysis, the participation rate would go up by 37 employees and the annual 
cost would go up by just over $28,000. When this amount is broken into multiple departments and 
contracts, it has insignificant budget impacts and can easily be included in ongoing budgets. 
Management understands there are times employees will be absent from work due to the 
employee’s illness or a child’s illness but the policy is to reward those employees that are not 
habitual abusers. The abuse of sick time impacts the ability of the agency and the department in 
getting the job done and is very costly, as we must often bring in substitutes and temporary 
employees to fill essential roles.   
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends the Executive Committee approve the amendment to the Employee Sick Leave 
Cash Out Policy creating a tiered structure, with an effective date of January 1, 2017.   
 
 
Attachment: Draft Administrative bulletin and amended Sick Leave Cash Out Policy 
 
 

77



2/17/2016 (B&F) 2/25/2016 AstraZeneca FHCC & SYC/Grow Fit Program 175,198$          
5/25/2016 (Board) 5/31/2016 U.S Dept of Treasury/ IRS VITA/Kern VITA Partnership - Year 2* 223,315$          
6/22/2016 (B&F) 6/28/2016 Best Buy Foundation FHCC/Winners Program 9,800$              
6/29/2016 (Board) 7/12/2016 Cy Pres CRT Settlement Fund East Kern Family Resource Center/Computers, Internet Service, 

Printer
65,539$            

7/13/2016 (Exec)** 8/10/2016 Wells Fargo Community Development/Financial Literacy & Microloan Program  $           30,000 

8/17/2016 (B&F) 8/8/2016 Southern California Gas Company Food Bank/ Solar Energy Improvement Project 25,000$            
8/17/2016 (B&F) 8/24/2016 Wonderful Foundation Food Bank/ BackPack Buddies - Wasco 24,661$            
9/21/2016 (B&F) 8/31/2016 Wonderful Foundation VITA/ Wasco 18,600$            
8/17/2016 (B&F) 8/12/2016 U.S Dept of Housing & Urban Development 2-1-1 Kern/ Kern County Homeless Coordinated Entry System 178,000$          
8/17/2016 (B&F) 8/23/2016 U.S Dept. of Labor/ Fresno Regional Workforce 

Development Board (MOU)
Program TBD/ America's Promise Job Driven Grant Program 50,000$            

9/21/2016 (B&F) 9/1/2016 U.S Dept. of Agriculture/ California Department of 
Social Services

Food Bank/ Commodity Supplemental Food Program 444,000$          

9/21/2016 (B&F) 10/14/2016 Kern County Network for Children EKFRC/ Differential Response Services 209,094$          
9/21/2016 (B&F) 10/13/2016 Dignity Health FHCC & SYC/ Grow Fit Families Program 75,000$            
10/26/2016 (Board) 9/23/2016 TJX Foundation Food Bank/ General Support 5,000$              
10/26/2016 (Board) 10/4/2016 United Way of Kern County - 2017 Hunger & 

Homelessness
Food Bank/ General Support 50,000$            

10/26/2016 (Board) 10/11/2016 Kern Family Health Care FHCC & SYC/ First Aid, Emergency Preparedness & Hygiene Kits 1,500$              

10/26/2016 (Board) 10/18/2016 Bank of the West VITA/ 2016 Tax Season 2,500$              
10/26/2016 (Board) 10/28/2016 City of Bakersfield/ Community Development Block 

Grant
Food Bank/ Proprerty & Security Improvements 61,500$            

11/30/2016 (Board) 11/15/2016 Feeding America/ Morgan Stanley Food Bank/ Produce Program 25,000$            
11/30/2016 (Board) 11/22/2016 Feeding America/ Disney Food Bank/ Produce Program 15,000$            
10/26/2016 (Board) 11/22/2016 County of Kern/ Community Development Block 

Grant
Food Bank/ Proprerty & Security Improvements 61,500$            

*Received notification of IRS funding for Year 1 of request; Year 2 notification pending.

**Board did not approve use of funds for Microloan Program. Currently exploring alternatives with Wells Fargo.

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN

FUNDING REQUESTS AND APPLICATION STATUS REPORT 

PENDING ‐ November 2016

Funding Source Program/ProposalDate Approved
Date of App. 
Submission

Amount  
Requested

78



1/13/2016 (PRE) 3/24/2016 California Department of Public Health FHCC & SYC/Sexual Health Information 
& Education (I&E) Program

 $      115,000  $       80,000 7/1/2016 - 6/30/2017

1/13/2016 (PRE) 5/23/2016 United Way of Kern County 
(Emergency Food & Shelter)

Food Bank/Food  $        85,000  $       84,507 1/16/2015 - 12/31/2016

5/11/2016 (PRE) 6/20/2016 Kern Family Health Care East Kern Family Resource Center/ 
Emergency Supplies Closet

 $          2,000  $         2,000 7/1/2016 - 6/30/2017

2/10/2016 (PRE) 6/23/2016 Kaiser Permanente Kern County FHCC/Grow Fit Program  $        13,181  $       10,000 7/1/2016 - 6/30/2017
6/22/2016 (B&F) 7/1/2016 PG&E FHCC/Computer Lab Upgrade  $          3,000  $         3,000 7/1/2016 - 6/30/2017
5/25/2016 (Board) 7/11/2016 Target SYC/Art Smart Program  $          2,500  $         2,500 10/1/2016 - 9/30/2017

6/22/2016 (B&F) 7/13/2016 The Starbucks Foundation FHCC & SYC/PREP Works  $        49,606  $       40,000 1/1/2017 - 6/30/2017
3/30/2016 (Board) 8/11/2016 Chevron 2016 Social Investment 

Program
FHCC & SYC/STEM Program  $        21,500  $       21,500 7/1/2016 - 6/31/2017

5/25/2016 (Board) 9/15/2016 U.S Dept of Treasury/ IRS VITA/Kern VITA Partnership - Year 1  $      222,723  $       84,815 8/1/2016 - 7/31/2017
8/17/2016 (B&F) 9/6/2016 Bank of America Food Bank/ BackPack Buddies - Lamont  $        25,000  $         9,000 1/1/2017 - 12/31/2017

8/17/2016 (B&F) 9/6/2016 United Way of Stanislaus County 2-1-1 Kern/ Call Answering Services  $        45,000  $       40,500 10/1/2016 - 6/30/2017

10/26/2016 (Board) 10/14/2016 Walmart/ Community Grants Program Food Bank/ General Support 2,500$           $         1,000 1/1/2017 - 12/31/2017

8/10/2016 11/10/2016 County of Kern (Community 
Corrections Partnership)

FHCC/Workforce Development 
Services for Ex-offenders

354,840$      138,906$      10/1/2016 - 12/31/2018

10/26/2016 (Board) 11/14/2016 Southern California Gas Company Food Bank/ Delano Fall Food Drive  $          2,000  $         2,000 1/1/2017 - 12/31/2017

TOTAL $     519,728 

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN

AWARDED ‐ November 2016

Program/ProposalFunding SourceDate Approved
Date of 

Notification

FUNDING REQUESTS AND APPLICATION STATUS REPORT

 Amount 
Requested 

Amount 
Awarded

Funding Period

79



Amount 
Requested

10/21/2015 (B&F) 1/8/2016 Wonderful Foundation SYC/PREP Works 49,000$                 
10/28/15 (Board) 2/1/2016 California Coastal Commission FHCC & SYC/Marine Studies Program 15,888$                 
2/10/2016 (PRE) 3/31/2016 Walmart State Giving Program Food Bank/Pickup Truck 30,000$                 
1/13/2016 (PRE) 5/23/2016 Junior League of Bakersfield East Kern Family Resource Center/ Emergency 

Supplies Closet 5,000$                   
5/25/2016 (Board) 5/26/2016 First 5 Kern 211 Kern/Developmental Screening and Care 

Coordination 332,859$               
6/22/2016 (B&F) 7/1/2016 United Way of Fresno and Madera Counties 2-1-1 Kern/After-hours & Weekend Call Answering 39,756$                 
7/16/2016 (Exec) 8/31/2016 Walmart State Giving Program Food Bank/Equipment

34,350$                 
12/9/2015 (Exec) 9/22/2016 USDA/National Institute of Food and 

Agriculture (NIFA) 
Food Bank/Kern Nutrition on Wheels Program

329,500$               

Funding Source Program/ProposalDate Approved
Date of 

Notification

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN

FUNDING REQUESTS AND APPLICATION STATUS REPORT

DECLINED ‐ November 2016

80



81



82



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
MEMORANDUM 

To: Board of Directors - Executive Committee 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Donna Holland, Fiscal Administrator 

Agenda Item 6f: Kern Head Start and Early Head Start Budget to 

Actual for the Period Ending November 30, 2016 

December 14, 2016 

The following are highlights of the Head Start/Early Head Start Budget to Actual Report 
for the period March 1, 2016 through November 30, 2016. 

Budget Revision 
Approval of CAPK’s request to revise the budget is pending.  The budget revision will 
incorporate the 10% De Minimis Indirect Cost Rate. 

Personnel & Fringe Benefits 
The budget revision will decrease the amounts budgeted in these categories; however, 
savings may be realized in Early Head Start. 

Staff continuously monitor for savings in these categories that may be used elsewhere 
in the program. 

Travel 
Some travel costs associated with training were charged to base funds.  Staff expect to 
fully expend Training & Technical Assistance funds.  Staff have identified savings in 
other areas to cover these costs. 

Equipment 
Funds in this category were originally budgeted for the purchase of four program 
vehicles and three playground/shade structures.  The budget revision will move the cost 
of playgrounds to the Supplies category.  Staff have released the Request for Proposals 
to purchase the program vehicles; bids will be received in early January. 

Supplies 
Purchases of office and classroom supplies are ongoing.  Possible savings in this 
category may be used elsewhere in the program. 

Contractual 
Legal fees during the SEIU contract negotiation process were somewhat more than 
estimated.  Staff have identified savings in other areas to cover these costs. 

83



Other 
Head Start expenditures in this category are higher than the percentage of the year 
elapsed; this is primarily the result of preparing the Wesley site to become a licensed 
child development center.  Staff have identified savings in other areas to cover these 
costs. 

Early Head Start expenditures in this category are lower than the percentage of the year 
elapsed.  Possible savings in this category may be used elsewhere in the program. 

Training & Technical Assistance (T&TA) 
Head Start T&TA funds are nearly expended.  Additional funds are budgeted in the 
base grant for planned training expenses in excess of T&TA funding.   

Early Head Start T&TA funds will be fully expended by the end of the program year. 

Non-Federal Share 
With 75% of the budget period elapsed, total Non-Federal Share (the sum of California 
Department of Education funding and in-kind) is at 83% of budget. 

• California Department of Education
Actual and estimated non-federal revenues through November 2016 are at 82% of
budget.

• In-Kind
Year-to-date in-kind is at 84% of budget.

The five centers with the highest percentage of goal met were Fairfax, Planz, Sunrise 
Villa, McFarland, and San Diego.  A total of 34 out of 44 centers and groups met or 
exceeded 75% of goal.  

The five centers with the lowest percentage of goal met were California City, Heritage, 
Pioneer, Rosamond, and Mojave. 

84



Prepared 12/5/2016 

BASE FUNDS
BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT

% 
REMAINING

BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT
% 

REMAINING

PERSONNEL 9,675,827 7,504,941 2,170,886 78% 22% 2,266,371 752,722 1,513,649 33% 67%
FRINGE BENEFITS 3,135,316 2,632,291 503,025 84% 16% 715,929 319,900 396,029 45% 55%
TRAVEL 0 3,570 (3,570) 0 154 (154)
EQUIPMENT 255,000 0 255,000 0% 100% 65,000 0 65,000
SUPPLIES 1,095,095 574,517 520,578 52% 48% 232,070 194,570 37,500 84% 16%
CONTRACTUAL 82,680 88,330 (5,650) 107% -7% 14,320 13,253 1,067 93% 7%
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0 0 0 0
OTHER 3,558,572 2,650,630 907,942 74% 26% 381,247 339,855 41,392 89% 11%
TOTAL BASE FUNDING 17,802,491 13,454,279 4,348,213 76% 24% 3,674,936 1,620,454 2,054,481 44% 56%

TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE
PERSONNEL 0 0 0 0 (59) 59
FRINGE BENEFITS 0 0 0 0 715 (715)
TRAVEL 30,627 25,349 5,278 83% 17% 36,382 17,330 19,052 48% 52%
SUPPLIES 20,935 17,618 3,317 84% 16% 22,981 2,764 20,217 12% 88%
CONTRACTUAL 18,484 7,706 10,778 42% 58% 11,689 12,204 (515) 104% -4%
OTHER 75,304 89,283 (13,979) 119% -19% 25,952 17,030 8,922 66% 34%
TOTAL TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 145,350 139,956 5,394 96% 4% 97,004 49,984 47,020 52% 48%

INDIRECT 1,477,845 1,317,627 160,218 89% 11% 275,058 165,917 109,141 60% 40%

GRAND TOTAL HS/EHS FEDERAL FUNDS 19,425,686 14,911,862 4,513,824 77% 23% 4,046,998 1,836,356 2,210,642 45% 55%

BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT
% 

REMAINING

2,805,361 2,347,736 457,625 84% 16% Centralized Administrative Cost 6.9%
3,062,811 2,505,401 557,410 82% 18% Program Administrative Cost 2.8%

TOTAL NON-FEDERAL 5,868,172 4,853,137 1,015,035 83% 17% Total Administrative Cost 9.7%

CURRENT 1 TO 30 31 TO 60 61 TO 90 OVER 90 CREDITS TOTAL

Bank of America 7,381 7,381

Lowe's 3,304 2,874 6,178

Save Mart 3,032 914 3,946

Smart & Final 0

Chevron & Texaco Business Card 5,965 5,965

Home Depot 6,849 5,280 12,128

26,531 9,067 0 0 0 0 35,598

* Expenditure details are included in the CAPK Financial Report
Budget reflects Notice of Award #09CH9142-03-01
Actual expenditures include posted expenditures and estimated adjustments through 11/30/2016.

Community Action Partnership of Kern
Head Start and Early Head Start - Kern

Budget to Actual Report
Budget Period:  March 1, 2016 - February 28, 2017
Report Period:  March 1, 2016 - November 30, 2016

HEAD START EARLY HEAD START

Month 9 of 12 (75%)

SOURCE

EARLY HEAD STARTHEAD START

Community Action Partnership of Kern Agency-Wide Credit Card Report *

CALIF DEPT OF ED
IN-KIND

HEAD START and EARLY HEAD START NON-FEDERAL SHARE

Stmt not rec'd prior to rpt

STATEMENT DATE

11/21/2016

12/5/2016
12/5/2016

11/25/2016
11/27/2016

85



Community Action Partnership of Kern
Head Start and Early Head Start
Non-Federal Share and In-Kind
Budget Period:  March 1, 2016 through February 28, 2017
Report for period ending November 30, 2016 (Month 9 of 12) 

Percent of year elapsed: 75%

LOCATION

FUNDED 
ENROLL-

MENT March April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov
YTD 

Totals
IN-KIND 
GOAL

% OF 
GOAL 
MET

Fairfax 40 24,746 25,251 18,439 0 0 9,735 22,272 19,549 0 119,992 51,839 231%
Planz 34 12,315 10,461 12,154 0 0 6,295 5,907 7,602 5,974 60,708 44,063 138%
Sunrise Villa 34 13,146 12,263 6,775 0 0 5,689 9,342 164 7,382 54,761 44,063 124%
McFarland 20 7,117 5,767 2,921 0 0 1,743 4,768 4,691 4,621 31,628 25,919 122%
San Diego Street 48 12,075 10,439 11,730 7,067 7,027 6,596 7,251 12,272 183 74,640 62,207 120%
Casa Loma 34 10,304 11,410 8,328 0 0 3,953 7,510 7,565 3,154 52,224 44,063 119%
Roosevelt 34 9,039 8,311 6,674 0 0 4,841 9,597 11,846 0 50,308 44,063 114%
Vineland 20 5,180 5,542 4,335 0 0 2,175 4,195 6,877 0 28,304 25,919 109%
Franklin 24 6,049 6,281 6,607 4,113 3,364 2,518 2,368 2,249 74 33,622 31,103 108%
Martha J. Morgan 83 22,338 20,744 13,606 0 0 9,484 22,879 23,737 595 113,383 107,566 105%
Alicante 34 7,661 11,592 9,673 0 0 2,224 7,140 6,996 0 45,286 44,063 103%
Virginia 34 8,315 7,701 4,854 0 0 5,080 11,006 6,443 107 43,508 44,063 99%
Noble 34 9,834 9,519 4,957 0 0 2,902 8,034 7,501 0 42,747 44,063 97%
Delano 90 20,376 21,196 20,989 6,696 9,199 8,519 14,025 6,947 0 107,947 116,638 93%
Cleo Foran 34 8,912 7,514 5,035 0 0 3,313 7,478 8,336 0 40,588 44,063 92%
Primeros Pasos 76 17,227 15,148 12,143 4,696 6,094 7,500 12,233 13,325 0 88,366 98,494 90%
Stine Road 123 19,627 19,450 20,299 12,331 12,812 17,223 17,759 17,383 5,397 142,282 159,405 89%
Home Base 249 28,093 29,509 20,270 9,697 16,080 12,631 13,027 13,599 186 143,091 161,349 89%
Taft 54 11,902 13,717 8,130 0 0 6,109 10,604 10,515 0 60,976 69,983 87%
Sterling 103 17,160 16,714 15,890 12,546 12,764 13,651 16,008 11,206 0 115,938 133,485 87%
Rafer Johnson 34 6,998 7,935 4,364 0 0 2,058 5,591 5,026 4,614 36,586 44,063 83%
East California 70 18,493 17,503 10,688 0 0 3,650 9,739 14,646 0 74,720 90,718 82%
Faith Avenue 34 8,435 8,879 5,748 0 0 3,592 9,539 0 0 36,193 44,063 82%
Lost Hills 20 5,126 4,434 4,058 0 0 945 2,602 1,834 2,279 21,278 25,919 82%
Oasis 60 15,379 15,470 8,735 0 0 5,706 9,300 8,056 0 62,645 77,758 81%
Stella Hills 34 7,753 7,910 3,580 0 0 0 7,756 7,693 283 34,974 44,063 79%
Williams 34 8,967 8,195 5,460 0 0 2,512 6,808 2,774 0 34,715 44,063 79%
Seibert 34 8,157 5,478 2,844 0 0 3,435 6,884 7,836 0 34,634 44,063 79%
Fairview 34 6,551 2,381 10,537 0 0 2,518 6,175 6,422 0 34,583 44,063 78%
Alberta Dillard 68 10,211 11,434 6,909 0 0 4,848 17,746 17,574 228 68,949 88,126 78%
Lamont 34 8,086 7,732 3,598 0 0 4,313 9,137 1,207 238 34,310 44,063 78%
Shafter HS/EHS 36 4,412 3,559 4,529 4,670 3,689 3,486 4,603 4,508 2,838 36,294 46,655 78%
Tehachapi 34 4,004 3,431 2,343 0 0 3,995 7,533 7,530 5,118 33,954 44,063 77%
Buttonwillow 20 4,372 4,107 1,356 0 0 1,268 4,436 4,058 123 19,720 25,919 76%
Oildale 34 7,387 5,882 4,163 0 0 4,231 6,946 3,389 71 32,067 44,063 73%
Pacific 62 8,933 8,122 9,357 5,612 6,792 7,204 8,023 4,116 0 58,160 80,350 72%
Pete H. Parra 148 18,586 18,823 16,876 12,447 10,834 17,390 24,281 18,483 297 138,019 191,804 72%
Shafter 34 7,714 8,400 4,578 0 0 4,081 4,201 2,227 258 31,459 44,063 71%
Willow 72 15,550 13,772 7,577 0 0 4,987 9,498 11,254 416 63,055 93,310 68%
California City 34 7,771 5,648 3,856 0 0 4,081 7,633 358 0 29,348 44,063 67%
Heritage Park 34 5,518 3,282 3,089 0 0 2,248 5,839 4,920 0 24,896 44,063 57%
Pioneer 34 4,152 5,201 3,267 0 0 695 2,895 3,843 260 20,313 44,063 46%
Rosamond 75 5,240 3,210 1,585 0 0 3,091 6,948 7,052 0 27,125 97,198 28%
Mojave 34 1,705 1,322 626 0 0 888 1,576 2,038 0 8,155 44,063 19%
Wesley 60 0 77,758 0%
Voorhies 0 6,800 4,740 3,424 0 0 0 0 0 0 14,964
Wasco 0 4,131 3,928 1,346 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,405
Administrative Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NA
Program Services 5,049 4,464 4,138 4,168 4,156 4,106 4,115 4,115 0 34,310 93,094 37%
Policy Council and RPC 109 107 20 23 14 0 0 0 0 273 51,236 1%
SUBTOTAL IN-KIND 2,369 487,003 463,876 352,458 84,066 92,825 227,509 403,207 349,760 44,695 2,505,401 3,053,141 82%

State General Child Care* 119,619 118,092 117,337 112,660 80,901 97,966 91,197 100,401 81,273 919,446 1,031,472 89%
State Preschool* 153,811 147,815 148,975 113,839 124,822 135,161 151,671 171,674 147,695 1,295,464 1,680,926 77%
State Migrant Child Care* 15,718 13,870 14,146 11,867 13,484 16,366 15,885 17,203 14,287 132,826 92,963 143%
SUBTOTAL CA DEPT of ED 289,148 279,778 280,458 238,366 219,207 249,493 258,753 289,278 243,256 2,347,736 2,805,361 84%

GRAND TOTAL 776,151 743,654 632,916 322,432 312,032 477,002 661,960 639,038 287,951 4,853,137 5,858,502 83%
*May include estimates

86



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
MEMORANDUM 

To: Board of Directors - Executive Committee 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Donna Holland, Fiscal Administrator 

Agenda Item 6f : San Joaquin Early Head Start Budget to Actual for the Period 

Ending November 30, 2016 

December 14, 2016 

The following are highlights of the San Joaquin Early Head Start Budget to Actual Report for 
the period February 1, 2016 through November 30, 2016. 

Budget Revision 
Approval of CAPK’s request to revise the budget is pending from Office of Head Start.  The 
budget revision will incorporate the 10% De Minimis Indirect Cost Rate. 

Personnel & Fringe Benefits 
The budget revision will decrease the amounts budgeted in these categories; however, 
savings may be realized until all centers are in operation. 

Travel 
Expenditures for the purpose of supporting San Joaquin staff are higher than anticipated at this 
point in the program year. Staff are monitoring this line item and have identified savings in 
other areas to cover these costs. 

Supplies 
Expenditures for supplies are higher than anticipated at this point in the program year. Staff 
are monitoring this line item and have identified savings in other areas to cover these costs. 

Contractual 
The budget revision will increase the amount budgeted in this category; savings may be 
realized as a result. 

Other 
Other expenditures are less than anticipated at this point in the year. 

Carryover 
CAPK’s request to carryover funds from the prior budget period was approved.  The carryover 
funds are being used to install outdoor shade structures, improve playgrounds, make health 
and safety improvements to centers, update classroom furnishings and materials, and to 
purchase one program vehicle.  Staff expect to fully expend these funds prior to the end of the 
budget period. 

87



Training & Technical Assistance 
Expenditures supporting training & technical assistance appear to be underspent at this point 
in the program year; however, additional training has been planned for later in the budget 
period, and staff expect to fully expend these funds. 

Indirect 
The budget revision will increase the amount budgeted for indirect costs. 

Non-Federal Share 
With 83% of the budget period elapsed, the total Non-Federal Share is at 17% of budget.  
CAPK will request a waiver of Non-Federal Share closer to the end of the budget period. 

The San Joaquin Early Head Start program has been challenged in meeting its Non-Federal 
Share budget, as only four of its 9 centers are currently licensed and in operation.  However, 
San Joaquin’s management staff have increased their efforts to ensure that field staff and 
parents of enrolled children are aware of the importance of in-kind, and of the opportunities 
parents have to provide volunteer services to the program. 

88



Prepared 12/5/2016

BASE FUNDS BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT
% 

REMAINING

PERSONNEL 3,264,964 2,286,917 978,047 70% 30%
FRINGE BENEFITS 765,792 506,177 259,616 66% 34%
TRAVEL 14,940 27,003 (12,063) 181% -81%
EQUIPMENT 0 0 0
SUPPLIES 191,905 281,907 (90,002) 147% -47%
CONTRACTUAL 2,000 8,418 (6,418) 421% -321%
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0
OTHER 653,976 452,797 201,179 69% 31%
TOTAL 4,893,577 3,563,219 1,330,359 73% 27%

EQUIPMENT 150,000 0 150,000 0% 100%
SUPPLIES 90,000 84,173 5,827 94% 6%
OTHER 320,898 112,923 207,975 35% 65%
TOTAL 560,898 197,096 363,802 35% 65%

TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE FUNDS
TRAVEL 17,981 8,828 9,153 49% 51%
SUPPLIES 15,700 1,998 13,702 13% 87%
CONTRACTUAL 16,298 7,715 8,583 47% 53%
OTHER 31,918 16,615 15,303 52% 48%
TOTAL 81,897 35,156 46,741 43% 57%

INDIRECT 102,767 389,705 (286,938) 379% -279%

GRAND TOTAL EHS FEDERAL FUNDS 5,639,139 4,185,176 1,453,963 74% 26%

NON-FEDERAL SHARE BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT
% 

REMAINING

IN-KIND 1,415,810 236,900 1,178,910 17% 83%

TOTAL NON-FEDERAL FUNDS 1,415,810 236,900 1,178,910 17% 83%

Centralized Administrative Cost 8.0%
Program Administrative Cost 2.3%

Total Administrative Cost 10.3%

Budget reflects Notice of Award #09CH010071-02-03.
Actual expenditures include posted expenditures and estimated adjustments through 11/30/2016.

Community Action Partnership of Kern

Early Head Start - San Joaquin County

Budget to Actual Report

Budget Period:  February 1, 2016 - January 31, 2017
Report Period:  February 1, 2016 - November 30, 2016

Month 10 of 12 (83%)

CARRYOVER FUNDS

89



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
MEMORANDUM 

To: Board of Directors - Executive Committee 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Donna Holland, Fiscal Administrator 

Agenda Item 6f: Partnerships Early Head Start Child Care Budget to Actual for 

the Period Ending November 30, 2016 

December 14, 2016 

The following are highlights of the Early Head Start Child Care Partnerships Budget to Actual 
Report for the period September 1, 2016 through November 30, 2016. 

Base Funds 
Personnel and Fringe Benefits costs are slightly high through the first 3 months of the budget 
period. 

The cost of supplies is over budget.  Savings will be identified in other categories to cover 
these and future costs.   

Carryover Funds 
CAPK has submitted a request to carry over unexpended prior-year funds in the amount of 
$315,000. 

Training & Technical Assistance (T&TA) 
CAPK has submitted a request to carry over unexpended prior-year funds in the amount of 
approximately $48,200.  Staff expect to fully expend these funds. 

Non-Federal Share 
With 25% of the year elapsed, total Non-Federal Share is at 31%. 

90



Prepared 12/5/2016

BASE FUNDS BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT
% 

REMAINING

PERSONNEL 122,245 37,183 85,062 30% 70%
FRINGE BENEFITS 28,705 8,424 20,281 29% 71%
TRAVEL 0 0 0
EQUIPMENT 0 0 0
SUPPLIES 1,650 2,907 (1,257) 176% -76%
CONTRACTUAL 459,322 103,713 355,609 23% 77%
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0
OTHER 9,990 2,106 7,884 21% 79%
TOTAL BASE FUNDING 621,912 154,333 467,579 25% 75%

CARRYOVER FUNDS (pending Federal approval) BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT
% 

REMAINING

PERSONNEL 0 0 0
FRINGE BENEFITS 0 0 0
TRAVEL 0 0 0
EQUIPMENT 0 0 0
SUPPLIES 0 0 0
CONTRACTUAL 0 0 0
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0
OTHER 0 0 0
TOTAL START-UP FUNDING 0 0 0

TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE FUNDS BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT
% 

REMAINING

TRAVEL 5,294 708 4,586 13% 87%
SUPPLIES 3,506 0 3,506 0% 100%
OTHER 8,000 1,514 6,486 19% 81%
TOTAL TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 16,800 2,222 14,578 13% 87%

INDIRECT 62,184 17,131 45,053 28% 72%

GRAND TOTAL FEDERAL FUNDS 700,896 173,686 527,210 25% 75%

NON-FEDERAL SHARE** BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT
% 

REMAINING

IN-KIND 175,224 53,773 121,451 31% 69%

TOTAL NON-FEDERAL FUNDS 175,224 53,773 121,451 31% 69%

Centralized Administrative Cost 7.5%
Program Administrative Cost 1.1%

Total Administrative Cost 8.6%

Budget reflects Notice of Award #09HP0036-02-00.
Actual expenditures include posted expenditures and estimated adjustments through 11/30/2016.

Month 3 of 12 (25%)

Community Action Partnership of Kern
Early Head Start - Child Care Partnerships

Budget to Actual Report
Budget Period:  September 1, 2016 - August 31, 2017

Report Period:  September 1, 2016 - November 30, 2016

91



92



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP of KERN 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AUDIT & PENSION COMMITTEE MEETING 
5005 Business Park North 

January 12, 2017 
12:00 p.m. 

 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

Craig Henderson called the meeting to order at 12:08pm at the Community Action 
Partnership of Kern Administrative Building, 5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA 
 

2. Roll Call 
 

Roll Call was taken with a quorum present: 
 
Present: Craig Henderson, Yolanda Ochoa, and Charlie Rodriguez 
 
Absent: Mike Maggard 
 
Others present: Christine Anami, Director of Finance; Carmen Segovia, Director of Health 
and Nutrition; Michele Nowell, Director of Human Resources; other CAPK staff.   
  

3. Approval of Agenda 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Audit & Pension Committee meeting 
agenda of January 12, 2017.  Carried by unanimous vote.  (Rodriguez/Ochoa) 
 

4. Public Forum: (The public may address the Committee on items not on the agenda.  
Speakers are limited to 3 minutes.  If more than one person wishes to address the same 
topic, the total group time for the topic will be 10 minutes.  Please state your name before 
making your presentation.) 
 
No one addressed the Committee. 

 
5. New Business 

 
a. Brown Armstrong Presentation of the Independent Audit Reports for the year ended 

February 29, 2016 and the Special Purpose Financial Statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2016 – Christine Anami, Director of Finance – Info Item 
 
Christine Anami introduced Brooke Baird, Audit Manager, Brown Armstrong. Brooke 
presented the audit reports, noting that CAPK has always received an unmodified clean 
opinion. No deficiencies or material weaknesses were noted this year. In the ‘Agreed 
Upon Conditions Report’ (commonly known as ‘Management Letter’), these areas were 
highlighted after testing samples: instance of incorrectly payment out of sick leave 

93



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Audit & Pension Committee Meeting Minutes 
January 12, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 

instead of accrued vacation, and Child Care Development Block Grant eligibility and 
reporting. 
 
Erika Arias, ERSEA Manager, and Krissie Leach, Program Manager, explained that 
eligibility for the affected families did not change, as they still fell under state income 
guidelines. Additional training was arranged for staff. Krissie addressed the reporting 
issue, where several monthly center monitoring reports were found missing. This 
oversight resulted from two managers leaving the agency, and one manager who 
passed away. The system has now been changed so that everything is shared in a 
common location and stored electronically and in paper. There is also additional 
monitoring in place to ensure everything is received regularly. 
 
Craig Henderson asked whether this audit is internal, or if it goes outside of the group. 
Christine clarified that a copy of the report is provided upon request. 
 

b. Audit Transmittal Report (TR) 16-005 (FYE 2-28-16) from the Department of Community 
Services and Development – Christine Anami, Director of Finance – Info Item 
 
Christine stated that CSD has an audit group which reviews the content of our audit 
report to determine that we are in compliance. CSD had one finding: ensure compliance 
with the required format. Christine followed up with the CSD auditor, who clarified that 
the finding was applicable to a single schedule on one page of the audit report, rather 
than all the schedules. A column was excluded because this particular grant falls within 
the CSD fiscal year, but in the future, if this comes up again, we will include the omitted 
column. No other response is necessary. 
 
Christine proposed to share audit reports as well as the tax returns electronically with the 
CAPK Board of Directors, rather than mailing out hard copies. The hard copies will be 
provided at the January 25th Board meeting. Andrew Paulden, Engagement Partner, 
Brown Armstrong, will be presenting the audit reports to the Board on January 25th. 
 
 

6. Committee Member Comments 
  
Yolanda Ochoa and Craig Henderson thanked staff. 
 

7. Next Scheduled Meeting 
 

Audit Committee Meeting 
Thursday, April 6, 2017  
12:00 p.m. 
5005 Business Park North 
Bakersfield, California 93309 
 

8. Adjournment 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:19 pm. 

94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP of KERN 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

PROGRAM REVIEW & EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEETING 
5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA  

January 11, 2017 
12:00 p.m. 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
1. Call to Order 
 

Fred Plan called the meeting to order at 12:05pm at the Community Action Partnership of 
Kern administrative building, 5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA. 

 
2. Roll Call  
 

Roll Call was taken with a quorum present: 
 
 Present: Fred Plane, Craig Henderson    
 

Absent: Jason Warren 
 
Others present: Michele Nowell, Director of Human Resources; Romala Ramkissoon, Director 
of Community Services; other CAPK staff. 
 

3. Approval of Agenda 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Program Review and Evaluation meeting 
agenda for January 11, 2017.  Carried by unanimous vote. (Henderson/Plane) 
 

4. Public Forum: (The public may address the Committee on items not on the agenda.  Speakers 
are limited to 3 minutes.  If more than one person wishes to address the same topic, the total 
group time for the topic will be 10 minutes.  Please state your name before making your 
presentation.) 
 
No one addressed the Committee. 

 
5. Program Presentations 

 
a. Energy – Loretta Andrews, Energy Program Manager 

Jose Gomez, Acting Weatherization Coordinator, was also present. 

Loretta Andrews reported that 2016 was a busy year and stated that Energy currently has 
six active programs. 2016 LIHEAP, 2017 LIHEAP, DOE Program, LIWIP, 2015 SOLAR PV 
Pilot project, and Water Tank Installation. Energy provides utility and weatherization 
assistance, and seniors, disabled individuals, and households with children under age 5 are 
prioritized. Normally, utility assistance pays from $210 to $350 on a regular bill. However, if 
a household is about to be shut-off or there is a medical baseline or a crisis situation, we 
can pay up to $1,000.  

 
Craig Henderson wanted to know if a single-person household, with only a senior, can go 
up to $350, or if it is just for families. Loretta indicated that we can cover up to $350 or up to 
$1,000 in a crisis for a single senior, not just households with children, since seniors are a 
priority. 

102



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
PRE Committee Meeting Agenda 
January 11, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 

Loretta reported that with the Solar PV Pilot Project, they have completed 3 system 
installations and have 6 in progress. Loretta stated that Energy has a contract for the Water 
Tank Project with Self-Help Enterprises, which involves installing temporary water tanks for 
households whose wells have run dry since to the 2012 drought. Loretta reported that 32 
water tanks have been installed through this program. 
 
Fred thanked Loretta for her informative presentation and Craig praised Loretta and her 
staff for a job well done. 

 
6. New Business 
 

a. November-December 2016 Outreach & Advocacy Report and Cumulative Report of 2016 
Accomplishments – Louis Medina, Outreach and Advocacy Manager – Info Item 

Louis Medina presented several highlights from the end of the year, such as Teter 
Architects opening an art competition for the youth centers; increased social media efforts 
such as a CAPK Twitter and Instagram; and the creation of a 3-minute agency introduction 
video. The introduction video was played, and Louis indicated that it is being used with new 
hires as well as with external groups and partners. Michele Nowell stated that the video is 
working well with new hire orientations. 
 
Louis shared copies of the 2015-2016 CAPK Annual Report and a “Year in Review” report 
highlighting accomplishments from 2016. Accomplishments included Read Across America; 
the 2016 Humanitarian Awards Banquet; the biggest Feed the Need food drive to date; 
Friendship House Mixer; Energy Action Month; and the opening of the Rosamond Head 
Start center. 
 
Louis invited committee members to attend several upcoming events including: GET Bus 
Food Distribution & Resource Fair on January 20th, the Wesley Head Start center ribbon 
cutting on January 23rd, and VITA’s EITC Awareness Day on January 27th. 
 

b. December 2016 Program and Division Reports – Ralph Martinez, Director of Community 
Development – Action Item  

 2-1-1 Kern County  
 Central Kitchen 
 East Kern Family Resource Center 
 Energy 
 Friendship House Community Center 
 Food Bank 
 Migrant Childcare Alternative Payment (MCAP) 
 Shafter Youth Center 
 Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) 
 Women, Infants and Children (WIC) 
 Community Development – Grants & Research 
 Human Resources  
 Operations 

 

103



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
PRE Committee Meeting Agenda 
January 11, 2017 
Page 3 
 
 

Brady Bernhart, Community Development Specialist, spoke on behalf of Ralph Martinez. 
Brady shared several key activities from programs for the month of December, including: 2-
1-1 handled 6,598 incoming calls across all counties; Diana Morrison, Central Kitchen 
Manager, retired as of January 6th and Lorenzo Maldonado will be taking the position; and 
several Organizational Standards requirements (conflict of interest, bylaws, risk 
assessment) will be presented at the January 25th Board meeting. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the December 2016 Program and Division 
Reports.  Carried by Unanimous Vote.  (Henderson/Plane) 
 

c. Application Status Report and Funding Requests – Ralph Martinez, Director of Community 
Development – Action Item 

 Funding Request to Walmart Community Grants for CAPK VITA 
 Funding Request to Junior League of Bakersfield for EKFRC 

 
Brady Bernhart reported three pending applications: Feeding America/Morgan Stanley, 
Feeding America/Disney, and the County of Kern Community Development Block Grant. 
 
Brady reported two awards: County of Kern Community Corrections Partnership for 
$138,906 and Southern California Gas Company for $2,000. There were no declines. 
 
Brady presented two funding requests: $2,500 from the Wasco Walmart store for general 
operating support for CAPK VITA and $26,000 from the Junior League of Bakersfield for 
computer skills training and public computer access and 20 hours/week of staff time for 
East Kern families at the East Kern Family Resource Center. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Application Status Report and Funding 
Requests.  Carried by Unanimous Vote.  (Henderson/Plane) 
 

d. Head Start / State Child Development December Enrollment Update and Meals Report– 
Jerry Meade, Program, Design and Management Administrator – Action Item 
 
The Head Start report was tabled until the next meeting. 

 
7. Committee Member Comments 
 

No comments were made. 
 
8. Next Scheduled Meeting 
 

Program Review & Evaluation 
Wednesday, February 8, 2017  
12:00 p.m. 
5005 Business Park North 
Bakersfield, California 93309 

 
9. Adjournment 

 
The meeting adjourned at 12:45 pm. 

104



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
DIVISION/PROGRAM MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

 

Division/Director: Community Services/Romala Ramkissoon Month/Year: December 2016 

Program/Work Unit: 2-1-1 
Kern County 

Staffing: 17 (1  Vacancy) Program Manager/Supervisor: 
Esperanza Contreras 

Services: Provides 24/7 information and referral services via phone or CAPK’s website to residents of Kern.  Also 
provides call handling services for Kings, Tulare, Merced, and Mariposa Counties and schedules appointments for 
the CAPK Energy Program utility assistance services and provides application status updates. 

 

Activities Description 

Information & Referral Services Incoming Answered Unanswered Referrals 

Kern County 4,894 3,730 1,164 (24%) 8,475 

Kings County 169 105 64 (37%) * 

Tulare County 720 472 248(34%) * 

Mountain Valley (Mariposa and Merced Counties) 96 74        22  (23%) * 

Stanislaus County** 719 533     186  (26%) * 

Total 6,598 4,914    1,684 (26%)   

*2-1-1 Kern does not have access to the iCarol database for these counties. Per the agreements, 2-1-1 Kern provides referrals but 
does not track them. The information goes directly to the iCarol databases for the individual counties. 
**Started 10/16 

Most Requested Services Free Cell Phone Utility Assistance Food Pantries 

Top 3 Unmet  Needs Food/ Meals Clothing/ Personal/Household  Housing 

 

Other Services  Month YTD 

LIHEAP Calls Answered 3,628 61,562 

Weatherization Routed through 2-1-1 Calls Answered      319 5,043 

Mental Health Calls Answered 124 1,213 

Website Visitors Visitors to CAPK’s 2-1-1 Kern web page 1,960 17,268 

 

CalFresh Enrollments Onsite enrollment into CalFresh (Supplemental 
Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP/food 
stamps) 

Submitted Approved Pending 

11 2 9 

 

Outreach Activities Outcomes 

- Back to School Night, 11/3  
- Vision  Y Compromiso, 11/6 & 13 
- South High Health Wellness & Tamalada, 11/12 
- Thomas Jefferson Career Fair, 11/18 
- Turkey Trot, 11/19 
- Lamont Resource Fair, 12/3 
- North Beardsley State Preschool Parent Meeting 

12/9 

Distributed 150 2-1-1 Kern County informational cards. 
Distributed 100 2-1-1 Kern County informational cards. 
Distributed 100 2-1-1 Kern County informational cards. 
Distributed 150 2-1-1 Kern County informational cards. 
Distributed 100 2-1-1 Kern County informational cards. 
Distributed 200 2-1-1 Kern County informational cards. 
Distributed 150 2-1-1 Kern County informational cards. 

 
Highlights:  

 November 16th was National Information & Referral Service Day.  Manager & Supervisor provided lunch for 
staff to recognize the hard work and dedication of the 2-1-1 Kern Team.     

105



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
DIVISION/PROGRAM MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

 
 

Division/Director: Nutrition Services/Carmen Segovia Month/Year:   December  2016 

Program/Work Unit: Central Kitchen Program Manager: Lorenzo Maldonado 

Services: Preparation and delivery of meals and snacks for children enrolled in CAPK’s Head Start/Early Head Start 
and Home Base option. The program provides the meals for the H.S. /E.H.S and Home Base parent meetings.  The 
program also delivers food service and janitorial supplies to the Head Start/Early Head Start centers and Home 
Base locations. In summer, the program prepares and delivers meals for children at the Friendship House, Shafter 
Youth Center, and other locations throughout Kern County. 

 Total meals prepared are supported by the daily meal production sheets and food transport sheets. 

 VIP Parent meeting meal totals are supported by meal request forms submitted by center and Home Base 
staff.  

 

Activities  Status 

Meals & Snacks  Total # Prepared Breakfast Lunch  Snack  

Central Kitchen prepared for the  HS/EHS centers  65,796 23,360 25,102 17,334 

Home Base Meals  217 64 89 64 

VIP Parent Café Meeting Meals  1,485    

Summer Food Program Service       

Total 67,498 23,424 25,191 17,398 

 
Other:  

1. Two of the ten central kitchen food service vans were painted in November and having one more in 
December however we have concerns (chips in the paint, bubbles in the paint etc.) with both of the 
vans that need to be resolved before the paint is considered final. We are following up with the vendor 
to get the concerns corrected.  
 

2. The Central Kitchen’s staff development day was held on December 22, 2016. All employees reported 
to work at 6:00 to prep and deliver food to the center. After all deliveries were completed, staff drove to 
the offsite location for the event. 
 

3. Special diets accommodated during the month of December included lactose intolerance, gluten free, 
fructose free, and peanut allergies. The fructose free, soy free, sucrose free diet was especially 
challenging to accommodate and required that the staff to prepare special items such as homemade 
bread, muffins etc. 
 

4. During the Thanksgiving break, we planned and prepared two new recipes (Pot Roast and non-Yeast 
bread for a special diet). The pot roast recipe was on the menu for 12/15/16 lunch. 
 

5. With the January 6, 2017 retirement date for Diana Morrison I have been busy learning all aspects of 
the central kitchen management. I am getting continued support from the supervisors, staff at the 
central kitchen and Carmen Segovia.   

 
Program Staffing:  • A total of 27 Employees, this includes the three subs. There is one Cook II and one food 
production driver on MLA. As always, the central kitchen staff work hard to ensure the meals are prepared and 
delivered on time as well as keeping the kitchen clean and inspection ready.           

106



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
DIVISION/PROGRAM MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

 
 

Division/Director: Nutrition Services/Carmen Segovia Month/Year: December, 2016 

Program/Work Unit: East 
Kern Family  Resource Center 

Total Program Staffing:  6 Program Manager/Supervisor: Whitney Hughes 

Program/Work Unit Description: Serves low-income individuals and families residing in East Kern County 
communities of Boron, California City, Mojave, North Edwards, Rosamond, and Tehachapi. Services include case 
managing families with children who are at risk of abuse and neglect (Differential Response); preparing children to 
enter kindergarten (School Readiness Initiative); parenting education; emergency supplies closet for immediate 
basic needs such as clothing, food, diapers, infant formula, bus passes, and gas vouchers. 

 

Activities Description 
Status 

Month YTD 

Referrals for services 
Case Managed Families 

Differential Response  
F5K School Readiness  

22 
5 

      472 
 109 

Children participating in center-base program  0 49 

Adults in Court Mandated Parenting Classes  0 29 

Services to Walk-ins Services e.g., faxing and photocopying 
legal documents (such as such as birth 
certificates, Social Security cards, 
immigration status information 
needed to receive public assistance), 
food, clothing, referrals to other 
support services, and ongoing case 
management 

50      1216 

Emergency Supplies Closet and Other Services Food (individuals) 8 242 

Clothing (individuals) 18 343 

Photocopies (individuals) 
HEAP Application Supporting Docs 

       231 
42 

3144 
 1207 

    

 
Other:  Through the Kern Family Health grant, the EKFRC was able to provide two families with airbeds and blankets. 
 
Staffing:  Fully staffed   

107



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
DIVISION/PROGRAM MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

 

Division/Director: Community Services/Romala Ramkissoon Month/Year: December 2016 

Program/Work Unit: 
Energy 

Total Program Staffing:  56, 
including 1 temps and 2 
vacancies 

Program Manager/Supervisor: Vacant 

Services: Residential weatherization, utility bill payment assistance, and energy efficiency education for low-to- 
moderate-income Kern County residents. Also installation of interim water tanks for low-income households 
affected by the drought.  

 

 Status 

Activities Description Households Served 

Month YTD 
 

1.  Low Income Home Energy Assistance 
Program (LIHEAP) Utility Assistance 
(2015/2016) 

Assistance with utility bill payments 848 7,038 

2.  Low Income Home Energy Assistance 
Program(LIHEAP) Weatherization Assistance 
(2015) 

 Assistance with residential 
repair/weatherization (e.g., weather 
stripping, thermostats, 
door/window replacement, etc.) 

 Energy-efficient appliance 
installation 

61 
 
 
 

8 

678 
 
 
 

123 

3.  Low-Income Weatherization Program 
(LIWP) (2015) 

Assistance with residential repair/ 
weatherization (e.g., weather 
stripping, thermostats, door/window 
replacement, etc.) 

44 468 

4.  Interim Water Tank Installation Program Installation of interim water tanks for 
low-income households affected by 
the drought. 

1 33 

5.  Total Value of Services  $440,972 $4,103,997 

  Results 

6.  Energy calls received (from 2-1-1)  3,947 

  HEAP                   Wx 

7.  Number of LIHEAP applications Received  1205 106 

8.  Number of LIHEAP applications Completed  1055 73 

9.  Number of LIHEAP applications in Progress  150 22 

10.  Outreach  Colony square Apartments Distributed HEAP/Wx 
applications 

11. Collaborative Meetings Attended -0- meetings 

 
Other:  The value of services for LIHEAP & LIWP Weatherization Assistance Program is for the previous month due to 
the fact it is not determined until the report is completed on the 15th of each month.   The $440,972 is the value of 
utility assistance only. 

108



  COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
DIVISION/PROGRAM MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

 
 

Division/Director: Community Development/Ralph Martinez Month/Year: December 2016 

Program/Work Unit: 
Friendship House 

Total Program Staffing: 7 Program Manager/Supervisor: Lois Hannible 

Services:  After-school and summer programs, pre-employment program for youths, parenting classes, nutrition 
education, sports, gang prevention, and access to social services.  

 

Activities  Participants 
  

Description Purpose Month YTD 

Total Enrollment All programs   

After-School Program  Tutoring, homework assistance, recreation       0        
206 

GATES Gang Prevention Program  The Gang Prevention Program Aggression Replacement 
Training (ART) & Forward Thinking classes are provided 
at five local school sites to prevent at-risk youths from 
joining gangs. 

 
        0 

 
269 

 

Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 
Program  

The JAG program provides Aggression Replacement 
Training (ART) at two local school sites. The program will 
be provided at two additional school sites starting in 
August of 2016. 

 
 0 

 
63 

Grow Fit Families Program (new 
grant) 

Increase participants’ knowledge of nutrition, healthy 
eating choices, gardening, exposure to seasonal fresh 
produce, and participation in physical activities. 

 
0 

 
63 

STEM (Science, Technology, 
Engineering, Math) Program 

Engineering for Kids facilitated STEM camps during the 
FHCC summer program. The camps were sponsored by 
the Kern County Black Chamber of Commerce (KCBCC), 
Bright House Networks, and Californians for Energy 
Independence. 

 
0 

 
61 

Mobile Mexican Consulate Consulate services are provided at the Friendship House 
every Tuesday & every other Wednesday providing 
passport renewals, assistance with obtaining important 
documents, and providing DACA & protection 
information. 

247 10,033 

PREP Works Program Pre-employment program for at-risk youth that provides 
them with skills and knowledge to conduct job searches, 
financial literacy, plan for college/career. The program 
also provides the opportunity for paid work experience.  
(Program youth start in January 2017). 

0 0 

Realignment for Success Transitional services are provided to adults referred to 
the program by the Probation and Sheriff’s 
Departments. The program is to provide the participants 
with Aggression Replacement Training, Thinking for a 
Change, & parenting classes. (Program participants start 
in January 2017). 

0 0 

109



 
Other:  
 

 Santa Visits the Friendship House- 
On December 21, 2016 the Bakersfield Police Department surprised the Friendship House youth 
participants with a visit from Santa, and toys for each child, which were donated by the University of 
Phoenix. Staff from the BPD.  Santa danced with the children and took the time to take pictures with 
each participant. Thanks to the generosity of the BPD & University of Phoenix, the holiday party at 
the center is a day that the youth will not soon forget! 
 

 Dinner Boxes- 
On December 17, 2016 the Christian Housing Relief Project, headed by brothers Mike, Steve, and 
Gerald Ogden provided Christmas dinner boxers to 80 CAPK families in need. The dinner boxes 
included all of the fixings including a turkey, mash potatoes, corn, green beans, pumpkin pie, etc.   

 
 

   

110



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
DIVISION/PROGRAM MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

 
 

Division/Director: Nutrition Services/Carmen Segovia Month/Year: DECEMBER 2016 

Program/Work Unit: Food 
Bank 

Total Staffing:  15; No vacant 
positions. 

Program Manager/Supervisor: Glen Ephrom 

Services: Partners with 119 food distribution sites throughout Kern County to provide food assistance to low-
income families and individuals. Also operates the Back Pack Buddies program at several school sites during the 
school year to provide low-income, food-insecure children with ready-to-eat food on weekends and school breaks. 

 

 Status 

Activities Description Month YTD 

USDA Commodities Individuals Served (DEC 2016) 42,471 224,760 

    Poundage Received all Programs 1,221,558 11,874,386 

    Total Poundage Distributed all Sites 1,249,532 11,503,949 

Drought Emergency Food Assistance (DEFAP) Clients Served Families Individuals 

 DEC 2016 2,762 19,809 

 Total Poundage Distributed 242,460 2,745,600 

Food Sourcing Donations Received:  168,059 pounds of produce & 10 different 
produce items. 

 Ag Against Hunger: Mixed greens, berries, broccoli, & 
cauliflower 

 Bolthouse: Carrots 

 CA Emergency Food Link: Cabbage, potatoes, & bell peppers 

 Country Sweet Produce: Sweet Potatoes 

 Driscoll: Strawberries & Raspberries 

 Grimmway/Cal Organic: Green leafy, carrots, cabbage, 
potatoes 

 Target: Produce 

 TD Produce: Cabbage 

 Wonderful Co: Citrus 

Food Drives : 21,722  lbs & $ 649.73  Starbucks: 346 lbs 

 CA Dept. of Public Health and Licensing: 155 lbs 

 Path Point: 242 lbs 

 City of Bakersfield: 7,510 lbs 

 Rehab Hospital: 343 lbs 

 Veterans: 4,027 lbs 

 Maxim Healthcare Services, Inc.: 182 lbs 

 Edison Middle School: 1,751 lbs 

 Crystal Geyser: 54 lbs 

 Laurel glen Elementary: 664 lbs 

 Grimmway Farms: 6,448 lbs 

 Castle Elementary: $649.73 Monetary  

 Pierucci Fund Raiser Dinner $3,260.00 
 

 

111



Other:  1) Staff attended Senator Jean Fuller Open House 2) Volunteer Appreciation Pot Luck 3) Met with Grimmway 

Communication Staff to tour the Food Bank and showcase the operation for a written piece they created to highlight the 

Grimmway Staff Food Drive. 4) Attended the annual Pierucci Fund Raiser Dinner and spoke to the group to thank them for their 

generous donations. 5) Received 81,000 prepackaged Lintel Casserole meals from The Westside Church of Christ for distribution. 

6) Kick-Off of the FoodMaxx “GIVE. SHARE. CARE!” Holiday Giving Campaign. 7) Hosted Ameriprise Financial Staff (50) 

volunteers that sorted food and provided a lunch for staff and volunteers. 8) Self-Help CU with CAPK Food Bank 

Resource Fair at Lamont coinciding with our DEFAP Distribution. 

 

112



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
DIVISION/PROGRAM MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

 
 

Division/Director: Health & Nutrition Services/Carmen 
Segovia 

Month/Year: December 2016 

Program/Work Unit: 
Migrant Childcare AP Program 
(MCAP) 

Total Staffing:  17,  
2 vacancies; Office Clerk & 
Subsidized Reimbursement 
Specialist 

Program Manager/Supervisor:  
Susana Magana 

Services: The Migrant Childcare Alternative Payment Program is a voucher-based child care program for migrant 
agriculturally working families. The program has six entry counties: Kern, Kings, Madera, Merced, Tulare, and 
Fresno. Once enrolled, families can continue child care services as they migrate throughout the state following 
agricultural work. The program’s current Fiscal Year is July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016.                                                                                                                                                                              
*This report is for the service month of November 2016, which was processed in the month of December 2016. 

 

 Status 

Activities Description Total % by County 

Active Enrollments 
 

Kern** 394 47% 

Tulare 181 21% 

Kings 67 8% 

Fresno 104 9% 

Madera 65 6% 

Merced 41 9% 

Total 852 100% 
**Kern totals include services provided outside of the six entry counties. The case management for those families working and 
residing outside the six entry counties are handled by the regional office in Bakersfield. 

 
Other:  
Current Activities:  
MCAP continues enrolling new and returning families in the counties of Kern, Tulare, Kings, Fresno, Madera and 
Merced, for the FY 2016-2017.   Staff conducted 4 outreach events. Twenty (20) new families and forty seven (47) 
children were enrolled or recertified to continue services. 
 
During the month of December staff processed and mailed out over 800 Notices of Action, to inform families & 
childcare providers of the changes in reimbursement.  The new Regional Market Rate is effective 1/1/2017. 
 
MCAP held their annual staff development event at the Tulare satellite office on 12/9/16.  This event allowed MCAP 
staff from throughout the central valley to meet in a centralized location to partake in a teambuilding activity.  MCAP 
staff created mock stained glass paintings.  All the staff really enjoyed this activity and really appreciated spending 
face to face time with their colleagues.  
 
Upcoming Activities: 
Kern Parent and Provider meetings are tentatively scheduled for January 31st in Bakersfield and Feb 2nd in Delano.  
Location of the meetings are to be announced once the venues are confirmed.  
 
Program Manager and Program Director will be attending the California Child Development Administrators 
Association (CCDAA) Analysis of the Governor’s Budget on January 20, 2017 at the Kern Office of Education.  
 
MCAP management team will be attending California Child Development Administrators Association (CCDAA) Spring 
Technical Assistance Conference March 21-22 in Santa Rosa, CA. 
 

113



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
DIVISION/PROGRAM MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

 
 

Division/Director: Community Development/Ralph Martinez Month/Year:  December 2016  

Program/Work Unit: 
Shafter Youth Center 

Total Program Staffing:  3 
 

Program Manager/Supervisor: Angelica 
Nelson 

Services: Summer and after-school tutoring, homework assistance, educational, recreational, and social 
enrichment activities and services for children ages 6-18.  

 

Activities  Enrollment Status 

Description Purpose Month YTD 

After-School Program ( #’s as of 
1/1/2016) 

Tutoring, homework assistance, recreation 3 87 

Teen Pregnancy and Sexually 
Transmitted Infections Prevention 
(Information and Education)  (#”s 
as of 7/1/2016) 

Informing and educating teens ages 12-19 
years on preventing pregnancy and the 
spread of sexually transmitted infections.   
 
Currently awaiting the approval from 
MCAH to continue with educational 
presentations. 

   

Evening Program Activities held Monday, Tuesday, and 
Thursday evenings, 5:00-9:00; used for 
open basketball, Fitness Boot Camp, 
ancestry class and local groups use for 
meeting space. 
 
Currently, Basketball is the only event that 
is taking place during the evening 
program. 
 

Basketball – 
15-20 
 

 

Nutrition Education through Kern 
County Dept. of Public Health 

Education classes teaching students to eat 
right, and exercise.  Gardening sessions 
will begin later. 

3 188 

Summer Program An expanded version of the after school 
program that includes guest speakers, 
themed weekly activities and recreation.  
Full day and part day options available.  

 111 

STEM Program Sessions by Sylvan Learning Center 
teaching kids about Science, Technology, 
Engineering and Math.  Instructors have 
been having lessons in computer lab 
learning about coding. 

30 30 

 
Other:  SYC held a Christmas Celebration with the kids on December 22nd.  Santa was the guest of honor and the kids 
all enjoyed the day. 
SYC kids had the opportunity to enter an art contest for Teter Architects. One of our kids won a $100 gift card to Toys 
R Us. 

114



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
DIVISION/PROGRAM MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

 
 

Division/Director: Community Services/Romala Ramkissoon Month/Year: December 2016 

Program/Work Unit: VITA Total Program Staffing:  3 full 
time staff and 1 part time 
staff   

Program Manager/Supervisor: Sandi Truman 

Services: Trained volunteers provide free tax preparation and e-filing for low- medium income individuals 
and families and assist clients with application for Earned Income Tax Credit (EITC).  

 

 Results 

Activities Description Month YTD 

Tax  Returns Completed State and Federal 18 4780 

Refunds Federal $17,861 $6,730,888 

 State $1,046 $780,641 

 EITC $9,771 $3,090,128 

 CA EITC $0 $203,655 

Total Refunds  $18,907 $7,511,529 

   

 
Other:  Now that the regular tax season is over, we have only 1 location open at 300 19th street. 
 
We have finished all of our training classes and are now open through the end of December for new volunteers to 
come in and practice. 
 
We have 32 new volunteers trained to do tax returns and 10 people not certified that will be working at our front 
desk. 
 
We are hiring 2 more people to work our phone lines for scheduling appointments. 
 

115



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 

DIVISION/PROGRAM MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 
 

Division/Director: Nutrition Services/Carmen Segovia Month/Year: December , 2016 

Program/Work Unit: WIC Total Program Staffing:  75 
staff, 10  vacancies  

Program Manager/Supervisor: Elizabeth 
Tolley 

Services: Nutrition education, breastfeeding support, and food vouchers for families with infants, children up to 
age 5, and women who are pregnant, postpartum or breastfeeding. Services provided at 21 sites in Kern County, 5 
sites in San Bernardino County, and through the WIC mobile clinic.  

 

 Participation 
10/1/16-9/30/17 

Description Case  
Load 

Month Central 
Valley 
Avg. 

State  
Avg. 

Total  All services 19,970 15,866= 79.5% pending pending 

Participation by WIC 
site 

Location Participants Location Participants 

Note:  The * indicates that 
the participants served at 
this site are included  in 
the count for other sites. 
IT Equipment from other 
WIC site was used to issue 
food vouchers.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Arvin 
Bakersfield 
   Homeless Shelter 
   E. California Avenue 
   Niles Street 
   Montclair 
   Friendship House 
   Panama 
Boron 
Buttonwillow 
California City 
China Lake Naval 
Station 
Delano 
Edwards Air Force Base 
Lost Hills 

100 
 

10 
1685 
2387 

434 
174 
973 

59 
66 

689 
* 

 
944 
112 
169 

Mojave 
Oildale 
Ridgecrest 
Rosamond 
Shafter 
Tehachapi 
Wasco 
 
San Bernardino County 
   Adelanto 
   Big Bear 
   Crestline 
   Needles 
   Phelan 
 
Mobile WIC 
 

158 
455 

                   754          
                   556 

1268 
502 

1804 
 
 

                 1719 
286 
311 
186 

50 
                  

                     15 
 

Projects 

Participation for December is affected by several factors. Traditionally many families go home for Thanksgiving  
holiday and stay through Christmas returning in January. Also because of the Holidays the clinics are not open as 
many days. December had 19 days for the clinics to be opened instead of 20 or 21 days which is a normal month. At 
the end of the month 400 to 600 clients ( equal to 2 to 3 % of caseload) are usually served per day .  
 
Four of the WIC Nutrition Assistants (WNA) completed the certification process. When a WNA is hired he/she has a 
year to become certified. Certification involves intensive training in the nutritional needs of pregnant and post-
partum women, infants and young children as well as group and individual educational methods. The skills gained 
are demonstrated by observations of counseling sessions of charted documentation. Congratulations to Lakeisha 
Griffin, Terriva  Porter, Cynthia Randolph, and Yesenia Garcia.  
 
December 5 through 8 staff from State WIC came to CAPK WIC for a program monitoring visit. They reviewed 
documentation in client charts, CAPK WIC policies and procedures, observed staff counseling sessions and visited 
sites to assess compliance with regulations for confidentiality, voucher security and customer service.  They were 
able to visit some very small sites as well as the larger ones. They provided nightly debriefings but the complete 
report should be received in the next two weeks. 

 116



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
DIVISION/PROGRAM MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

 

Division/Director: Community Development/Ralph Martinez Month/Year: December 2016 

Program/Work Unit: Grants 
& Research 

Total Staffing:  3 Program Manager/Supervisor: Not Applicable 

Services: Grant proposal preparation, research on funding resources and opportunities, and special projects. 
 

 Status 

Activities Description In Progress Submitted 
Grant Applications  Dignity Health – Grow Fit (FHCC & SYC)  X 

 Community Development Block Grant (City) – Property & 
Security Improvements – Food Bank 

 X 

 Bank of the West – 2016-17 Tax Season – VITA  X 

 United Way of Kern County – General Support – Food Bank  X 

 Kern Family Health Care – First Aid & Hygiene Kits – FHCC & SYC  X 

 Kern County Network for Children – Differential Response – 
EKFRC  

 X 

 Kaiser Permanente – Event Sponsorship – 2017 CAPK Banquet  X 

 Dignity Health – Event Sponsorship – 2017 CAPK Banquet  X 

 Feeding America/Disney – Produce Grant – Food Bank  X 

 Feeding America/Morgan Stanley – Produce Grant – Food Bank  X 

 Community Development Block Grant (County) – Property & 
Security Improvements – Food Bank 

 X 

 CA Dept. of Education – Renewal Funding – MCAP  X 

 Walmart Community Grants—Wasco VITA  X 

Potential  Funding 
Opportunities – 

Research in Progress 

 Feeding America/Enterprise Rent A Car Foundation 
Senior Hunger Intervention Engagement 

 

 

Projects Description In Progress Completed 
Strategic Plan 2016-
2021 

Board approved 10/26. Work Groups formed for 6 goals. Creating 
implementation timeline. 

X 
 

Organizational 
Standards 

Collecting documentation to meet and support all Organizational 
Standards. Drafts of Risk Management Assessment, Bylaws, and 
Succession Plan are ready for staff and/or committee review. 

X 
 

VITA 2016 Season 
Letter Campaign 

Drafted letter to send to list of local financial institutions without 
grant applications/cycles. 

 
X 

CSBG Annual Report 
Update 

Staff Training X  

Surveys  CAPK Partners Satisfaction Survey – Draft Analysis complete. 

 CAPK Employees Satisfaction Survey – Analysis in progress (412 
surveys submitted in total) 

 CAPK Customers Satisfaction Survey – Survey period 11/1 - 12/2 

 
X 
X 

X 
 

 
Other:   

 Conducted the Strategic Plan Implementation meeting and rolled out tools for developing strategic activities.  

 Follow up call with CA Dept. of Social Services on Commodity Supplemental Food Program to discuss capabilities. 

 Kaiser Permanente Support for 2017 Humanitarian Awards Banquet has been confirmed at the Table Sponsor Level 
($1,000). 
 

117



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
DIVISION/PROGRAM MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

 
 

Division/Director: Human Resources/Michele Nowell Month/Year: December 2016 

Program/Work Unit: 
HR/Payroll/Staffing 

Total Division Staffing:  12 Program Manager/Supervisor:  
Mike Lackman/Eric Kelley/Dawn Bledsoe 

Services: All functions and activities related to payroll, staffing, employee benefits administration, labor law 
compliance, personnel management, and Union Contract. 

 

 Status 

Activities Description Month YTD 

Employee Count 
  

Regular 
Subs/Temps 

Total Staff 

821 
28 

849 

 

New Hires All divisions and programs 
  Regular 
  Subs/Temps 

Total New Hires 

 
3 
1 
4 

 
133 
36 

120 

Leaves of Absence Intermittent Leave 
Full-time Leave  
Total on Leave 

62 
22 
84 

 

Terminations All divisions and programs 
  Voluntary 
  Involuntary 

  Total Terminations 

 
6 
3 
9 

 
127 
57 

184 

Staffing 
 

Vacancy 
Total Applications Received 

11 
91 

- 
2027 

Payroll Total Hours Paid   
 

Total Payroll 

131,140 
 

$2,282,035 

 

 
Projects Completed (last 6 months): 

Benefits on line training for all managers and center directors on 10/24 
(approximately 100 staff members). 
Completed 2017 Open Enrollment online.   
Trained Head Start Managers on Electronic Attendance tracking. Regular 
Part-Year staff (10 month employees) went to electronic attendance on 
9/26/16.  
Attorney completed review of new Employee Manual.  
New Sick Leave Cash Out policy for full year employees. 
 
Ongoing:  
Employee Policy Manual sent to Board and Union for review. 
Online Recruitment via ADP  
Time and Attendance in ADP, Full-year attendance policy in review with 
Union. 

 

118



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
DIVISION/PROGRAM MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

 
 

 

Division/Director: Operations/Emilio Wagner Month/Year: December 2016 

Program/Work Unit: Business 
Services/ Maintenance & 
Operations/Information 
Technology/Risk Management 

Total Division Staffing: 
23 

Program Manager/Supervisor: Margaret 
Palmer/Dan Ripoli/Bryon Vanderhoff/Laurie 
Sproule 

Services: Facility repair and maintenance, procurement, information technology, safety, risk insurance, vehicle 
registration, contracts, and facility planning. 

 

 STATUS 

Activities Description 
 
  

Received Completed 
March 1, 
2016 to 

Date 

Business Services     

Purchase Orders 
Processed 

 133 1639 

Contracts/Leases 
Processed 

 1 146 
 

Request for Proposals 
(RFP) 

 Food Bank Solar 

 Mechanical Ventilation – Weatherization 

 Insulation Contractor – Weatherization 

Contract Awarded 
Drafting 

Out to bid 

Leases  Renew James St - WIC 

 St John’s Wasco Head Start 

Pending State Approval  
Draft lease expected 

Contracts  Reviewed Consulting Contact for SJEHS 

 Reviewed MOU between SJ CCCI and CAPK SJEHS 

Complete 
Complete 

 

Maintenance & 
Operations  

 Received 03/01/2016 
to Date 
Closed 

Facility Work Orders 
Processed 

Repair and maintenance of CAPK facilities and vehicles. 6  2,654 

Projects  Stine & Primeros Pasos Sinks – Head Start 

 Wesley Head Start – Completing minor improvements to 
operate Head Start classroom. 

 Replaced two exterior doors at 19th Street 

Awarding Contract 
Completed 

 
Complete 

 

Contracts Janitorial Service Out to Bid 

 

 

 

119



Operations Division December 2016 Report – Continued 
 

Information 
Technology 

 Received 03/01/2016 
to Date 
Closed 

Help Desk Work 
Orders Processed 

Technical assistance to employees, repairs, troubleshooting, 
coordination of services with IT services subcontractor 

123 2011 
 

Projects  E-Rate application 

 CAPK infrastructure analysis and planning 

 Implement Office 365 password sync with CAPK active 
directory. 

 Train staff on use of Skype For Business 

Approved 
In progress 
In progress 

 
In progress 

Risk Management  Reported 07/01/2016 
to Date 

Workers 
Compensation 
Incidents 

 For Report Only 

 First Aid 

 Medical Treatment 

 Modified Duty 

 Non-Industrial (not work related) 

 Under Investigation 

8 
0 
2 
2 
1 
0 

92 
19 
8 
8 
8 
1 

Property Incidents  1 12 

Vehicle Incidents  3 10 

Projects  Risk Assessment 

 Disaster preparedness policy 

 Reasonable Suspicion Drug Test Training  

 Other—safety training and meetings, update Material 
Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) and Safety Data Sheets (SDS) 

In Progress 
In progress 
In Progress 
In Progress 

 

 

Other: E-rate Funding – Notice was received that our request for funding to subsidize the cost of internet 
service for the Head Start program was approved.  Since multiple services were under contract for one 
additional year at the time of the application, not all sites were included.  IT is currently in the process of 
compiling the RFP for next year’s funding which will include all Head Start Sites. 

120



2/17/2016 (B&F) 2/25/2016 AstraZeneca FHCC & SYC/Grow Fit Program 175,198$          
5/25/2016 (Board) 5/31/2016 U.S Dept of Treasury/ IRS VITA/Kern VITA Partnership - Year 2* 223,315$          
6/22/2016 (B&F) 6/28/2016 Best Buy Foundation FHCC/Winners Program 9,800$              
7/13/2016 (Exec)** 8/10/2016 Wells Fargo Community Development/ Financial Literacy & Microloan Program 30,000$            

8/17/2016 (B&F) 8/12/2016 U.S Dept of Housing & Urban Development 2-1-1 Kern/ Kern County Homeless Coordinated Entry System 178,000$          
8/17/2016 (B&F) 8/23/2016 U.S Dept. of Labor/ Fresno Regional Workforce 

Development Board (MOU)
Program TBD/ America's Promise Job Driven Grant Program 50,000$            

9/21/2016 (B&F) 9/1/2016 U.S Dept. of Agriculture/ California Department of 
Social Services

Food Bank/ Commodity Supplemental Food Program 444,000$          

9/21/2016 (B&F) 10/14/2016 Kern County Network for Children EKFRC/ Differential Response Services 209,094$          
9/21/2016 (B&F) 10/13/2016 Dignity Health FHCC & SYC/ Grow Fit Families Program 75,000$            
10/26/2016 (Board) 9/23/2016 TJX Foundation Food Bank/ General Support 5,000$              
10/26/2016 (Board) 10/4/2016 United Way of Kern County - 2017 Hunger & 

Homelessness
Food Bank/ General Support 50,000$            

10/26/2016 (Board) 10/28/2016 City of Bakersfield/ Community Development Block 
Grant

Food Bank/ Proprerty & Security Improvements 61,500$            

10/26/2016 (Board) 11/22/2016 County of Kern/ Community Development Block 
Grant

Food Bank/ Proprerty & Security Improvements 61,500$            

12/14/2016 (Exec) 11/30/2016 Tri Counties Bank VITA/ 2016 Tax Season 2,500$              
12/14/2016 (Exec) 12/13/2016 Rabobank VITA/ 2016 Tax Season 4,500$              

*Received notification of IRS funding for Year 1 of request; Year 2 notification pending.

**Board did not approve use of funds for Microloan Program. Currently exploring alternatives with Wells Fargo.

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN

FUNDING REQUESTS AND APPLICATION STATUS REPORT 

PENDING ‐ December 2016

Funding Source Program/ProposalDate Approved
Date of App. 
Submission

Amount  
Requested

121



1/13/2016 (PRE) 3/24/2016 California Department of Public Health FHCC & SYC/Sexual Health Information 
& Education (I&E) Program

 $      115,000  $       80,000 7/1/2016 - 6/30/2017

1/13/2016 (PRE) 5/23/2016 United Way of Kern County 
(Emergency Food & Shelter)

Food Bank/Food  $        85,000  $       84,507 1/16/2015 - 12/31/2016

5/11/2016 (PRE) 6/20/2016 Kern Family Health Care East Kern Family Resource Center/ 
Emergency Supplies Closet

 $          2,000  $         2,000 7/1/2016 - 6/30/2017

2/10/2016 (PRE) 6/23/2016 Kaiser Permanente Kern County FHCC/Grow Fit Program  $        13,181  $       10,000 7/1/2016 - 6/30/2017
6/22/2016 (B&F) 7/1/2016 PG&E FHCC/Computer Lab Upgrade  $          3,000  $         3,000 7/1/2016 - 6/30/2017
5/25/2016 (Board) 7/11/2016 Target SYC/Art Smart Program  $          2,500  $         2,500 10/1/2016 - 9/30/2017
6/22/2016 (B&F) 7/13/2016 The Starbucks Foundation FHCC & SYC/PREP Works  $        49,606  $       40,000 1/1/2017 - 6/30/2017
3/30/2016 (Board) 8/11/2016 Chevron 2016 Social Investment 

Program
FHCC & SYC/STEM Program  $        21,500  $       21,500 7/1/2016 - 6/31/2017

5/25/2016 (Board) 9/15/2016 U.S Dept of Treasury/ IRS VITA/Kern VITA Partnership - Year 1  $      222,723  $       84,815 8/1/2016 - 7/31/2017
8/17/2016 (B&F) 9/6/2016 Bank of America Food Bank/ BackPack Buddies - Lamont  $        25,000  $         9,000 1/1/2017 - 12/31/2017

8/17/2016 (B&F) 9/6/2016 United Way of Stanislaus County 2-1-1 Kern/ Call Answering Services  $        45,000  $       40,500 10/1/2016 - 6/30/2017
10/26/2016 (Board) 10/14/2016 Walmart/ Community Grants Program Food Bank/ General Support  $          2,500  $         1,000 1/1/2017 - 12/31/2017

8/10/2016 11/10/2016 County of Kern (Community 
Corrections Partnership)

FHCC/Workforce Development Services 
for Ex-offenders

 $      354,840  $     138,906 10/1/2016 - 12/31/2018

10/26/2016 (Board) 11/14/2016 Southern California Gas Company Food Bank/ Delano Fall Food Drive  $          2,000  $         2,000 1/1/2017 - 12/31/2017
10/26/2016 (Board) 12/9/2016 Bank of the West VITA/ 2016 Tax Season  $          2,500  $         2,500 9/1/2016 - 6/30/2017

8/17/2016 (B&F) 12/5/2016 Southern California Gas Company Food Bank/ Solar Energy 
Improvement Project

 $        25,000  $         5,000 1/1/2017 - 12/31/2017

10/26/2016 (Board) 12/20/2016 Kern Family Health Care FHCC & SYC/ First Aid, Emergency 
Preparedness & Hygiene Kits

 $          1,500  $         1,500 1/1/2017 - 12/31/2017

11/30/2016 (Board) 12/22/2016 Feeding America/ Disney Food Bank/ Produce Program  $        15,000  $       15,000 1/1/2017 - 6/30/2017
TOTAL $     543,728 

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN

AWARDED ‐ December 2016

Program/ProposalFunding SourceDate Approved
Date of 

Notification

FUNDING REQUESTS AND APPLICATION STATUS REPORT

 Amount 
Requested 

Amount 
Awarded

Funding Period

122



Amount 
Requested

10/21/2015 (B&F) 1/8/2016 Wonderful Foundation SYC/PREP Works 49,000$                 
10/28/15 (Board) 2/1/2016 California Coastal Commission FHCC & SYC/Marine Studies Program 15,888$                 
2/10/2016 (PRE) 3/31/2016 Walmart State Giving Program Food Bank/Pickup Truck 30,000$                 
1/13/2016 (PRE) 5/23/2016 Junior League of Bakersfield East Kern Family Resource Center/ Emergency 

Supplies Closet 
5,000$                   

5/25/2016 (Board) 5/26/2016 First 5 Kern 211 Kern/Developmental Screening and Care 
Coordination

332,859$               

6/22/2016 (B&F) 7/1/2016 United Way of Fresno and Madera Counties 2-1-1 Kern/After-hours & Weekend Call Answering 39,756$                 

7/16/2016 (Exec) 8/31/2016 Walmart State Giving Program Food Bank/Equipment 34,350$                 

12/9/2015 (Exec) 9/22/2016 USDA/National Institute of Food and 
Agriculture (NIFA) 

Food Bank/Kern Nutrition on Wheels Program 329,500$               

6/29/2016 (Board) 12/6/2016 Cy Pres CRT Settlement Fund East Kern Family Resource Center/Computers, 
Internet Service, Printer

65,539$                 

8/17/2016 (B&F) 12/9/2016 Wonderful Foundation Food Bank/ BackPack Buddies - Wasco 24,661$                 
9/21/2016 (B&F) 12/9/2016 Wonderful Foundation VITA/ Wasco 18,600$                 
11/30/2016 (Board) 12/22/2016 Feeding America/ Morgan Stanley Food Bank/ Produce Program 25,000$                 

Funding Source Program/ProposalDate Approved
Date of 

Notification

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN

FUNDING REQUESTS AND APPLICATION STATUS REPORT

DECLINED ‐ December 2016

123



124



125



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
DIVISION/PROGRAM MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

 
 

Division/Director: Head Start/State Child 
Development/Yolanda Gonzales 

Month/Year: December 2016 

Program/Work Unit: Head Start/Early Head Start Program Manager/Supervisor: Jerry Meade/ 
Donna Holland 

Services: Early childhood education for low-moderate income children ages 0-5 in center-based part-day or full-
day environments and home-based options.  

 

Program Enrollment Funded Actual 

Head Start Kern December   2016 2,041 1968* 

Early Head Start Kern December   2016 328 333 

Early Head Start Partnership December   2016 56 40 

Early Head Start San Joaquin December   2016 345 246 

TOTAL Funded Enrollment   2770 2615 

Children with Disabilities Goal Actual 

Head Start Kern Identified as having an IEP 10% 8% 

Early Head Start Kern Identified as having an IFSP 10% 10% 

Early Head Start Partnership Identified as having an IFSP 10% 2% 

Early Head Start San Joaquin Identified as having an IFSP 10% 7% 

Over Income Goal Actual 

Head Start Kern Within 100% and 130% of Federal Poverty Rate <10% 5% 

Early Head Start Kern Within 100% and 130% of Federal Poverty Rate <10% 5% 

Early Head Start Partnership Within 100% and 130% of Federal Poverty Rate <10% 4% 

Early Head Start San Joaquin Within 100% and 130% of Federal Poverty Rate <10% 3% 

                                          Average Daily Attendance  
                                         (Program Wide >85%) 

98% 

 

Meals Served 

Total Meals Requested  Meals Allocated  % of Meals Served 

by: 
Central 
Kitchen 

by: 
Vendor 
Kitchens 

Total 
Meals 
Prepared 

to: 
CACFP/USDA 

to: 
HS/EHS 

December 
2015 

December  
2016 

**       
* late start for Wesley Child Development center.  
**data not available at the time of the PRE Meeting 
 

Other:  We had 4 Centers with 100% attendance for December: Faith, Pioneer, Seibert, and St Mary’s. 

 
Total Division Staffing:  Currently employed in Head Start: 578 

Vacant Positions: 23 
Currently out on Leave: 68 

 
Program Updates: Head Start Kern Duration Grant was Awarded.   

126



 

• November 2: Rosamond Head Start Center Ribbon Cutting & Open House  
• November 4: Friendship House Zumba Party Fundraiser to take the children to the Fresno Zoo.  
• November 8: Hosted the November “Think Tank Tuesday” Meeting of the Kern Innovation & 

Technology (KIT) Community at CAPK Headquarters.  
• November 12: Congressman David Valadao’s Fall Food Drive in Delano to benefit the CAPK Food Bank 
• November 14: Kicked off the Save Mart/FoodMaxx “Give. Share. CARE!” Holiday Giving Campaign with 

$200 donation from Mayor Harvey Hall with photo op and media presence.  
• November 16: KGET Holiday Food Drive to benefit the CAPK Food Bank all day in front of KGET studios. 
• November 21: Photo op of $5,000 check presentation from Cal Water 
• November 29: Participated in Giving Tuesday 
• November 30: TETER Architects & Engineers presented a $4,000 Holiday donation to the CAPK Food 

Bank, and $100 Toys ‘R’ Us Gift cards to the Friendship House and Shafter Youth Center winners of the 
TETER/CAPK Holiday Artwork Competition at the November Meeting of the CAPK Board of Directors.  

• December 3: Self-Help Federal Credit Union Outreach in Lamont with CAPK Food Bank and 2-1-1 
Participation. 

• December 8-14: Participated in the Kern Council of Government’s Walking Audits and Online Surveys 
to help make Kern County roads safer for pedestrians and bicyclists, and had a Community Voices 
published in the 12/12 Californian.   

• December 9: Began tweeting @CAP_Kern. 
• December 12: Completed CAPK’s Agency Introduction Video to help raise awareness about our agency 

and its many programs. 
• December 13: Attended the Kern County Black Chamber of Commerce’s Holiday Mixer.  
• December 15: Published CAPK’S 2016 Annual Report electronically and posted to the CAPK website. 
• December 15: Introduced ideas for promoting the Strategic Plan among employees to get their buy-in 

at the Strategic Plan Implementation Kick-Off Meeting 
• December 19: Introduced “Mannequin Challenge Monday” to begin showcasing various CAPK 

programs and activities to the community using video posts on social media.    
• December 22: Published the Fall/Winter Issue of The CAPK Times Newsletter. 
• December 22: Delano Head Start Center received a visit from the North Kern State Prison Santa and his 

helpers.  
• December 27: Photo op of $2,000 check presentation from Rabobank to the CAPK Food Bank 
• December 27 – 29: the Drought Emergency Food Assistance Program of the CAPK Food Bank received a 

lot of media attention during the last week of the year. 
• Throughout the Month of December: Lots of food drives, toy drives and donations to benefit our 

children’s programs and the Food Bank. Developed materials to help the VITA Program prepare for the 
upcoming tax season. Assisted Friendship House with the development of promotional materials for 
the PREP Works Program.  
 

Coming up in January 2017: 
• January 20: GET BUS Food Distribution & Resource Fair Downtown with CAPK participation, 9 a.m. till 

Noon, at the corner of 22nd and Eye Streets 
• January 23: Wesley Head Start Center Ribbon Cutting & Open House, 10 to 11 a.m. at the campus of 

Wesley United Methodist Church, corner of Niles and Oswell 
• January 27: CAPK VITA’s Earned Income Tax Credit Awareness Day, 10 to 11 a.m. at CAPK’s 19th Street 

Office.  

127



Outreach & Advocacy Unit’s Cumulative Report of Accomplishments in 2016 
 
January 
(1/28) Mike McCarthy and other professional baseball players’ visit to Friendship House  
(1/29) VITA - Earned Income Tax Credit Awareness Day Event on the last Friday of January 
 
February 
(2/6) Head Start Family Resource Fair at Hodel’s 
(2/9 & 2/11) 2-1-1 Kern Information & Referral - 2-1-1 Awareness Day, County of Kern 
Proclamation and Open House at 2-1-1 Kern Headquarters 
 
March 
(Throughout the Month) Head Start - Read Across America - Photography and social media 
posts, including one that went viral as it was shared by KGET Chief Meteorologist Alissa Carlson 
(3/1) Hosted the Delano Community Alliance Breakfast at the Delano Campus of Bakersfield 
College, followed by a Read Across America event at Delano Head Start 
(3/1) WIC - Nutrition Awareness Month - Photos during County Proclamation 
(3/18) Food Bank - Stuff the Bus Food Drive  
(3/29) Energy – Temporary Water Assistance Program tank installation media event and 
successful outreach campaign. 
 
April 
(4/18) Participated in CAPK's Strategic Planning kickoff effort. 
 
May 
(5/3) Give BIG Kern 
(5/12) CAPK Humanitarian Awards Banquet & Fundraiser at DoubleTree by Hilton  
(5/19) Third Thursday Downtown at Mill Creek Park 
 
July 
(7/6) Presentation to Oildale Kiwanis Club at Hodel’s 
(7/12) Attended State of the City Luncheon 
(All month long) Migrated outdated CAPK Intranet files to underutilized modules of our APD 
Account.  
 
August 
(8/2) WIC - Breastfeeding Awareness Month - Kern County Proclamation and Outreach Event at 
the Valley Plaza Mall 
(8/5) Head Start Home Based Program – Child car seat giveaway 
(8/6) 2-1-1 Kern Information & Referral - Partnering with the Kern Innovation & Technology 
Community to sponsor the Tech Fighting the Wildfires Hackathon 
(8/17) Launched the East Kern Family Resource Center’s Facebook Page with in-kind support 
from local PR firm Providence Strategic Consulting 

128



(8/18) Attended the San Joaquin Valley Affordable Housing Summit in Fresno. CAPK became an 
official sponsor and organizer of this summit, and promoted the Migrant Childcare Program, 
which has a statewide service footprint.  
(8/24) The Quad at Friendship House Ribbon Cutting 
(Week of 8/29) Attended National Community Action Partnership Conference in Austin, TX 

September 
(9/8-9) The Molina Foundation Book Giveaway and Reading Activities at Head Start Centers 
(9/27) Food Bank - Feed the Need Food Drive at the Kern County Fair - most poundage collected 
to date 

October 
(All month long) Energy - Energy Action & Weatherization Month Campaign, including County 
Proclamation (10/4) and awareness activities all month, resulting in increased client traffic for 
both Weatherization and HEAP services. 
(10/13) Veterans Stand Down 
(10/20) Third Thursday Downtown at Mill Creek Park 
(10/24 & 10/31) Harvest Festivals at CAPK Friendship House and Shafter Youth Center 
(10/27) Friendship House Mixer & More at Metro Galleries 

November 
(11/2) Head Start - Rosamond Head Start Center Ribbon Cutting & Open House  
(11/8) Hosted Think Tank Tuesday of the Kern Innovation & Technology Community 
(11/16) Food Bank - KGET Holiday Food Drive  
(11/30) Shafter Youth Center & Friendship House - TETER/CAPK Holiday Greeting Card Artwork 
Competition 
(Throughout the month) Food drives to collect food for the holidays to benefit the Food Bank 

December 
(All month long) Photography and social media posts for Various Food Drives and Toy Drives to 
benefit the CAPK Food Bank and Head Start Centers 
(12/8-14) Walking Audits with the Kern Council of Governments 
(12/9) Launched a new Twitter account, @CAPK_Kern 
(12/15) CAPK 2016 Annual Report 
(12/19) Mannequin Challenge Monday 

All Year Long 
Issued approximately 40 media releases, contributed numerous articles to the Kern Business Journal, 
The Bakersfield Californian, The McFarland News, The Mountain Enterprise, The Delano Record and 
other Reed Publications. Began fruitful collaboration with The Mojave Desert News and Spanish Radio 
Manantial to better promote CAPK Programs. Increased the output of the Outreach & Advocacy Office 
through strategic hires of two staff with strong skills in graphic design, social media, video and Spanish 
translation. Greatly improved the quality of The CAPK Times Newsletter.  

129



  
 COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP of KERN  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  

5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA  
January 18, 2017  

12:00 p.m.  
 

MEETING MINUTES 

1. Call to Order 

Warren Peterson called the meeting to order at 12:07pm at the Community Action Partnership 
of Kern Administrative Building, 5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA 

2. Roll Call 
 
Roll Call was taken with a quorum present: 
 
Present: Warren Peterson, Ana Vigil 
 
Absent: Yolanda Ochoa 
 
Others present: Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director; Christine Anami, Director of Finance; 
Carmen Segovia, Director of Health and Nutrition; Michele Nowell, Director of Human 
Resources; Ralph Martinez, Director of Community Development; Yolanda Gonzales, 
Director of Head Start / State Child Development; other CAPK staff. 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 

 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Budget & Finance Committee meeting 
agenda of January 18, 2017. Carried by unanimous vote. (Peterson/Vigil) 

 
4. Public Forum: (The public may address the committee on items not on the agenda. 

Speakers are limited to 3 minutes. If more than one person wishes to address the same 
topic, the total group time for the topic will be 10 minutes. Please state your name before 
making your presentation.) 

No one addressed the Committee. 

5. New Business  

a. Application Status Report and Funding Requests -Ralph Martinez, Director of Community 
Development – Action Item 

 Funding Request to Walmart Community Grants for CAPK VITA 
 Funding Request to Junior League of Bakersfield for EKFRC 

 
Ralph Martinez reported four awards from the month of December: $2,500 from Bank of 
the West for CAPK VITA; $5,000 for Southern California Gas Company for Food Bank; 

130



Community Action Partnership of Kern                                               
Budget & Finance Committee Meeting Minutes                                         
January 18, 2016                                                                         
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

$1,500 from Kern Family Health Care for the two youth centers; and $15,000 from Feeding 
America / Disney for the Food Bank.  

 
Ralph reported three declined applications, two of them from Wonderful Foundation. This 
was surprising, as they contacted us with suggestions for the application and we 
responded with some detailed funding options. Ana Vigil asked if anyone else in the area 
was funded. Ralph stated that he will follow up to find out who was funded and ask why 
we were unsuccessful. Warren wanted to know if funders are usually forthcoming in these 
conversations. Ralph indicated that we have worked with Wonderful Company in the past 
and have received funding from them, so there should be an opportunity to have this 
conversation. Warren asked to know what the outcome of the conversation is. 
 
Two funding requests were presented for approval: $2,500 from the Walmart location in 
Wasco to support CAPK VITA in the Wasco area, and $26,000 from the Junior League of 
Bakersfield to provide computer skills training and public computer access at the East 
Kern Family Resource center in Mojave for local families in the area. 

 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Application Status Report and Funding 
Requests. Carried by unanimous vote. (Peterson/Vigil) 

 
b. Draft Succession Plan for Executive Director – Ralph Martinez, Director of Community 

Development – Info Item 
 Draft Executive Director Succession Plan Policy 
 Guideline for the Appointment of an Acting Executive Director 
 Emergency Backup Succession Plan Detail 

 
Ralph presented the Draft Succession Plan for the Executive Director, a requirement 
under the organizational standards. This was presented to the Executive Committee in 
December. Once completed, the document will detail back-up individuals, roles and 
responsibilities, and a communication plan, in the event of an unexpected absence of the 
Executive Director. This draft will be presented to the CAPK Board on January 25th. While 
awaiting Board approval of the final plan, an emergency temporary plan is also being 
created. Ana and Warren wanted to know who takes the responsibility if something does 
happen tomorrow. 
 
Jeremy Tobias indicated that there are two reasons for creating this succession plan: it is 
good business practice, and it is a required document. This is a standard format that we 
plan to follow, and it will be discussed in detail at the Board meeting next week. 

 
c. Head Start and Early Head Start Budget to Actual Reports – Donna Holland, Fiscal 

Administrator – Info Item  
 Kern Head Start and Early Head Start Budget to Actual for the Period Ended     

December 31, 2016 
 San Joaquin Early Head Start Budget to Actual for the Period Ended December 31, 

2016 
 Partnerships Early Head Start Child Care Partnerships Budget to Actual for the period 

September 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016 

131



Community Action Partnership of Kern                                               
Budget & Finance Committee Meeting Minutes                                         
January 18, 2016                                                                         
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

Donna Holland presented the Head Start and Early Head Start Budget to Actual Reports, 
pointing out areas where there were higher expenditures (licensing fees, legal fees, travel 
costs), savings, and resulting revisions. Overall total costs are on target at this point in the 
budget period. 
 
Ana asked where the high travel cost was coming from. Donna indicated that this included 
travel to and from San Joaquin to provide support, especially during the startup phase. 
She did not foresee the same level of travel as the contract progresses. 
 
Jeremy indicated that a full update will be provided to the Board on the San Joaquin project 
tentatively at the February 22nd meeting. 

 
d. 2015-16 Early Head Start Partnership Federal Financial Report (Final) – Christine Anami, 

Director of Finance – Info Item 
 
Christine Anami stated that the SF 425 Federal Financial Report is a standard formatted 
report that we are obligated to use when we receive direct federal government funds, 
where there is no pass through agency such as the state of California.  
 
Warren asked whether unobligated balances are always carried over. Christine replied 
that such balances are not always carried over, but in this case they were, since we had 
legitimate reasons such as facilities improvements and health and safety related 
expenses. Jeremy added that with large amounts of carryover, we would need to 
communicate prior to the contract end and request to carryover. 

e. 2017 Community Services Block Grant (CSBG Contract #17F-2015) Budget – Christine 
Anami, Director of Finance – Action Item 
 Seven year budget comparison 
 2017 CSBG budget by program compared to 2016 
 CSBG contract budget summary – State form 
 CSBG budget support – Other agency operating fund – State form 
 
Christine reported that over seven years we have achieved a 20.5% increase in CSBG 
funding. We were asked to submit our budget at the funding level from 2016, but there is 
a possibility of an augmentation once the resolution is approved. 
 
Warren observed that administrative costs versus program costs over the years have 
reduced. Christine indicated that we have been able to recover our administrative costs 
from other grants and are depending less on CSBG for administrative costs, allowing more 
money to go into programs. Jeremy stated that this is the only grant we receive that can 
be dedicated to all of our low-income programs, and it is the only money we receive that 
has this level of flexibility. For example, the Food Bank or the youth centers depend on 
this money because they don’t have their own standalone contract. 
 
Christine reported that WIC and 2-1-1 were able to cover their costs and did not depend 
on CSBG in the 2017 budget year. There was an increase for the MCAP program, because 
they have a 15% cap on administrative costs, and after taking 10% for the de minimis 

132



Community Action Partnership of Kern                                               
Budget & Finance Committee Meeting Minutes                                         
January 18, 2016                                                                         
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

indirect cost rate, only 5% remains for the program to operate. 
 
The CSBG Budget and the Other Agency Operating Funds reports provide a snapshot of 
the funds that come through the agency, and shows the scope of the agency. Ana and 
Warren expressed that this was a helpful snapshot. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the 2017 Community Services Block Grant 
(CSBG Contract #17F-2015) Budget. Carried by unanimous vote. (Peterson/Vigil)  

 
6. Finance Director Report  

a. Discretionary Fund Update – Info Item 

Christine reported an overall net decrease of approximately $13,000 in the month of 
December. An unidentified check that was received from the state Employment 
Development Department was deposited. The state identified their mistake and the money 
had to be repaid. The other expense was incurred to pay the Head Start licensing late fee 
assessed for lack of payment in 2010. Yolanda Gonzales will present a full report to the 
Board on January 25th. 
 

b. Financial Statements, December 2016 – Action Item  
 

Christine stated that due to adequate cash flow, we have not had to utilize the full line of 
credit, which is one million dollars. For the time we did have to borrow, the cost was 
$832 dollars. There is a quarterly fee of $2,400 for non-use of the line of credit. Both are 
charged to the discretionary fund. We recently signed to extend the line of credit until 
January 2018, with no increase in fees. Jeremy indicated that the long term goal is to 
reduce the line of credit, which can be achieved as the discretionary fund increases. 
Christine reported that we are not over budget as an agency over ten months, and each 
program is monitoring their spending so that we do not go over budget. In the Indirect 
Fund, we are 80.6% expended at 83.33% of the year. 

 
7. Committee Member Comments 

Ana thanked staff. Warren thanked staff and wished everyone a Happy New Year. 

8. Next Scheduled Meeting 

Budget & Finance Committee Meeting  
Wednesday, February 15, 2017 

12:00 p.m.  
5005 Business Park North  
Bakersfield, California 93309 

9. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 1:12 pm. 

133



 COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

To:  Budget & Finance Committee 
                    
 
 
From:  Donna Holland, Fiscal Administrator 
 
Subject: Agenda Item   : Kern Head Start and Early Head Start Budget to Actual 

Report for the Period Ended December 31, 2016 
 
Date:  January 18, 2017 
 
 
The following are highlights of the Head Start/Early Head Start Budget to Actual Report 
for the period March 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016. 
 
Budget Revision 
Approval of CAPK’s request to revise the budget is pending.  The budget revision will 
incorporate the 10% De Minimis Indirect Cost Rate.  This report was prepared using the 
revised budget amounts in anticipation of approval. 

 
Personnel & Fringe Benefits 
Significant savings are trending in Early Head Start; staff are reviewing cost allocation 
methodologies for classroom personnel. 
 
Travel 
Some travel costs associated with training were charged to base funds.  Staff have 
identified savings in other areas to cover these costs. 
 
Equipment 
Funds in this category were budgeted for the purchase of four program vehicles. Staff 
are in the process of completing this purchase. 
 
Supplies 
Purchases of office and classroom supplies are ongoing.  Possible savings in this 
category may be used elsewhere in the program. 
 
Contractual 
Legal fees during the SEIU contract negotiation process were somewhat more than 
estimated.  Staff have identified savings in other areas to cover these costs. 
 
Other 
Head Start expenditures in this category are higher than the percentage of the year 
elapsed; this is primarily the result of preparing the Wesley site to become a licensed 
child development center.  Staff have identified savings in other areas to cover these 
costs. 
 
 

134



Early Head Start expenditures in this category are lower than the percentage of the year 
elapsed.  Possible savings in this category may be used elsewhere in the program. 
 
Training & Technical Assistance (T&TA) 
Head Start T&TA funds are expended.  Additional funds are budgeted in the base grant 
for planned training expenses in excess of T&TA funding.   
 
Early Head Start T&TA funds will be fully expended by the end of the program year. 
 
Non-Federal Share 
With % of the budget period elapsed, total Non-Federal Share (the sum of California 
Department of Education funding and in-kind) is at 96% of budget. 
 
• California Department of Education 

Actual and estimated non-federal revenues through December 2016 are at 93% of 
budget. 

 
• In-Kind 

Year-to-date in-kind is at 99% of budget. 
 
The five centers with the highest percentage of goal met were Fairfax, Planz, Sunrise 
Villa, Roosevelt and San Diego.  A total of 39 out of 44 centers and groups met or 
exceeded 83% of goal.  

135



Prepared 01/10/2017

BASE FUNDS
BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT

% 
REMAINING

BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT
% 

REMAINING

PERSONNEL 10,129,112 8,494,938 1,634,174 84% 16% 1,869,515 926,770 942,745 50% 50%
FRINGE BENEFITS 3,039,598 2,856,525 183,073 94% 6% 560,855 268,648 292,207 48% 52%
TRAVEL 0 9,833 (9,833) 0 406 (406)
EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 120,000 0 120,000 0% 100%
SUPPLIES 1,036,919 579,356 457,563 56% 44% 464,862 190,979 273,883 41% 59%
CONTRACTUAL 64,750 88,250 (23,500) 136% -36% 12,250 13,346 (1,096) 109% -9%
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0 0 0 0
OTHER 3,131,903 2,870,875 261,028 92% 8% 535,892 370,725 165,167 69% 31%
TOTAL BASE FUNDING 17,402,282 14,899,777 2,502,505 86% 14% 3,563,374 1,770,874 1,792,500 50% 50%

TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE
PERSONNEL 0 0 0 0 (59) 59
FRINGE BENEFITS 0 0 0 0 715 (715)
TRAVEL 19,322 25,348 (6,026) 131% -31% 34,690 13,996 20,694 40% 60%
SUPPLIES 22,797 17,758 5,039 78% 22% 16,152 3,050 13,102 19% 81%
CONTRACTUAL 18,485 7,706 10,779 42% 58% 11,689 12,204 (515) 104% -4%
OTHER 84,746 93,254 (8,508) 110% -10% 34,473 22,397 12,076 65% 35%
TOTAL TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 145,350 144,066 1,284 99% 1% 97,004 52,303 44,701 54% 46%

INDIRECT 1,878,054 1,317,627 560,427 70% 30% 386,620 165,917 220,703 43% 57%

GRAND TOTAL HS/EHS FEDERAL FUNDS 19,425,686 16,361,470 3,064,216 84% 16% 4,046,998 1,989,094 2,057,904 49% 51%

 

BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT
% 

REMAINING

2,805,361 2,611,584 193,777 93% 7% Centralized Administrative Cost 6.2%
3,062,811 3,026,487 36,324 99% 1% Program Administrative Cost 2.5%

TOTAL NON-FEDERAL 5,868,172 5,638,071 230,101 96% 4% Total Administrative Cost 8.7%

CURRENT 1 TO 30 31 TO 60 61 TO 90 OVER 90 CREDITS TOTAL

Bank of America 0

Lowe's 0

Save Mart 0

Smart & Final 105 105

Chevron & Texaco Business Card 5,685 5,685

Home Depot 8,884 8,884

14,674 0 0 0 0 0 14,674

* Expenditure details are included in the CAPK Financial Report
Budget reflects Notice of Award #09CH9142-03-0X (Federal approval of budget revision is pending)  
Actual expenditures include posted expenditures and estimated adjustments through 12/31/2016.

12/31/2016

STATEMENT DATE

Not available for report

1/5/2017
1/5/2017

Not available for report
Not available for report

SOURCE

EARLY HEAD STARTHEAD START

Community Action Partnership of Kern Agency-Wide Credit Card Report *

CALIF DEPT OF ED
IN-KIND

HEAD START and EARLY HEAD START NON-FEDERAL SHARE

Community Action Partnership of Kern
Head Start and Early Head Start - Kern

Budget to Actual Report
Budget Period:  March 1, 2016 - February 28, 2017
Report Period:  March 1, 2016 - December 31, 2016

HEAD START EARLY HEAD START

Month 10 of 12 (83%)

136



Community Action Partnership of Kern
Head Start and Early Head Start
Non-Federal Share and In-Kind
Budget Period:  March 1, 2016 through February 28, 2017
Report for period ending December 31, 2016 (Month 10 of 12) 

Percent of year elapsed: 83%

LOCATION

FUNDED 
ENROLL-

MENT March April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
YTD 

Totals
IN-KIND 
GOAL

% OF 
GOAL 
MET

Fairfax 40 24,746 25,251 18,439 0 0 9,735 22,272 20,029 18,541 134 139,147 51,839 268%
Sunrise Villa 34 13,146 12,263 6,775 0 0 5,689 9,342 9,630 15,970 0 72,815 44,063 165%
San Diego Street 48 12,075 10,439 11,730 7,067 7,027 6,596 7,251 12,869 8,661 8,006 91,721 62,207 147%
Roosevelt 34 9,039 8,311 6,674 0 0 4,841 9,597 13,231 11,672 424 63,790 44,063 145%
Planz 34 12,315 10,461 12,154 0 0 6,295 5,907 7,602 5,974 311 61,019 44,063 138%
Stella Hills 34 7,753 7,910 3,580 0 0 0 7,756 9,041 13,858 10,621 60,518 44,063 137%
McFarland 20 7,117 5,767 2,921 0 0 1,743 4,768 6,828 5,681 164 34,988 25,919 135%
Vineland 20 5,180 5,542 4,335 0 0 2,175 4,195 7,085 201 4,440 33,152 25,919 128%
Casa Loma 34 10,304 11,410 8,328 0 0 3,953 7,510 8,590 6,260 0 56,354 44,063 128%
Martha J. Morgan 83 22,338 20,744 13,606 0 0 9,484 22,879 25,761 20,260 1,209 136,281 107,566 127%
Virginia 34 8,315 7,701 4,854 0 0 5,080 11,006 9,713 8,356 104 55,130 44,063 125%
Williams 34 8,967 8,195 5,460 0 0 2,512 6,808 7,703 8,079 6,112 53,836 44,063 122%
Franklin 24 6,049 6,281 6,607 4,113 3,364 2,518 2,368 2,392 3,203 327 37,222 31,103 120%
Alicante 34 7,661 11,592 9,673 0 0 2,224 7,140 7,219 5,251 0 50,760 44,063 115%
Delano 90 20,376 21,196 20,989 6,696 9,199 8,519 14,248 11,458 11,007 5,560 129,250 116,638 111%
Noble 34 9,834 9,519 4,957 0 0 2,902 8,034 7,501 5,526 0 48,273 44,063 110%
Sterling 103 17,160 16,714 15,890 12,546 12,764 13,651 16,008 17,370 14,802 7,864 144,769 133,485 108%
Cleo Foran 34 8,912 7,514 5,035 0 0 3,313 7,478 8,872 6,548 0 47,673 44,063 108%
Faith Avenue 34 8,435 8,879 5,748 0 0 3,592 9,539 2,117 8,579 312 47,201 44,063 107%
Stine Road 123 19,627 19,450 20,299 12,331 12,812 17,223 17,759 20,566 15,880 13,165 169,113 159,405 106%
Primeros Pasos 76 17,227 15,148 12,143 4,696 6,094 7,500 12,233 13,325 11,940 3,012 103,318 98,494 105%
Alberta Dillard 68 10,211 11,434 6,909 0 0 4,848 17,746 21,506 18,853 349 91,856 88,126 104%
Home Base 249 28,093 29,509 20,270 9,697 16,080 12,959 13,027 20,326 8,911 4,568 163,440 161,349 101%
Lamont 34 8,086 7,732 3,598 0 0 4,313 9,137 1,207 10,424 0 44,496 44,063 101%
Seibert 34 8,157 5,478 2,844 0 0 3,435 6,884 9,607 7,396 0 43,801 44,063 99%
Shafter 34 7,714 8,400 4,578 0 0 4,081 4,201 5,902 5,287 3,041 43,205 44,063 98%
Taft 54 11,902 13,717 8,130 0 0 6,109 10,604 10,515 7,622 0 68,598 69,983 98%
East California 70 18,493 17,503 10,688 0 0 3,650 9,739 15,504 13,269 0 88,846 90,718 98%
California City 34 7,771 5,648 3,856 0 0 4,081 7,633 7,748 6,282 0 43,020 44,063 98%
Fairview 34 6,551 2,381 10,537 0 0 2,518 6,175 7,273 5,959 186 41,579 44,063 94%
Oildale 34 7,387 5,882 4,163 0 0 4,231 6,946 6,578 6,068 0 41,254 44,063 94%
Oasis 60 15,379 15,470 8,735 0 0 5,706 9,300 8,767 7,115 794 71,265 77,758 92%
Rafer Johnson 34 6,998 7,935 4,364 0 0 2,058 5,591 7,061 5,303 198 39,507 44,063 90%
Buttonwillow 20 4,372 4,107 1,356 0 0 1,268 4,436 4,058 3,459 166 23,223 25,919 90%
Pete H. Parra 148 18,586 18,823 16,876 12,447 10,834 17,390 24,281 22,010 18,016 10,779 170,044 191,804 89%
Shafter HS/EHS 36 4,412 3,559 4,529 4,670 3,689 3,486 4,603 4,962 5,796 104 39,810 46,655 85%
Willow 72 15,550 13,772 7,577 0 0 4,987 9,498 11,612 12,152 3,660 78,809 93,310 84%
Lost Hills 20 5,126 4,434 4,058 0 0 945 2,602 2,214 2,279 0 21,657 25,919 84%
Pacific 62 8,933 8,122 9,357 5,612 6,792 7,204 8,023 6,300 4,327 1,914 66,584 80,350 83%
Tehachapi 34 4,004 3,431 2,343 0 0 3,995 7,533 7,530 6,830 0 35,666 44,063 81%
Heritage Park 34 5,518 3,282 3,089 0 0 2,248 5,839 5,990 4,352 0 30,319 44,063 69%

137



Community Action Partnership of Kern
Head Start and Early Head Start
Non-Federal Share and In-Kind
Budget Period:  March 1, 2016 through February 28, 2017
Report for period ending December 31, 2016 (Month 10 of 12) 

Percent of year elapsed: 83%

LOCATION

FUNDED 
ENROLL-

MENT March April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
YTD 

Totals
IN-KIND 
GOAL

% OF 
GOAL 
MET

Pioneer 34 4,152 5,201 3,267 0 0 695 2,895 4,107 7,981 0 28,298 44,063 64%
Rosamond 75 5,240 3,210 1,585 0 0 3,091 6,948 8,414 8,348 0 36,835 97,198 38%
Mojave 34 1,705 1,322 626 0 0 888 1,576 2,722 2,795 0 11,633 44,063 26%
Wesley 60 0 77,758 0%
Voorhies 0 6,800 4,740 3,424 0 0 14,964
Wasco 0 4,131 3,928 1,346 0 0 9,405
Administrative Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NA
Program Services 5,049 4,464 4,138 3,997 3,984 3,935 3,943 3,943 3,943 3,943 41,339 93,094 44%
Policy Council and RPC 109 107 20 23 14 33 117 159 124 0 705 51,236 1%
SUBTOTAL IN-KIND 2,369 487,003 463,876 352,458 83,894 92,654 227,699 403,375 434,918 389,141 91,468 3,026,487 3,053,141 99%

State General Child Care* 119,619 118,092 117,337 112,660 80,901 97,966 91,197 100,401 81,273 93,393 1,012,839 1,031,472 98%
State Preschool* 153,811 147,815 148,975 113,839 124,822 135,161 151,671 171,674 147,695 155,506 1,450,970 1,680,926 86%
State Migrant Child Care* 15,718 13,870 14,146 11,867 13,484 16,366 15,885 17,203 14,287 14,950 147,776 92,963 159%
SUBTOTAL CA DEPT of ED 289,148 279,778 280,458 238,366 219,207 249,493 258,753 289,278 243,256 263,848 2,611,584 2,805,361 93%

GRAND TOTAL 776,151 743,654 632,916 322,260 311,861 477,192 662,128 724,196 632,397 355,316 5,638,071 5,858,502 96%
*May include estimates

138



 COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

To:  Budget & Finance Committee 
                    
 
 
From:  Donna Holland, Fiscal Administrator 
 
Subject: Agenda Item   : San Joaquin Early Head Start Budget to Actual Report 

for the Period Ended December, 31, 2016 
 
Date:  January 18, 2017 
 
 
The following are highlights of the San Joaquin Early Head Start Budget to Actual Report for 
the period February 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016. 
 
Budget Revision 
Approval of CAPK’s request to revise the budget is pending from Office of Head Start.  The 
budget revision will incorporate the 10% De Minimis Indirect Cost Rate.  This report was 
prepared using the revised budget amounts in anticipation of approval. 
 
Personnel & Fringe Benefits 
Savings are expected to be realized in these categories at year-end. 
 
Travel 
Expenditures for the purpose of supporting San Joaquin staff are higher than anticipated at this 
point in the program year. Staff are monitoring this line item and have identified savings in 
other areas to cover these costs. 
 
Supplies 
Expenditures for supplies include reasonable and necessary expenditures using anticipated 
savings from personnel and fringe benefits categories. 
 
Contractual 
Savings are expected to be realized in this category at year-end. 
 
Other 
Staff expect to fully expend funds budgeted in this category. 
 
Carryover 
CAPK’s request to carryover funds from the prior budget period was approved.  The carryover 
funds are being used to install outdoor shade structures, improve playgrounds, make health 
and safety improvements to centers, update classroom furnishings and materials, and to 
purchase one program vehicle.  Staff expect to fully obligate these funds prior to the end of the 
budget period. 
 
 
 

139



Training & Technical Assistance 
Staff expect to fully expend these funds. 
 
Non-Federal Share 
With 92% of the budget period elapsed, the total Non-Federal Share is at 21% of budget.  
CAPK has requested a waiver of Non-Federal Share from Office of Head Start. 
 
The San Joaquin Early Head Start program has been challenged in meeting its Non-Federal 
Share budget, as only four of its 9 centers are currently licensed and in operation.  However, 
San Joaquin’s management staff continue to increase efforts to ensure that field staff and 
parents of enrolled children are aware of the importance of in-kind, and of the opportunities 
parents have to provide volunteer services to the program. 

140



Prepared 01/12/2017

BASE FUNDS BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT
% 

REMAINING

PERSONNEL 2,935,476 2,507,627 427,849 85% 15%
FRINGE BENEFITS 741,255 586,379 154,876 79% 21%
TRAVEL 14,940 25,423 (10,483) 170% -70%
EQUIPMENT 0 0 0
SUPPLIES 191,905 387,842 (195,937) 202% -102%
CONTRACTUAL 22,500 10,018 12,482 45% 55%
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0
OTHER 604,477 524,813 79,664 87% 13%
TOTAL 4,510,553 4,042,102 468,451 90% 10%

EQUIPMENT 112,500 0 112,500 0% 100%
SUPPLIES 90,000 191,459 (101,459) 213% -113%
OTHER 358,398 94,917 263,481 26% 74%
TOTAL 560,898 286,376 274,522 51% 49%

TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE FUNDS
TRAVEL 17,981 9,076 8,905 50% 50%
SUPPLIES 14,389 2,891 11,498 20% 80%
CONTRACTUAL 9,500 13,364 (3,864) 141% -41%
OTHER 40,027 23,595 16,432 59% 41%
TOTAL 81,897 48,926 32,971 60% 40%

INDIRECT 485,791 424,395 61,396 87% 13%

GRAND TOTAL EHS FEDERAL FUNDS 5,639,139 4,801,799 837,340 85% 15%

 

NON-FEDERAL SHARE BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT
% 

REMAINING

IN-KIND 1,415,810 303,055 1,112,755 21% 79%

TOTAL NON-FEDERAL FUNDS 1,415,810 303,055 1,112,755 21% 79%

Budget reflects Notice of Award #09CH010071-02-0X (Federal approval of budget revision is pending).
Actual expenditures include posted expenditures and estimated adjustments through 12/31/2016.

Community Action Partnership of Kern

Early Head Start - San Joaquin County

Budget to Actual Report

Budget Period:  February 1, 2016 - January 31, 2017
Report Period:  February 1, 2016 - December 31, 2016

Month 11 of 12 (92%)

CARRYOVER FUNDS

141



Community Action Partnership of Kern
San Joaquin Early Head Start
Non-Federal Share and In-Kind
Budget Period:  February 1, 2016 through January 31, 2017
Report for period ending December 31, 2016 (Month 11 of 12) 

Percent of year elapsed: 92%

LOCATION

FUNDED 
ENROLL-

MENT Feb March April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
YTD 

Totals
IN-KIND 
GOAL

% OF 
GOAL 
MET

Home Base - Stockton 72 3,081 4,706 5,936 5,324 5,898 4,385 4,944 7,126 10,595 8,501 0 60,496 191,895 32%
Home Base - Lodi 48 4,188 5,069 1,862 2,068 1,509 2,597 2,763 4,823 5,389 6,049 15 36,331 127,930 28%
Chrisman 22 798 1,302 1,042 960 2,988 3,856 3,333 3,683 4,949 8,525 123 31,559 117,269 27%
California Street 24 1,882 2,605 2,842 3,041 2,280 1,850 2,964 3,674 5,641 6,938 0 33,715 127,930 26%
Home Base - Manteca 24 658 881 2,037 1,504 1,386 918 1,446 1,817 1,349 3,393 11 15,400 63,965 24%
St. Mary's 16 1,682 1,786 1,982 2,205 1,986 1,991 1,874 2,450 2,070 2,186 164 20,376 85,287 24%
4th Street 32 2,944 3,026 2,791 3,902 3,343 1,298 2,372 2,176 4,068 2,532 105 28,556 170,573 17%
Home Base - Tracy 24 502 616 1,021 930 1,072 1,706 863 1,491 363 0 0 8,565 63,965 13%
Walnut 20 1,179 1,124 617 1,272 1,883 1,809 1,881 1,413 966 969 0 13,114 106,608 12%
Lodi UCC 23 280 452 1,074 1,198 682 1,161 1,115 1,722 2,357 2,789 68 12,899 122,600 11%
Gianone 16 2,013 2,238 1,609 1,573 328 237 0 297 0 0 0 8,297 85,287 10%
Tracy Toddlers 8 2,039 1,785 1,139 1,523 6,486 42,643
Dorothy Mahin 16 872 725 863 2,460 85,287
Kennedy 0 367 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 235 488 0 1,090 0
Administrative Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Program Services 0 30 2,324 1,332 5,016 10,142 1,463 92 346 1,721 0 22,467 21,858 103%
Policy Council 224 96 246 126 186 0 179 30 159 0 0 1,246 2,713 46%
SUBTOTAL IN-KIND 345 22,708 26,442 27,384 26,958 28,557 31,950 25,198 30,794 38,486 44,091 486 303,055 1,415,810 21%

142



 COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

To:  Budget & Finance Committee 
                    
 
 
From:  Donna Holland, Fiscal Administrator 
 
Subject: Item   : Early Head Start Child Care Partnerships 

Budget to Actual Report for the Period Ended December 31, 2016 
 
Date:  January 18, 2017 
 
 
The following are highlights of the Early Head Start Child Care Partnerships Budget to Actual 
Report for the period September 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016. 
 
Base Funds 
Personnel and Fringe Benefits costs are slightly high through the first 4 months of the budget 
period. 
 
Total costs overall are on target at this point in the budget period. 
 
Carryover Funds 
CAPK has submitted a request to carry over unexpended prior-year funds in the amount of 
$315,000; (base funds) and $48,200 (training & technical assistance funds). Federal approval 
is pending. 
 
Training & Technical Assistance (T&TA) 
Total costs overall are on target at this point in the budget period. 
 
Non-Federal Share 
With 33% of the year elapsed, total Non-Federal Share is at 40%. 

143



Prepared 01/12/2017

BASE FUNDS BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT
% 

REMAINING

PERSONNEL 122,245 48,128 74,117 39% 61%
FRINGE BENEFITS 28,705 12,053 16,652 42% 58%
TRAVEL 0 0 0
EQUIPMENT 0 0 0
SUPPLIES 1,650 324 1,326 20% 80%
CONTRACTUAL 459,322 142,972 316,350 31% 69%
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0
OTHER 9,990 2,668 7,322 27% 73%
TOTAL BASE FUNDING 621,912 206,145 415,767 33% 67%

CARRYOVER FUNDS (pending Federal approval) BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT
% 

REMAINING

PERSONNEL 0 0 0
FRINGE BENEFITS 0 0 0
TRAVEL 0 0 0
EQUIPMENT 0 0 0
SUPPLIES 0 0 0
CONTRACTUAL 0 0 0
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0
OTHER 0 0 0
TOTAL START-UP FUNDING 0 0 0

TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE FUNDS BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT
% 

REMAINING

TRAVEL 5,294 2,410 2,884 46% 54%
SUPPLIES 3,506 0 3,506 0% 100%
OTHER 8,000 3,472 4,528 43% 57%
TOTAL TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 16,800 5,882 10,918 35% 65%

INDIRECT 62,184 21,201 40,983 34% 66%

GRAND TOTAL FEDERAL FUNDS 700,896 233,228 467,668 33% 67%

NON-FEDERAL SHARE BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT
% 

REMAINING

IN-KIND 175,224 70,377 104,847 40% 60%

TOTAL NON-FEDERAL FUNDS 175,224 70,377 104,847 40% 60%

Centralized Administrative Cost 7.0%
Program Administrative Cost 1.6%

Total Administrative Cost 8.6%

Budget reflects Notice of Award #09HP0036-02-00.
Actual expenditures include posted expenditures and estimated adjustments through 12/31/2016.

Month 4 of 12 (33%)

Community Action Partnership of Kern
Early Head Start - Child Care Partnerships

Budget to Actual Report
Budget Period:  September 1, 2016 - August 31, 2017

Report Period:  September 1, 2016 - December 31, 2016

144



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN  
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

 
To:          Budget & Finance Committee  
                               

 

From:          Christine Anami, Director of Finance 
Date:           January 18, 2017  
Subject:       Agenda Item   : 2015/16 EHS Partnership Federal Financial Report (Final) 

- Info Item 

                                                                                                                                
 
 
Head Start regulations require that the Standard Form 425 – Federal Financial Report be 
filed at three different intervals.  For the Early Head Start Partnership program year March 
1, 2015 to August 31, 2016, the due dates are as follows: 
 

 10/30/15 First Semi-annual  
 04/30/16 Second Semi-annual 
 10/30/16 Annual  
 01/30/17 Final  

 
Attached is the final Federal Financial Report that was uploaded to the Grant Solutions 
system on January 4, 2017.  Grantees are no longer required to submit the report to their 
regional offices and instead are to use the Grant Solutions system.  The change in federal 
reporting submission requirements went into effect January 5, 2016.  
 
 
Attachment:  SF-425 Federal Financial Report – EHS Partnership 
 

145



146



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

To:         Budget & Finance Committee 

                        

From:         Christine Anami, Director of Finance   

Date:          January 18, 2017  

Subject:     Agenda Item   : 2017 Community Services Block Grant (CSBG Contract        

                   (17F-2015) Budget   

                                                                                                                                
 
At the Board of Directors’ meeting on November 30, 2016, the resolution to accept the Community 
Services Block Grant (CSBG) contract for 2017 was approved.  At that time, the budget had not 
been finalized to support the estimated allocation amount of $1,482,354, which is equal to the 
2016 CSBG contract.  The 2017 allocation is based on the continuing resolution for the first 
quarter of Federal Fiscal Year 2017.  The 2017 CSBG contract will be amended if additional funds 
are appropriated. 
 
For 2017, it is estimated that 41% of the contract will be used for centralized administrative costs 
and 59% of the contract will be used for programs, such as Food Bank, VITA, Migrant Alternative 
Payment and the youth centers that have anticipated funding gaps.  For 2016, it was 35% 
centralized administrative costs and 65% program costs. 
 
The following schedules are attached: 
 

 Seven Year Budget Comparison.  From 2011 to 2017, the CSBG contract amount has 
increased 20.5% or $251,919. 

 2017 CSBG Budget by Program Compared to 2016 
 CSBG Contract Budget Summary – State Form 
 CSBG Budget Support – Other Agency Operating Funds – State Form 

 
The 2017 CSBG contract packet, including the budget forms was mailed to the State in the third 
week of December 2016.  If needed, budget modifications are allowed to be submitted to the 
State during the contract term up until November 15, 2017. 
 
Recommendation  
 
Staff recommends that the Budget & Finance Committee approves the budget for the 2017 CSBG 
contract (17F-2015).  
 
Attachments: Seven year comparison of CSBG budget 
                      2017 CSBG budget by program compared to 2016 

                   CSBG Contract Budget Summary – State Form 
                   CSBG Budget Support – Other Agency Operating Funds – State Form 

 

147



2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Administrative Costs 75.4% 65.1% 48.4% 53.4% 41.8% 34.9% 41.1%

Program Costs 24.6% 34.9% 51.6% 46.6% 58.2% 65.1% 58.9%

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Funding Amount $1,230,435 $1,196,355 $1,366,988 $1,384,531 $1,396,948 $1,482,354 $1,482,354

Increase (Decrease) ($34,080) $170,633 $17,543 $12,417 $85,406 $0

% Increase from 

        2011 to 2017 20.5%

Note A:  CSBG is a calendar year grant.

Note B:  The State anticipates California's 2017 CSBG to remain consistent with the 2016 CSBG funding level.

Note C:  In 2017, CSBG will be used 6.2% more for administrative costs than program costs because of the 

                10% indirect cost rate.

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT (CSBG)

SEVEN YEAR BUDGET COMPARISON

148



Program 2016 % 2017 %

Food Bank 479,719 32.4% 473,530 31.9%

VITA 226,072 15.3% 166,785 11.3% Note A

Friendship House 210,867 14.2% 195,858 13.2%

Migrant Alternative Payment 179,277 12.1% 368,845 24.9% Note B

Community Development 141,112 9.5% 153,215 10.3%

Shafter Youth Center 114,041 7.7% 122,121 8.2%

WIC 66,525 4.5% Note C

211 44,207 3.0% Note C

E Kern Family Resource Center 20,534 1.4% 2,000 0.1%

Total CSBG Funding 1,482,354 100.0% 1,482,354 100.0%

Note A:  VITA will be less dependent on CSBG because of the IRS grant that was awarded for $84,815.

Note B:  Migrant Alternative Payment will need gap funding because of the 15% limit on administrative

                costs which includes the 10% indirect.

Note C:  WIC and 211 are projected to be able to cover all program costs and the 10% indirect.

Note D:  No new programs were added for 2017 that will need CSBG funding.

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN

2017 CSBG BUDGET BY PROGRAM COMPARED TO 2016

149



150



151



03/01/16‐ 12/01/16‐

11/30/16 12/31/16 TOTAL
BEGINNING BALANCE (NOTE 1) 402,432.61 402,432.61

CASH RECEIPTS

2016 Awards Banquet Donations 58,265.00 a 58,265.00

2017 Awards Banquet Donations 0.00 175.00 175.00

Donations 11,478.61 2,276.40 b 13,755.01

Give Big Kern Donations (net) 1,532.45 1,532.45

Misc. Revenue 13,539.96 (5,710.95) c 7,829.01

Less: Friendship House Quad (15,000.00) (15,000.00)

Gain on Sale of Vehicles 7,837.43 7,837.43

Interest Income/Union Administrative Fee 844.94 102.30 947.24

TOTAL CASH RECEIPTS 78,498.39 (3,157.25) 75,341.14

CASH DISBURSEMENTS

Line of Credit Interest Expense 545.02 121.49 d 666.51

Line of Credit Unused Commitment Fee 1,703.40 1,703.40

2016 Awards Banquet Expenses  20,871.89 a 20,871.89

2017 Awards Banquet Expenses 0.00 10.60 10.60

Licensing Late Fees ‐ Head Start 3,165.00 7,065.00 e 10,230.00

Disallowed Costs ‐ WIC 2,250.00 2,250.00

Labor Settlement 500.00 500.00

Property Taxes ‐ Vacant Land 1,964.35 1,964.35

Outreach 0.00 1,075.00 f 1,075.00

Fundraising 1,431.00 159.00 1,590.00

Miscellaneous Expenses 435.89 395.34 831.23

Indirect Costs 2,612.32 988.00 3,600.32
TOTAL CASH DISBURSEMENTS 35,478.87 9,814.43 45,293.30

CASH PROVIDED (USED) 43,019.52 (12,971.68) 30,047.84

ENDING BALANCE 445,452.13 432,480.45

Discretionary Cash 222,815.34

Fund Raising Cash 209,835.85

432,651.19

Add: Prepaid 4.16

Less: AP (174.90)

432,480.45

NOTES
1. For the year ended 2/29/16, the net increase to the Discretionary/Fund Raising Funds was $65,722.45.

a. As of 12/31/16, net 2016 awards banquet gain is $43,727.94 (@ FYE 2/29/16 = 6,334.83 + 37,393.11 for 2016/17).

b. Includes $2,000 donation from Pacific Irrigation, Inc.

c. Includes (1) $6,210.95 repayment of tax overpayment refund from the State Employment Development Department

recognized in October 2016 that was for another agency and (2) $500 receipt from Union Bank.

d. Interest expense on operating line of credit advance for $1 million for one day.

e. Settlement of late fees assessed on the 2010 annual Head Start license fee that was paid after the due date.

f. Sponsorship for Golden Empire Gleaners event.

Date Prepared: 1/10/17

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN

DISCRETIONARY AND FUND RAISING FUNDS

FOR THE MONTH ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

152



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
HEAD START / STATE CHILD DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS  

POLICY COUNCIL (PC) MEETING MINUTES 
NOVEMBER 17, 2016    

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER – Chairperson, Jason Warren called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  
a. Moment of Silence, Pledge of Allegiance 
b. Reading of Promise of Community Action 
“Community Action changes people’s lives, embodies the spirit of hope, improves communities,  
 and makes America a better place to live.  We care about the entire community and are dedicated to 
helping people help themselves and each other.”   

2.   ROLL CALL/SET QUORUM – Secretary, Ana Luna ‐ Quorum was established. 
PC Members Present: Enrique Salazar, Anton Faern, Lachelle Calvillo, Ruben Castellanos, Maria 
Martinez, Gabriella McCutcheon, Christina Bates, Catherine Velasquez, Lizeth Calvo, Jason Warren, 
Savannah Scarpa, Lorena Fernandez, Marion Gomez, Ramona Campos    

3.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA – Chairperson, Jason Warren (*ACTION)  
a. Approval of the revised PC Agenda dated November 17, 2016 to include action item 9(k) “Amendment 
to the 2016‐2017 PC bylaws regarding community representatives.” was made by Gabriella McCutcheon; 
seconded by Christina Bates.  Motion carried unanimously. 

4.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Chairperson, Jason Warren (*ACTION) 
a. Approval of the PC meeting minutes dated October 13, 2016 was made by Savannah Scarpa; 
seconded by Lorena Fernandez.  Motion carried unanimously.  

5.  PRESENTATION OF GUESTS/PUBLIC FORUM  
(The public wishing to address the full Policy Council may do so at this time.  Policy Council members may 
respond briefly to statements made or questions posed.  However, the PC will take no action other than 
referring the item(s) to staff for study and analysis. Speakers are limited to five minutes each.  If more 
than one person wishes to address the same topic, total group time for topic will be 10 minutes.  Please 
state your name before making your presentation.  Thank you. 
Guests in attendance: Anastasia Lester; Deanna Perez; Ana Luna; Lindsay Harrison; Biviana Acosta; Erika 
Freehoffer; Argelia Diaz, Family Services & Governance Assistant; Elizabeth Cisneros, FSW San Diego; 
Yolanda Gonzales, Head Start/State Child Development Director; Mike Lackman, HR Manager; Maura 
Sandoval, Staffing Specialist; Lisa Price, PDM Administrative Assistant; Maria Pizano, FSW San Diego; 
Swathi Venkatesh, Research and Administrative Support Assistant; Janelle Gonzalez, Governance 
Coordinator; Angela Adams, Family Education Coordinator; Sandi Truman, VITA Program Manager; 
Jackie Escobar, Professional Development Specialist; Jerry Meade, Program Design & Management 
Administrator; Elizabeth Williams, Program Manager; Mary Ann Mooney, Program Manager, Rashi 
Strother; Family Services & Governance Specialist; Gloria Barbero, Program Administrator  

6.  STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT (5 minutes each)         
a. Personnel Committee – No report 
b. Planning Committee – No report 
c. Finance Committee – No report 
d. By‐Laws Committee – No report  

7.  HUMAN RESOURCES (*ACTION)  
   a. Human Resources Report – Maura Sandoval, Staffing Specialist  

Maura distributed the November 2016 Human Resources Report for review.  Motion was made by 
Gabriella McCutcheon and seconded by Anton Faern to approve the Human Resources Report for 
November 2016.  Motion carried unanimously.  

153



  b. Executive Session – Mike Lackman, Human Resources Manager    
  Motion made by Gabriella McCutcheon to move to Executive Session at 5:40 p.m.  Motion made to  
  approve Executive Session report made by Ana Luna; seconded by Lorena Fernandez.  Motion carried  
  unanimously.  Policy Council reconvened at 5:44 p.m. 
 
8.  PRESENTATIONS  

a. Volunteer Income Tax Assistance Program (VITA) – Sandi Truman, Program Manager 
Sandi Truman, Program Manager for the Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) Program presented an 
overview of this program.  This is a year round no cost income tax assistance program with over 4,800 
returns prepared this past tax season.  Sandi trains approximately 50‐60 volunteers each year to assist in 
completing tax returns.  There is no cost to the trainee.  However, it is asked that they volunteer for two 
4 hour shifts per week.  Sandi is available and would be happy to speak to parents (at parent meetings) 
to provide information about this cost saving service. The busiest time of the year for VITA is January 
through April and cannot present at any parent meeting during these months.       

 

b. 2016 Customer Satisfaction Survey – Swathi Venkatesh, Research and Administrative Support 
Assistant 
Swathi informed the group about the 2016 Customer Satisfaction Survey and encouraged parents to 
complete this survey and share the experiences they have had with our staff and programs.  She added 
that last year there were 1000 surveys completed throughout the agency with 330 Head Start parents 
participating.  Swathi is confident we will have an increase in participation this year.  She added that 
survey will be available at the centers as well as online.  The deadline for completion will be the first 
week of December.  

9.  NEW BUSINESS – Chairperson (*ACTION)  
a. New Fundamental View DRDP 2015 – Leslie Mitchell, Administrator of Education Support Services  
On Leslie’s behalf Yolanda Gonzales gave an overview on the DRDP screening tool adding that it is 
administered to our children 3 times per year as required.  There are 52 developmental areas that are 
screened with this tool.  Recently the state has released another tool which consists of 43 fundamental 
measures.  This tool is aligned to the School Readiness framework and does not take away from the true 
picture or from setting a baseline; it is simply a more condensed version.  The request is that the Policy 
Council approves the use of the new fundamental view DRDP 2015.  Motion made by Catherine 
Velasquez and seconded by Savannah Scarpa.  Motion carried unanimously. 
b. Nomination and election of the Policy Council Chairperson (2 minutes) 
Janelle provided an overview of the roles and responsibilities of this position.  Self‐nominations were 
made by Enrique Salazar and Lorena Fernandez.  Each candidate was given an opportunity to address 
the group prior to voting.  Enrique received the majority of votes.  Motion was made by Marion Gomez 
to approve the election of Enrique Salazar for the position of PC Chairperson; seconded by Ruben 
Castellanos.  Motion carried unanimously.   
c. Nomination and election of the Policy Council Vice Chairperson (2 minutes) 
Janelle provided an overview of the roles and responsibilities of this position.  Self‐nominations were 
made by Lorena Fernandez and Jason Warren.  Each candidate was given an opportunity to address the 
group prior to voting.  Lorena received the majority of votes.  Motion was made by Savannah Scarpa to 
approve the election of Lorena Fernandez for the position of PC Vice‐Chairperson; seconded by Anton 
Faern.  Motion carried unanimously.   
d. Nomination and election of the Policy Council Secretary (2 minutes) 
Janelle provided an overview of the roles and responsibilities of this position.  She added that this 
position will also be the chair of the newly formed School Readiness sub‐committee and not of the 
Personnel Committee which has been past practice.  PC will no longer have a personnel subcommittee.  
Self‐nominations were made by Christina Bates and Lachelle Calvillo.  Each candidate was given an 
opportunity to address the group prior to voting.  Christina received the majority of votes.  Motion was 

154



made by Savannah Scarpa to approve the election of Christina Bates for the position of PC Secretary; 
seconded by Lorena Fernandez.  Motion carried unanimously.   
e. Nomination and election of the Policy Council Treasurer (2 minutes)  
Janelle provided an overview of the roles and responsibilities of this position.   A sole self‐nomination 
was made by Gabriella McCutcheon.  Motion was made by Ana Luna to approve the election of Gabriella 
for the position of PC Treasurer; seconded by Savannah Scarpa.  Motion carried unanimously.   
f. Nomination and election of the Policy Council Parliamentarian (2 minutes) 
Janelle provided an overview of the roles and responsibilities of this position.  Self‐nominations were 
made by Savannah Scarpa and Jason Warren.  Each candidate was given an opportunity to address the 
group prior to voting.  Savannah received the majority of votes.  Motion was made by Anton Faern to 
approve the election of Savannah Scarpa for the position of PC Parliamentarian; seconded by Lorena 
Fernandez.  Motion carried unanimously.   
g. Nomination and election of the Policy Council Community Representative (2 minutes) 
Janelle shared with the group that there are two representatives from the community that are 
interested in serving on the PC Board however current bylaws allow for only one.  The community 
representative nominees introduced themselves and the organization they represent.  They also 
addressed the group prior to voting, sharing why they are interested in serving on PC.  Nominees were 
Anastasia Lester of First 5 Kern and Lindsay Harrison of Boys & Girls Club and Standard School District.  
Ana received the majority of votes.  At this time Janelle shared with the group that upon approval (from 
Policy Council as well as CAPK Board of Directors) to amend the PC Bylaws to include additional 
community representatives the nominee with the fewest votes can be voted in as well.  It was asked 
how long that take will?  Janelle stated that it is on the agenda tonight for approval and the Board of 
Directors will convene in January at which time they will vote; the hope is that this can happen in time 
for February’s PC Meeting.  Motion was made by Savannah Scarpa to approve Ana Lester for the 
position of PC Community Representative; seconded by Jason Warren.  Motion carried unanimously. 
h. Nomination and election of Policy Council Bylaws Committee members (7 openings) 
Janelle reminded the group that as a member of Policy Council they must serve on at least one 
subcommittee.  She added that the Parliamentarian is automatically the chairperson of the PC Bylaws 
Committee.  As staff sponsor of this committee Janelle shared that she has scheduled the first meeting 
for December 1, 2016; this subcommittee will meet approximately 3‐4 times per year.  The following 
members expressed a desire to be a member of the PC Bylaws Committee: Jason Warren, Anton Faern, 
Ruben Castellanos, Catherine Velasquez, Ramona Campos, Lachelle Calvillo.  Motion made by Savannah 
Scarpa to approve the nominees as presented; seconded by Jason Warren.  Motion carried unanimously. 
i. Request for the approval of the proposed Policy Council Meeting days and times 
Proposed time and dates as provided in the Policy Council packet were presented.  The proposal is for 
meeting days to take place on the final Thursday of the month with light dinner at 5:00 p.m. and PC 
Meeting to begin at 5:30 p.m.  Motion was made by Ruben Castillo; seconded by Jason Warren.  Motion 
carried unanimously.  
j. Request for PC members to attend the CHSA Annual Conference of Champions for Stronger Children 
and Families 
At this time a brief overview along with dates for the upcoming CHSA Conference was given.  The CHSA 
Annual Conference: Champions for Stronger Children and Families will be held January 8‐10, 2016 in 
Sacramento, CA.  Jerry added that it is extremely important if parents are interested in attending that 
they are certain their schedule permits.  Parents need to ensure they have childcare, time off work etc. 
as there is an extensive process required by staff to complete the travel process.  There are hotel 
reservations, per diem checks, conference registration etc. to prepare for each individual attending.  If 
cancellation is necessary some costs may not be refundable.  Jason Warren, Lorena Fernandez, Ramona 
Campos and Savannah Scarpa nominated themselves to attend this conference.  Motion was made by 
Jason Warren; seconded by Lorena Fernandez for nominated parents to attend the CHSA Annual 
Conference.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 

155



 k. Amendment to the 2016‐2017 Policy Council Bylaws regarding Community Representatives 
 Janelle shared that this year is unique in the fact that we have more than one interested party in this 
position and the bylaws only allow for one community representative on the PC Board.  With that said a 
request was made to approve an amendment to the bylaws regarding community representatives.  
Motion was made by Savannah Scarpa; seconded by Gabriella McCutcheon. Motion carried 
unanimously.    

10.  COMMUNICATIONS – Chairperson 
a) Head Start & Early Head Start – Kern Budget vs. Actual Expenditures                                                          

March 1, 2016 through October 31, 2016 
b) Early Head Start – San Joaquin Budget vs. Actual Expenditures 

February 1, 2016 through October 31, 2016                   
c) Early Head Start Child Care Partnerships Budget vs. Actual Expenditures                                          

September 1, 2016 through October 31, 2016  
d) Parent Local Travel & Child Care, for the period ended October 31, 2016 (English/Spanish) 
e) Parent Activity Funds, for the period ended October 31, 2016 (English/Spanish)  
f) Parent Meals, for the period ended October 31, 2016 (English/Spanish)  
g) Enrollment, Average Daily Attendance and Child & Adult Care Food Program/Central Kitchen Report 

and Report for HS/EHS Kern, EHS San Joaquin and EHS Child Care Partnerships, October 2016 
h) Autism Society Family Support Group Meeting Dates 
i) Preventing Bullying HHS/ACF/OHS. 2016. English. 
j) Jersey Mike’s Subs Fundraiser 
k) Kern Literacy Council Volunteer Tutor 
l) Covered California: Get Help Paying for Your Health Insurance (English/Spanish) 
m) Events at Beale Memorial Library,  November 2016 
n) Consumer Family Learning Center Calendar, November 2016 
o) CHSA 2017 Annual Conference: Champions for Stronger Children and Families (English/Spanish) 
p) Policy Council Executive Officer roles & Responsibilities (English/Spanish) 
q) Functions of the Policy Council Subcommittees (English/Spanish) 
r) New Life Residential & Training Center: Drive it Forward 2016 
s) The Salvation Army Seasonal Assistance Giveaway 
Motion made by Gabriella McCutcheon to receive and file items (a) – (s)  
 

11.  PROGRAM GOVERNANCE REPORT/TRAINING – Janelle Gonzalez 
Janelle congratulated the executive officers on their new positions and stated that she will be scheduling 
a group training soon.  The PC Board will be working on a collaborative entity and will learn about the 
program and how a non‐profit functions among other pertinent topics.  New learning regarding 
leadership and advocacy for your child (and all children) will also take place.  Janelle shared that one of 
the changes with regard to PC is that there will no longer be a Personnel subcommittee that has been 
replaced with a School Readiness subcommittee which is still in the forming stages.  This is an exciting 
time and she is looking forward to the upcoming term and working with everyone.  In closing, Janelle 
shared a short video clip about teamwork.  

12.  COMMUNITY REPRESENATIVE REPORT  
No report 

13.  POLICY COUNCIL CHAIRPERSON REPORT  
               Enrique thanked the group for electing him PC Chairperson.  He added that they (PC Board Members) 

are a team and he thanked them for their time.  

14.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPRESENTATIVE REPORT  
No report. 

156



15.  DIRECTORS REPORT (HEAD START/STATE CHILD DEVELOPMENT) – Yolanda Gonzales 
Yolanda thanked everyone for their attendance and said how excited she is for the upcoming year and 
she is inspired by the enthusiasm of this newly elected PC board.  Yolanda shared that approximately 35 
years ago she too was a Head Start parent and was so appreciative of the program and wanted to give 
back.  She is looking forward to working with everyone and getting to know them better.  Yolanda 
thanked everyone for their commitment and passion and encouraged them to ask questions.  Yolanda 
added that there are new performance standards and parents will learn through this process what that 
means for them and what to expect.  In closing, she spoke of how important it is for parents to set goals 
and to never give up reminding them that we are here not only for the children but the whole family.    

16.  ANNOUNCEMENTS – Chairperson 
The question/inquiry was posed regarding the new barcode scanning system.  Jerry briefly explained 
that attendance & meal counts are taken and then hard copies are submitted to a team of three of his 
staff who manually input all of that information for every child at every center we have for every meal.  
Use of the barcode system allows for this information to immediately be reported thus alleviating a 
large part of the data input process.  It is slowly rolling out to a few centers at a time and will eventually 
be used at all centers.  Jason shared that he is interested in organizing a male involvement activity 
adding that male involvement is something he is passionate about.  Lorena invited anyone interested to 
come out on Tuesday, November 22 to assist with a float that the Lamont center will have in the 
upcoming December 3rd Holiday Parade.  She added that though this is geared towards male 
involvement giving an opportunity to dads, grandpas, uncles and other males in the child’s life to 
participate however any and all help is welcome!  Lorena also shared an opportunity this weekend to 
assist with feeding the homeless at Martin Luther King Park.  A flyer was distributed regarding this 
event.  Jerry shared that a committee has been formed with a tentative meeting date to review the 
CAPK Employee Handbook.  He added that parental involvement is welcome if anyone is interested 
adding that there will be a sign up sheet available along with two dates.  Interested parties were asked 
to sign up and select the date that works best for their schedule.   

17.  ADJOURNMENT – Chairperson  
Meeting was adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 
 

Lisa Price/PDM Administrative Assistant 
Completed 11.23.16 

 

157



158



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
2017 ATTENDANCE ROSTER 

 
 
 

 JAN 
 

FEB 
 

MAR 
 

APR 
 

MAY 
 

JUN 
 

AUG 
 

SEP 
 

OCT 
 

NOV 
 

Benton, Janea           
Camp, Jim           
Corrigan, Garth           
Floyd, Curtis           
Henderson, Craig           
Maggard, Mike           
Ochoa, Yolanda           
Panos, Marian           
Peterson, Warren           
Plane, Fred           
Rodriguez, Charlie           
Vigil, Ana           
           
Policy Council Rep           
           
           
           
           

 
 No meeting held due to lack of quorum. 

 
 
 

NO MEETINGS ARE SCHEDULED FOR THE MONTHS OF JULY OR DECEMBER 

159


	Final Jan BoD Agenda
	Board Packet 012517
	Part 1
	VIa
	1. Memo re BA Report
	DOC012017

	VIb
	1. Memo Updated Employee Manual 1 20 17
	2. Outline of significant changes to the Employee Manual

	VIc
	0. Memo-Board of Directors-OrgStandards1-20-2017 (002)
	1. Draft Executive Director Succession Plan Policy 12-7-2016
	2. Attachment 1-Emergency Back-up Plan Sucession Guidelines 12-7-2016
	3. Attachment 2-Emergency Backup Plan Detail 12-7-2016
	4. Conflict of Interest Statement

	VId
	1. Contract for Services Agreement for Garden Pathways Memo
	2. Garden Pathways Agreement for Services 1-5-17 mlp

	VIe
	1. Memo to BOD Creative Child Care food service 012517
	2. CCCI contract (initialed)

	VIf
	VIg
	VIh

	Part 2
	VIIa
	1. Exec Minutes  12-14-16
	2. Amendement to Employee Sick Leave Cash Out Policy Memo
	3. Application Status Report - December 2016
	4. Funding Request to Rabobank
	5. Funding Request to Tri Counties Bank
	6. Budget to Actual Reports - November 2016-signed
	Summary for Exec_Kern_November 2016.pdf
	BTA WORKBOOK_Kern_November 2016.pdf
	BTA REPORT

	Accrual Report 2016-2017_for Exec_November 2016.pdf
	YTD Accrual Report

	Summary for Exec_San Joaquin_November 2016.pdf
	BTA WORKBOOK_SAN JOAQUIN_November 2016.pdf
	BTA REPORT

	Summary for Exec_EHS CCP_November 2016.pdf
	BTA WORKBOOK_EHS CCP_November 2016.pdf
	BTA REPORT


	7. Discretionary Fund

	VIIb
	1. Audit  Committee Minutes 01-12-17 DRAFT
	CSD Audit Transmittal Report 16-005

	VIIc
	0. PRE Committee Minutes 1-11-17 DRAFT
	1. Program Reports
	2. January 2017
	3.Grant Profiles Walmart and JLB
	4. HS-EHS Monthly Report December 2016
	5. November - December 2016 Outreach  Advocacy Report AND 2016 Accomplishments

	VIId
	1. Budget & Finance Committee Minutes 1-18-17 DRAFT
	2. BTA Reports for B&F
	Summary for B&F_Kern_December 2016.pdf
	BTA WORKBOOK_Kern_December 2016.pdf
	BTA REPORT

	Accrual Report 2016-2017_December 2016_B&F.pdf
	YTD Accrual Report

	Summary for B&F_San Joaquin_December 2016.pdf
	BTA WORKBOOK_SAN JOAQUIN_December 2016_with revised budget and indirect.pdf
	BTA REPORT

	SJ Accrual Report 2016-2017_December 2016_B&F.pdf
	YTD

	Summary for B&F_EHS CCP_December 2016.pdf
	BTA WORKBOOK_EHS CCP_December 2016
	BTA REPORT


	3. Memorandum - B&F 2015-16 EHS Partnership
	4. FFR 2015-16 Final EHS Partnership
	5. Memorandum - Board CSBG 2017
	6. Seven Year Budget Comparison
	7. Budget by Program
	8. CSBG 2017 State Budget Forms
	9. Discretionary Fund - Board

	VIIIi
	IX
	1. Jeremy Memo - ED Report
	2. Attendance Roster






